\\A\u/

- hanm CoE D 7275 W. MAIN STREET, KALAMAZOO, MI 49009-9334
OSbtemo 269-216-5220 Fax 375-7180  TDD 375-7198
www.oshtemo.org
>~ est. 1839

/ \Y\\

NOTICE
OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION
Regular Meeting
Thursday, October 24, 2019

6:00 p.m.

AGENDA
1. Callto Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of Agenda
4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
5. Approval of Minutes: October 10, 2019
6. Public Hearing: Village Theme Development Plan

Consideration of the draft Village Theme Development Plan for recommendation to the

Township Board.

7. 0Old Business
a. Maple Hill South Overlay Zone — draft ordinance review

8. Other Business
a. Nonhazardous Materials Treatment Facility — draft ordinance review

9. Planning Commissioner Comments

10. Adjournment



Policy for Public Comment
Township Board Regular Meetings, Planning Commission & ZBA Meetings

All public comment shall be received during one of the following portions of the Agenda of an open meeting:

a. Citizen Comment on Non-Agenda Items or Public Comment —while this is notintended to be a forum for dialogue
and/or debate, if a citizen inquiry can be answered succinctly and briefly, it will be addressed or it may be delegated
to the appropriate Township Official or staff member to respond at a later date. More complicated questions can be
answered during Township business hours through web contact, phone calls, email (oshtemo@oshtemo.org), walk-
in visits, or by appointment.

b. After an agenda item is presented by staff and/or an applicant, public comment will be invited.

Atthe close of public comment there will be Board discussion prior to call for a motion. Whilecomments that include
questions are important, depending on the nature of the question, whether it can be answered without further
research, and the relevance to the agenda item at hand, the questions may not be discussed during the Board
deliberation which follows.

Anyone wishing to make a comment will be asked to come to the podium to facilitate the audio/visual capabilities
of the meeting room. Speakers will be invited to provide their name, but it is not required.

All public comment offered during public hearings shall be directed, and relevant, to the item of business on which
the public hearing is being conducted. Comment during the Public Comment Non-Agenda Items may be directed to
any issue.

All public comment shall be limited to four (4) minutes in duration unless special permission has been granted in
advance by the Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting.

Public comment shall not be repetitive, slanderous, abusive, threatening, boisterous, or contrary to the orderly
conduct of business. The Supervisor or Chairperson of the meeting shall terminate any public comment which does

not follow these guidelines.
(adopted 5/9/2000)
(revised 5/14/2013)
(revised 1/8/2018)

Questions and concerns are welcome outside of public meetings during Township Office hours through phone
calls, stopping in at the front desk, by email, and by appointment. The customer service counter is open from
Monday-Thursday 8:00 am-5:00 pm, and on Friday 8:00am-1:00 pm. Additionally, questions and concerns are
accepted at all hours through the website contact form found at www.oshtemo.org, email, postal service, and
voicemail. Staff and elected official contact information is provided below. If you do not have a specific person to
contact, please direct your inquiry to oshtemo@oshtemo.org and it will be directed to the appropriate person.

Oshtemo Township

Board of Trustees Township Department Information
Supervisor ) Assessor:
Libby Heiny-Cogswell  216-5220  libbyhc@oshtemo.org Kristine Biddle ~ 216-5225 assessor@oshtemo.org
Clerk Fire Chief:
Dusty Farmer 216-5224  dfarmer@oshtemo.org Mark Barnes 375-0487 mbarnes@oshtemo.org
Ordinance Enf:
Treasurer Rick S 216-5227 ky@osht
Grant Taylor 216-5221 gtaylor@oshtemo.org c uwarSKy rsuwars oshtemo.org
Parks Director:
Lrustees Karen High 216-5233 khigh@oshtemo.org
Cheri L. Bell 3722275 chell@oshtemo.org Rental Info  216-5224 oshtemo@oshtemo.org
Deb Everett 375-4260  deverett@oshtemo.org Planning Director:
Julie Johnston 216-5223  jjohnston@oshtemo.org
Zak Ford 271-5513  zford@oshtemo.org Public Works:

Marc Elliott 216-5236 melliott@oshtemo.org

Ken Hudok 548-7002  khudok@oshtemo.org



mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
http://www.oshtemo.org/
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:libbyhc@oshtemo.org
mailto:dfarmer@oshtemo.org
mailto:ncoshtwp@oshtemo.org
mailto:dboshtwp@oshtemo.org
mailto:%20%20%20%20%20deverett@oshtemo.org
mailto:zford@oshtemo.org
mailto:khudok@oshtemo.org
mailto:assessor@oshtemo.org
mailto:mbarnes@oshtemo.org
mailto:rsuwarsky@oshtemo.org
mailto:khigh@oshtemo.org
mailto:oshtemo@oshtemo.org
mailto:jjohnston@oshtemo.org
mailto:melliott@oshtemo.org

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING HELD OCTOBER 10, 2019

Agenda

PUBLIC HEARING: FLAGS AND FLAGPOLES
CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT FLAGS AND FLAGPOLE ORDINANCE FOR
RECOMMENDATION TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD

Old Business

a. Village Theme Development Plan discussion
b. Landscape Ordinance
c. Setback Provisions Ordinance

A meeting of the Oshtemo Charter Township Planning Commission was held Thursday,
October 10, 2019, commencing at approximately 6:00 p.m. at the Oshtemo Charter
Township Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bruce VanderWeele, Chair
Ollie Chambers
Ron Commissaris
Dusty Farmer, Secretary
Keshia Dickason
Micki Maxwell

MEMBER ABSENT: Mary Smith, Vice Chair

Also present were Julie Johnston, Planning Director, James Porter, Township
Attorney, and Martha Coash, Meeting Transcriptionist. Two other persons were in
attendance.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Chairperson VanderWeele called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.
and invited those present to join in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance.”

Approval of Agenda

The Chair determined there were no changes to the agenda and let it stand as
presented.



Public Comment on Non-Agenda ltems

Chairperson VanderWeele asked if any member of the audience cared to
address the Board on a non-agenda item. Hearing none, he moved to the next item.

Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of September 26, 2019

The Chair asked if there were additions, deletions or corrections to the Minutes of
the Work Session of September 26, 2019. Hearing none, he asked for a motion.

Mr. Chambers made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Work Session of
September 26, 2019 as presented. Ms. Dickason supported the motion. The motion was
approved unanimously.

Chairperson VanderWeele moved to the next agenda item and asked Ms.
Johnston for her presentation.

PUBLIC HEARING: FLAGS AND FLAGPOLES
CONSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT FLAGS AND FLAGPOLE ORDINANCE FOR
RECOMMENDATION TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD

Ms. Johnston said the current Township Zoning Ordinance manages flags and
flagpoles within the Sign Ordinance, which is not how most flags are utilized in
Oshtemo. Often, property owners wish to fly the American or State of Michigan flag, not
an advertisement flag. Therefore, the Sign Ordinance is an awkward location to
manage this use. In addition, ordinance language which regulates signs provides very
little regulatory control over placement of flagpoles. At this time, the only requirement
for placement would be ensuring the flagpole is outside of the road right-of-way.

To better regulate flags and flagpoles, staff suggested adding a section to Article
57: Miscellaneous Protections Ordinance. In developing Section 57.140: Flags and
Flagpoles, staff reviewed other community ordinances, as well as websites of flag
manufacturers for typical sizes for residential and commercial uses. Finally, the draft
ordinance was reviewed by the Township Attorney, Zoning Administrator and Ordinance
Enforcement Officer.

She noted the few final changes requested at the September 12th Planning
Commission meeting were included in this latest draft and recommended it be
forwarded to the Township Board for approval.

In answer to a question, Ms. Johnston explained this ordinance pertains only to
non-commercial flags and any flag reflecting non-commercial speech would be allowed.

Chairperson VanderWeele determined there were no public comments or further
comments from Board Members during Board Deliberations and requested a motion.



Ms. Maxwell made a motion to recommend the “Flags and Flagpole Ordinance,”
as presented, to the Township Board for approval. Ms. Dickason supported the motion.
The motion was approved unanimously.

Chairperson VanderWeele asked Ms. Johnston for her presentation on the next
agenda item.

OLD BUSINESS

a. Village Theme Development Plan

Ms. Johnston provided the most recent version of the draft Village Theme
Development Plan for review and listed the additions/changes added to the Plan based
on September 26 discussion. She noted the section on modifiable standards would
provide the Planning Commission with more flexibility within the Form Based Code
through the overlay. She acknowledged more language changes may be needed in the
future when ordinance amendments are considered.

Chairperson VanderWeele noted adoption of the plan informs the zoning and will
allow zoning changes. The vision of the Plan would then be supported by code.

Ms. Johnston said a public hearing is tentatively scheduled for the October 24
Planning Commission meeting.

Ms. Farmer noted after the public hearing the Plan will go to the Township Board
for consideration of adoption. If they do not adopt the Plan at that point it will not
become an official plan of the Township.

Attorney Porter said if the Planning Commission holds a public hearing on
October 24, the Township Board could consider the Plan at its first November meeting.

Mr. Chambers made a motion to approve the Village Theme Development Plan
for a public hearing at the October 24 Planning Commission meeting. Mr. Commissaris
supported the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

Chairperson VanderWeele asked Ms. Johnston for her review of the next item.
b. Landscape Ordinance
Ms. Johnston said the draft Landscape Ordinance was presented to the Planning
Commission on July 11™" and August 8™ for review and consideration. Several updates

were requested at the August meeting, which were incorporated in the current draft.

As a reminder, she said the Planning Commission worked for several months
developing this draft Landscape Ordinance in 2016. Time was spent in the field



reviewing constructed sites to see how landscaping was being developed and other
community ordinances were examined for comparisons. A revised draft Landscape
Ordinance was developed, which staff applied to existing sites around Oshtemo. These
plans were presented to the Commission at past meetings for consideration.

There was discussion about the types and numbers of trees and locations
proposed in the draft.

Ms. Johnston explained the language was worked on to maintain as closely as
possible the required number of trees in this new ordinance to what was required
previously. The goal was to avoid a reduction in requirements. They are just not figured
by measuring the linear feet of buffers as required in the current ordinance.

In response to a request from Ms. Farmer, Ms. Johnston will check on the
percentage requirement of 30% for Lower Michigan native landscape material to see if it
should be established at a higher percentage. She will also take a look at the tree
requirements for both the edge of parking and interior parking areas. If changes are
indicated, they will be made for consideration at the public hearing.

Ms. Farmer made a motion to set a public hearing on the Landscape Ordinance
at the November 14 Planning Commission meeting. Mr. Commissaris supported the
motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

The Chair asked Ms. Johnston for her review of the next agenda item.

c. Setback Provisions Ordinance Draft

Ms. Johnston said recently there was some concern about how the Township
was regulating accessory buildings on residential properties, specifically where they
were permitted to be located on a parcel, lot, or building site. After a careful review of
the Accessory Buildings and Setback Ordinances, it was determined some
amendments were needed to ensure the two regulations work in concert.

She provided the recommended changes to Section 50.60: Setback Provisions,
B. Agricultural and Residence Districts, noting the majority of the modifications are
organizational, allowing the ordinance to be more readable. The main changes are as
follows:

e The term “primary structure” was added to the setback requirements. Without
this clarification, it was ambiguous as to whether accessory structures would be
allowed in the front yard.

e The term “structure” as added to the setback regulations for accessory uses. A
structure is clearly defined in the Zoning Ordinance, assisting with clarity.



e A reference to Section 57.100 was added to assist readers with understanding
there are additional requirements for accessory buildings.

Ms. Johnston said the amended ordinance was reviewed by the Township
Attorney and Zoning Administrator to ensure the changes resolved the regulatory
concerns. Additional changes will be made to the Accessory Buildings Ordinance and
presented to the Planning Commission at a later date. She suggested if the Planning
Commission was comfortable with the recommended changes, a public hearing could
be set for this ordinance amendment.

Attorney Porter commented that the rewrite to make the language clearer has
resulted in a much improved, easier to understand ordinance.

The Chair suggested it would be helpful to provide regulations charts within the
Zoning Ordinance.

Ms. Johnston said that could be considered and that interactive links could be
made between the ordinance document and regulations.

Hearing no further comments, Chairperson VanderWeele asked for a motion.
Mr. Commissaris made a motion to hold a public hearing on the Setback

Provisions Ordinance at the November 14 Planning Commission meeting. Mr.
Chambers supported the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

There was no other business to consider.

PLANNING COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Ms. Farmer informed the Board that Oshtemo Township has the highest
percentage of absentee voter applications in the county at over 20%.

She invited everyone to celebrate Ms. Johnston’s last official meeting on the 24t
of October.

Ms. Johnston said after her official employment end date she would likely
continue to work on the Village Theme Development Plan, but was not sure about the
Maple Hill South project.

She also reminded the group of the joint boards’ meeting at 6:00 p.m. on October
15.



ADJOURNMENT

Hearing no further comments, Chairperson VanderWeele adjourned the meeting
at approximately 7:00 p.m.

Minutes prepared:
October 12, 2019

Minutes approved:
, 2019




N

[ ]umznir{ tororship

October 16, 2019 OSbtemo

/ﬂ ™ ™ est. 1839
Mtg Date: October 24, 2019
To: Planning Commission
From: Julie Johnston, AICP
Subject: Draft Village Theme Development Plan — Public Hearing

Within the Township, the historic Oshtemo Village area developed at the intersection of Stadium Drive
and 9th Street. This community was often referred to as a village, although it never incorporated as such.
Prior to the construction of the interstate highways that border Oshtemo Township, 9th Street and
Stadium Drive served as major access roads for this area. The Oshtemo Village formed at the junction of
these roads.

In 2017, the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) began to become concerned with the lack of new
development happening with the Village, which is within the Authorities boundaries. Development
seemed to be occuring in earnest in other areas of the Township, but not the Village. Discussions related
to the Village Form-Based Code Overlay and its possible impact on new development was outlined as a
primary concern. The Village Form-Based Code Overlay is intended to re-create the Village area based on
traditional urban design standards of a walkable, mixed-use community.

The Village Form-Based Code was a result of the Village Theme Development Plan, which was originally
adopted in 2006. The DDA felt that a review of the 2006 Plan was needed due to the public process
utilized to create the Plan and ultimately the Village Form-Based Codes. The DDA wanted the public,
property owners, business owners, etc. from within the Village, as well as throughout Oshtemo Township,
the opportunity to weigh in on any possible changes to the Plan.

The draft of the Village Theme Development Plan is intended as an update to the 2006 Plan and represents
a critical review of the original Village Theme Development Plan and sought to consider and accomplish
the following:

1. Gather citizen and stakeholder opinions to confirm the preferred vision for the village and
evaluate the effectiveness of the Plan.

2. Investigate the perception that development within the village has been limited, in comparison
to development elsewhere in the Township and region, since the original adoption of the Plan.

3. Review changing conditions that may impact development within the village, such as economic
trends, demographic/lifestyle preferences, traffic/recent road improvements, and pedestrian
connectivity efforts.



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission
Village Theme Development Plan
10/16/2019 - Page 2

4. Recognizing that the local road network is under the jurisdiction of the County, consider the
impact that County street design policies have on the existing and planned character of
development within the village.

5. Evaluate and outline necessary changes to currently adopted zoning regulations to ensure that
such regulations facilitate development which contributes to the desired mixed-use character of
the village.

Public input was garnered throughout the review and development of the Plan. A subcommittee of four
members from the DDA and four members of the Planning Commission was formed to help guide the
public input process, review the draft plans, and make recommendations on changes.

Stakeholder interviews were held in May of 2017. Some of these were one-on-one interview sessions and
some were in small groups. The stakeholders represented varying interests, including citizens, township
leaders, property owners, business owners, and real estate / development community representatives.
The interviews were designed to garner input on the effectiveness of the 2006 Village Theme
Development Plan and Village Form-Based Codes.

Two workshops were also held. The first occurred in June of 2017, which was focused on visioning
exercises for the Village area. Participants were asked the following questions:

1. Whether the vision from the Village Theme Development Plan continues to reflect local values,
desires and needs

2. Whether the Form Based Code for Oshtemo Village, which was adopted after the plan, has been
successful and results in quality development

3. Whether changes to the Village Theme Development Plan are needed
4. Whether changes to the Form Based Code/zoning requirements are needed

The second workshop was in October of 2017 and provided a series of development/redevelopment
scenarios for the Village area, asking participants to evaluate the merits of each scenario. In addition,
development principles were reviewed, to see if the Village principles were still considered applicable to
the area today. The intent was to get a sense of the design and development aesthetic wanted in the
Village area.

At the conclusion of the public process in October of 2107, the draft of the Village Theme Development
Plan was completed. In order to ensure the Planning Commission and Township Board were up to date
on the direction of the Plan, it was presented at a joint Board meeting in February of 2018. At that
meeting, there was some concern related to lessening the requirements to construct buildings
immediately adjacent to the street right-of-way and allowing parking within the front yard. The current
Form-Based Codes (based on the 2006 Village Theme Development Plan) require buildings to construct to
a build-to line, which is generally the edge of the street right-of-way and parking lots are prohibited in the
front yard.



Oshtemo Township Planning Commission
Village Theme Development Plan
10/16/2019 - Page 3

Based on the input gathered at that meeting, there was a distinct difference between those that wanted
the original Village theme ideas and those that wished to loosen the regulations to allow some limited
front yard parking. This small change in the Plan, and ultimately the Form-Based Code, would alter the
desired appearance of the Village area by permitting some distance between the buildings and the street
right-of-way. As is often seen in traditional downtowns, buildings are constructed immediately adjacent
to the sidewalk, which is part of the road right-of-way.

At the conclusion of the joint meeting, it was decided that the Village Theme Development Plan should
be included in the Planning Commission’s work plan. It was determined the subcommittee had taken the
Plan as far as it could, and it was time for the Commission to complete their review. Due to work loads,
the Plan has not been included on the Commissions agenda. However, in July of this year, the DDA
specifically requested the Planning Commission review the Plan, make any possible changes/additions
needed, and forward to the Township Board for approval.

The Planning Commission began their review at the September 12™" meeting. Discussion was held about
the impacts of allowing the Form-Based Code to ultimately be altered if the Village Theme Development
Plan was adopted. At the conclusion of the meeting, additional information was requested on the effect
of the possible zoning changes recommended by the draft Village Theme Development Plan. This
information was provided at the September 26" meeting.

In addition, a request was made related to the two projects that have developed within the Form-Based
Code Overlay area — the memory care center on Stadium Drive and the veterinary hospital on Parkview
Avenue. Information related to the deviations from the Form-Based Code for these projects was provided
for Planning Commission review.

Final changes to the draft Village Theme Development Plan based on Planning Commission input was
presented at the October 10" meeting, as follows:

e The acknowledgements page has been updated.

e Information from the GO! Green Oshtemo Plan has been included on page 18.
e The DDA streetscape plan information has been updated on page 19.

e The zoning amendment recommendations have been added to page 49.

After a review of these amendments, the Planning Commission voted to set the public hearing for the
Plan for October 24%. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Planning Commission may consider a
motion to forward the Plan to the Township Board.

Thank you.

(A digital copy of the Village Theme Development Plan can be found here:
https://www.oshtemo.org/boards-and-committees/agenda-and-minutes/planning-commission-agenda-

packets/ )



https://www.oshtemo.org/boards-and-committees/agenda-and-minutes/planning-commission-agenda-packets/
https://www.oshtemo.org/boards-and-committees/agenda-and-minutes/planning-commission-agenda-packets/

Village Theme
Development Plan
2019 Update

Charter Township of Oshtemo
Kalamazoo County, Michigan
Draft Report, October 3, 2019




Oshtemo Charter Township
Village Theme Development Plan
2019 Update

Oshtemo Charter Township, Kalamazoo County, Michigan

Draft Report, October 3, 2019

Prepared For:
Oshtemo Township Downtown Development Authority

Technical Planning Assistance
Provided By:

WADE
TRIM

500 Griswold, Suite 2500
Detroit, M| 48226
www.WadeTrim.com



\\)\ U,

(,banten township

oslgtemo
/ R \(\\ est. 1839

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

PROJECT STEERING COMMITTEE
Millard Loy, Former DDA Member
Rich MacDonald, DDA Member
Grant Taylor, DDA Member
Mary Smith, PC Member
Fred Antosz, Former PC Member
Cheri Bell, Former PC Member

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Grant Taylor, Chair
Libby Heiny-Cogswell, Township Supervisor
Bruce Betzler
Bill Cekola
Themi Corakis
Julie Hite
Mike Lutke
Rich MacDonald
Jack Siegel
Dick Skalski
Ryan Wieber

TowNSHIP BOARD
Libby Heiny-Cogswell, Supervisor
Dusty Farmer, Clerk
Grant Taylor, Treasurer
Cheri Bell
Deb Everett
Zak Ford
Ken Hudok

PLANNING COMMISSION
Ollie Chambers
Ron Commissaris
Keshia Dickason
Micki Maxwell
Mary Smith
Bruce Vanderweele
Dusty Farmer, Board Liaison

PLANNING/ZONING DEPARTMENT
Julie Johnston, Director
Ben Clark, Zoning Administrator
Linda Potok, Secretary



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BACKGROUND AND PLANNING CONTEXT
Plan Purpose
Historical Setting and Planning Efforts
Village Development Principles

ASSESSMENT OF EXISTING CONDITIONS
Land Use Context
Population and Income Profile
Housing Profile
Economic Profile
Transportation Assessment

PusLic INPUT
Stakeholder Interviews
Open House #1
Open House #2

PLANNING AREAS
Planning Areas Designated

CIRCULATION PLAN
Arterials
Collectors
Local Streets
Road Network Standards
Transit
Gateways
Traffic Calming
Pedestrian Circulation

DN = =

21
21
21
25

32
32

34
34

35
35
36
37
37
37
38

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update

October 3,2019 DRAFT



Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT.)

DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS 40
Open Space 40
Streetscape 41
Site Planning 42
Building Types 43
Building Design 45

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 47

IMPLEMENTATION 49
Infill Redevelopment 49
Zoning Ordinance 49
Master Land Use Plan 49
“Placemaking” as an Economic Development Tool 50
Branding 50
Market Study 51
Streetscape Improvements 51
Public Parking 51
Design Assistance/Facade Improvements 51
Funding 52

APPENDIX 54

Demographic and Income Profiles
Retail Marketplace Profiles

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT



Background and Planning Context

BACKGROUND AND PLANNING CONTEXT

Plan Purpose 0

This 2019 Village Theme Development Plan is an update to the original Oshtemo Township Village Theme Development Plan,
which was adopted by the Township Board and Downtown Development Authority (DDA) in 2006. The original Plan estab- WKL Ave
lished a vision for development of the historic Oshtemo Village area, which surrounds the intersection of Stadium Drive and 9th
Street and is part of the Townships DDA District. The Plan sought to re-create the historic character of the village and called for
the establishment of a compact, walkable, and mixed-use environment.

,ps 11th St
%,

&
£
&
“n

S Drake Rd

This 2019 Update represents a critical review of the original Village Theme Development Plan and seeks to consider and accom-
plish the following:

1. Gather citizen and stakeholder opinions to confirm the preferred vision for the village and evaluate the effectiveness of
the Plan.

S 11th St

2. Investigate the perception that development within the village has been limited, in comparison to development elsewhere
in the Township and region, since the original adoption of the Plan.

S 12th St

3. Review changing conditions that may impact development within the village, such as economic trends, demographic/life-
style preferences, traffic/recent road improvements, and pedestrian connectivity efforts.

4. Recognizing that the local road network is under the jurisdiction of the County, consider the impact that County street
design policies have on the existing and planned character of development within the village.

H
N\ __S12thst

5. Evaluate and outline necessary changes to currently adopted zoning regulations to ensure that such regulations facilitate
development which contributes to the desired mixed-use character of the village.

Historical Setting and Planning Efforts

Oshtemo Charter Township is located just west of the City of Kalamazoo. Within the Township, the historic Oshtemo Village
area developed at the intersection of Stadium Drive and 9th Street. This community was often referred to as a village, although it
never incorporated as such. Prior to the construction of the interstate highways that border Oshtemo Township, 9th Street and
Stadium Drive served as major access roads for this area. Oshtemo Village formed at the junction of these roads. Today, much of
the through traffic has shifted to the south and east onto I-94 and US-131, but Oshtemo Village remains a busy intersection and a
viable business district.

Township leaders have recognized this and responded by focusing attention to this critical area in the Township. It began in 1993
with the adoption of the Township Master Land Use Plan. That Plan established the village as a focus area and identified goals
and objectives for this area. In the past 15 years, Oshtemo Village has been the subject of a considerable amount of evaluation
and analysis. In that time, the DDA was created and a Development Plan was prepared (2004). Then, the original Village Theme
Development Plan was crafted to establish a vision for the future built environment (2006). This Plan was followed up by the

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT 1



Background and Planning Context

development of a Form Based Code to implement that vision (2008). Recently, a Streetscape Plan was prepared for aesthetic and
pedestrian right-of-way improvements within the district.

The Township’s most recent master planning effort (2017 Master Plan Update) envisions that this area will become a unique
place, identifiable within Oshtemo, by creating a higher density mixed use district, with high-quality design standards, and con-
venient and safe pedestrian connections (see inset at the bottom of the page). This 2019 Village Development Plan Update builds
upon the direction established by the Township Master Plan.

Village Development Principles

The original Village Theme Development Plan formulated an approach and development policies that sought to reestablish the
area surrounding Stadium Drive and 9th Street as it once existed -- a compact village containing a mixture of small businesses
primarily serving residents in the immediate vicinity. However, it must be recognized that the context of the area today has sig-
nificantly changed from its historical context. As examples:
» Stadium Drive and 9th Street are now wide streets (both are 5-lanes) that carry significant volumes of traffic at high
speeds
o The primary customers for local businesses are no longer the residents of the immediate vicinity, but rather are more
likely to be the commuters traveling Stadium Drive and 9th Street
o Local businesses face stiff competition from locally- and nationally-based competitors within the region, situated in a
variety of settings including traditional business districts, strip-commercial corridors, and power-centers

These and other contextual changes are documented in this report. Although it remains a goal of this 2019 Update to create a

business district with a distinct architectural character, this Plan recognizes that flexibility must be allowed to facilitate redevel-
opment that is successful within the contemporary context of the area.

OSHTEMO TOWNSHIP MASTER PLAN UPDATE 2017:

VILLAGE CORE (“OSHTEMO VILLAGE”) DESIRED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PATTERN

« Development consistent with the goals and requirements of the Village Theme Development Plan, as
amended over time and any supporting guidelines or regulations

» Mixed uses with higher density residential, commercial, and retail uses
» High-quality architectural design standards, consistent with the unique character of a village
« Convenient and safe pedestrian routes between activity centers

o Uniform streetscape improvements and sidewalks

OSHTEMO CHARTER TOWNSHIP
DDA DEVELOPMENT PLAN,

GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT -
2004

“The Oshtemo Village area will be a
vital center of commercial, light in-
dustrial and residential activity where
residents and visitors may enjoy the
benefits of a small community care-
fully integrated into the larger region.
Land uses will be arranged to sup-
port one another and businesses and
services in the community will serve
both local and other residents of the
community. Vehicular and pedestri-
an traffic will be accommodated to
provide safe and convenient access
to both residential areas and to local
businesses.”

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT



Background and Planning Context

The original Village Theme Development Plan outlined foundational principles for “downtown development” within Oshtemo
Village. These principles have been adjusted to reflect the context of the village in 2019, based on input received through the pub-
lic engagement process, which included input from Township officials, DDA Board members, stakeholders and citizens. Listed
below, these principles are seen as essential elements for the creation of a successful village district.

Promotion of Diversity of Use

The Oshtemo Village area currently has a range of retail uses including offices, restaurants, and daily needs shopping uses,
including a grocery. This mix needs to be reinforced and expanded in all areas including offices, retailing, culture, and entertain-
ment as well as residences, recreation, public spaces and special events.

Emphasis on Compactness

The core of the study area should be safe for pedestrians, and new uses and physical improvements should support the pedestrian
environment. The boundaries of the core area should be clear and recognizable.

Accessibility

Pedestrian circulation and safety must be maintained, while clear vehicular patterns and parking for the short-term shopper also
need to be defined and implemented.

Maintenance of Balance

Successful villages are able to achieve a balance of activities that result in a vitality that attracts businesses and residents to their

core. Care must be taken to balance the following:

day - night
weekday - weekend
office - retail
concentration - over concentration
high activity - congestion
auto - pedestrian

Creation of Functional Links

Pedestrian walks and routes between activity centers must be convenient, direct, safe, and attractive.

Construction of a Positive Identity

The current form and character of the main village area does not create a cohesive, positive image of a place one wants to linger
or enjoy. Enhancement and preservation of a safe, pleasant, quality, exciting place should be developed and regularly reinforced.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT



Assessment of Existing Conditions

ASSESSMENT OF EXISTING CONDITIONS : )
O 0 To b DDA D

The following narrative presents trends and findings related to key conditions within the Oshtemo DNLE Ove S
Village study area. Specifically, this narrative includes a demographic profile, market profile and
transportation assessment.

Land Use Context — e

The Oshtemo Township DDA District is centered at the intersection of Stadium Avenue and 9th : IR ”’_‘ sl r;;;;;”‘;
Street within the southeastern portion of Oshtemo Township. The well-established business district =
benefits from the high visibility and traffic volumes of Stadium Avenue and 9th Street, as well as its

proximity to major freeways (I-94, located 1.5 miles south, and US 131, located 1.5 miles east) that

offer convenient access to the greater Kalamazoo region.

s

Y : Apanmeit;’ : i

The DDA District is slightly less than 500 acres in size (approximately 0.8 square miles), and encom-
passes a variety of land uses, including commercial, office, institutional, residential, and industrial.
The context overview map highlights the overall land use character of the district. The most con-
centrated (“core”) business use surrounds the intersection of Stadium and 9th, and includes retail,
convenience, service and office establishments. Residential areas, including a mix of single-family
dwellings and apartment complexes, generally surround the business core. Extending along Stadium
Avenue, east and west of the business core, are a variety of commercial and office establishments

are found, along with some scattered residential dwellings. Numerous industrial/technology uses
are found along both sides of 9th Street in the southern portion of the district, several of which are
large-scale establishments. Flesher Field, a Township Park, as well as other open spaces are found in
the west-central portion of the district.

Particularly within and adjacent to the business core of the district, parcel sizes and widths are typ-
ically small and narrow. This concentration of small, individually-owned parcels, poses a challenge
for redevelopment efforts within the district. In order to implement even mid-sized redevelopment
projects, the purchase and assembly of several contiguous parcels of land is typically required.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT 4



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Population and Income Profile

Local area population and income statistics are presented in this section to better understand local trends and opportunities
as it relates to development within Oshtemo Village. Throughout this profile (as well as the housing and economic profiles that
follow), statistics are presented for three different geographic extents:

o 3-mile radius from the center of Oshtemo Village
o 10-minute drive time area from the center of Oshtemo Village

o 10-minute drive time area from the center of Oshtemo Village, excluding areas south of I-94 and east of US-131

Data included in this population and income profile (as well as the housing and economic profiles that follow) was obtained

from Esri Business Analyst software. Through the use of powerful geospatial analysis tools and workflows, Esri’s Business Analyst
allows for detailed analyses of customers and sales in combination with a wealth of up-to-date demographic, consumer spending,
market segmentation, and business data. Data is typically presented for the years 2010 (from US Census Reports), 2017 and 2022.

OsHTEMO TowNsHIP DDA DISTRICT
OSHTEMO TowNSHIP DDA DISTRICT 10-MINUE DRIVE TIME RADIUS MAP
3-MILE RADIUS MAP

Indian Run
GalfGlub,

E5ye

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT 5



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Population

The table below provides a summary of selected demographic information for the three geographic extents (3-mile radius of the
DDA; 10-minute drive time from the DDA; and, 10-minute drive time, excluding south of I-94 and east of US-131). The table
demonstrates the significant growth that is occurring at the local level. For all three geographies, the total number of citizens,
households and families has been on the rise since 2010, and is estimated to continue through 2022. The five year future pop-
ulation growth rates (between 2017 and 2022) for the three geographic extents range from 3.7% to 4.2%. This local population
growth rate is comparable to national averages, but is much higher than the growth rate for the State as a whole (Michigan is
expected to grow in population by 1.1% between 2017 and 2022).

The population of Oshtemo Township as a whole is also anticipated to expand in the next five years. According to Esri’s Demo-
graphic and Income Profile, the Township’s population stands at 23,121 as of 2017 and is expected to increase to 24,115 by 2022
(4.3% growth). The total number of households and families within the Township will also increase, at 5.6% and 3.4% growth
rates, respectively.

Data Conclusion: Significant local population, household and family growth suggests that there will be a need for more
services and places to shop - there is an opportunity for this need to be accommodated within Oshtemo Village.

DEMOGRAPHIC SUMMARY TABLE

Oshtemo Township DDA District (Centered at 9th/Stadium)
10-Minute Drive Time A Excludi
3-Mile Radius 10-Minute Drive Time Area inute Drive Time Area (Excluding
Demographic Characteristic South of I-94 and East of US-131)
Percent Percent Percent
2010 2017 2022 Change,| 2010 2017 2022 Change,| 2010 2017 2022 Change,
17-22 17-22 17-22
Population 33,265 35,445 36,928 4.2% 80,212 85,087 88,391 3.9% 22,363 23,588 24,461 3.7%
Households 14,816 15,731 16,346 3.9% 31,910 33,718 35,009 3.8% 9,078 9,533 9,870 3.5%
Families 6,943 7,174 7,369 2.7% 16,990 17,524 17,996 2.7% 5,553 5,721 5,868 2.6%
Total Occupied Housing Units 14,816 15,732 16,346 3.9% 31,910 | 33,718 | 35,009 3.8% 9,078 9,533 9,870 3.5%
Median Age 27.5 28.4 29.1 2.5% 28.3 29.3 30.3 3.4% 35.5 37.0 38.6 4.3%
Median Household Income -- $37,024 | $40,041 8.1% -- $45,650 | $50,766 11.2% -- $56,392 | $63,731 13.0%

Source: Esri Demographic and Income Profile, 2017

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 6



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Tapestry Segmentation and Lifestyle Characteristics

Various commercial data services, including Esri, provide demographic analyses which identify certain lifestyle characteristics
from traditional demographic data. These analyses go beyond income, age, and employment and assess the lifestyle character-
istics of populations and address subjects like housing type preferences, spending habits, leisure preferences, and family asso-
ciations. Esri’s Tapestry Segmentation is a geodemographic system that identifies 68 distinctive markets in the U.S. based on
socioeconomic and demographic characteristics to provide an accurate, comprehensive profile of U.S. consumers.

The top three tapestry segments for each of the three geographic extents is listed below.

3-mile radius from the center of Oshtemo Village
1. College Towns (21.7%)

2. Retirement Communities (15.9%)
3. Dorms to Diplomas (15.8%)
9 other tapestry segments, comprising 46.6% of the population

10-minute drive time area from the center of Oshtemo Village
1. College Towns (19.2%)

2. Dorms to Diplomas (13.2%)
3. Green Acres (10.8%)
17 other tapestry segments, comprising 56.8% of the population

10-minute drive time area from the center of Oshtemo Village, excluding areas south of I-94 and east of US-131
1. Green Acres (23.1%)

2. Retirement Communities (19.0%)
3. Middleburg (17.6%)
6 other tapestry segments, comprising 40.3% of the population

Based on information provided by Esri, the figure on the next page highlights the key characteristics of each tapestry segment
listed above. Highlighted topics include average household size, median age, median household income, neighborhood charac-
teristics and lifestyle characteristics.

Data Conclusion: Planning policies and economic development strategies for the DDA District should recognize and capi-
talize upon the the characteristics and lifestyle preferences of citizens within the market area.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT



Assessment of Existing Conditions

SUMMARY PROFILES
KEY TAPESTRY SEGMENTS FOUND WITHIN THE OSHTEMO DDA DISTRICT MARKET AREA

TAPESTRY SEGMENT:
MIDDLEBURG

Key Indices:

Avg. HH. Size = 2.73

Median Age = 35.3

Median HH Income = $55,000

Neighborhood Characteristics:

o Semi-rural locales within metro-
politan areas

o Neighborhoods changed rapidly
in the previosu decade with the
addition of new single-family
homes

o Mobile homes

o  Affordable housing

o Young couples, many with
children

Lifestyle Characteristics:

o Prefer to buy American and for a
good price

o  Comfortable with the latest in
technology, for convenience (on-
line banking or saving money on
landlines) and entertainment

TAPESTRY SEGMENT:
GREEN ACRES

Key Indices:

Avg. HH. Size = 2.69

Median Age = 43.0

Median HH Income = $72,000

Neighborhood Characteristics:

o Rural enclaves in metropolitan
areas (not exclusively) older
homes with acreage; new housing
growth in the past 10 years

o Single-family, owner-occupied
housing

o An older market, primarily
married couples, most with no
children

Lifestyle Characteristics:

o  Cautious consumers with a focus
on quality and durability

o  Comfortable with technology,
more as a tool than a trend:
banking or paying bills online is
convenient; but the internet is not
viewed as entertainment

o Economic outlook is professed
as pessimistic, but consumers are
comfortable with debt, primar-
ily as home and auto loans, and
investments

Content and Imagery Source: Esri Tapestry Segmentation Profiles

TAPESTRY SEGMENT:
COLLEGE TOwWNS

Key Indices:

Avg. HH. Size = 2.12

Median Age = 24.3

Median HH Income = $28,000

Neighborhood Characteristics:

This segment is a mix of densely
developed student housing and
dorms with local residences
Off-campus, low rent apartments
comprise half of the housing
stock

Over three-quarters of the house-
holds are renter occupied, with
one in ten remaining vacant
One-third of homes are single
family; mostly occupied by local
residents who own their homes
This market is bike and pedestri-
an friendly

Lifestyle Characteristics:

Their limited incomes result in
thrifty purchases

They dress to impress with the
latest fashions of the season
They prefer environmentally
friendly products and vehicles
that get good gas mileage
They feel anything that can be
done online is easier than in
person

TAPESTRY SEGMENT:
RETIREMENT COMMUNITIES

Key Indices:

Avg. HH. Size = 1.86

Median Age = 52.0

Median HH Income = $35,000

Neighborhood Characteristics:

o Much of the housing was built
in the 1970s and 1980s—a mix
of single-family homes and large
multiunit structures that function
at various levels of senior care

o Over half of the homes are renter

occupied

o Average rent is slightly below the
US average

o One in five households has no
vehicle

Lifestyle Characteristics:

o Brand loyal, this segment will
spend a little more for their favor-
ite brands, but most likely they
will have a coupon

o Frugal, they pay close attention to
finances

o They prefer reading magazines
over interacting with computers

o They are health conscious and
prefer name brand drugs

TAPESTRY SEGMENT:
DoRrMS TO DIPLOMAS

Key Indices:

Avg. HH. Size = 2.20

Median Age = 21.5

Median HH Income = $17,000

Neighborhood Characteristics:

Mix of dorms, on-campus and
off-campus housing cater to
young renters

Off-campus householders are
commonly students living alone
or with roommates

80% of the housing are apart-
ments; many older homes in
town have been converted into
multifamily living units

Only one in ten homes are owner
occupied

Lifestyle Characteristics:

They’re impulse buyers who ex-
periment with different brands
They buy trendy clothes on a
budget

Vehicles are just a means of
transportation—economy and
environmental impact are factors
in purchases

They value socializing, having
fun, and learning new things
They’re always connected; their
cell phone is never out of reach

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update

October 3,2019 DRAFT



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Household Income and Housing Cost Correlation

As shown in the demographic summary table, the median income of households located within the area surrounding Oshtemo
Village is expected to rise between 2017 and 2022 for all three geographies. The current (2017) household incomes for these three
geographies range from $37,024 to $56,392, and are expected to increase (through 2022) at a rate that ranges from 8.1% to 13.0%.
For Oshtemo Township as a whole, the median household income is expected to increase from $42,277 in 2017 to $47,882 by
2022, representing an increase of 13.3%. In comparison, the State of Michigan 5-year (2017-2022) median household income
growth rate is expected to be 8.2%. Growing household incomes are a positive indicator of overall economic growth and prosper-
ity for the local area.

Household income is a primary determinant for the acceptable price range of housing for virtually all families. Total housing
costs (whether as mortage payments or rent payments, along with associated taxes, utilities, etc.) are generally consided “afford-
able” so long as they are no more than three times the household’s income. Thus, a household earning $5,000 per month should
be able to afford a monthly housing cost of up to $1,500 per month. Based on this housing affordability “rule of thumb’, the
following table outlines the household income to housing cost correlation within the DDA market area for 2017 and 2022. As
of 2017, depending on the selected geography, the top limit of affordable monthly housing costs within the DDA for the average
household ranges from $926 to $1,410. By 2022, depending on the selected geography, the top limit of affordable monthly hous-
ing costs within the DDA for the average household is expected to increase to between $1,001 and $1,593.

Data Conclusion: Locally significant increases in household incomes suggest that local businesses will benefit from greater
expendable incomes. Higher incomes also suggest that households will be able to afford higher housing costs; however, the
market must recognize that households are generally not able to spend more than 30% of their household income on hous-
ing costs.

HousEHOLD INCOME AND HOUSING COST CORRELATION TABLE

Oshtemo Township DDA District (Centered at 9th/Stadium)
. A 10-Minute Drive Time Area
Demographic Characteristic 10-Mi Drive Ti
3-Mile Radius 0 mutAere:ve fme (Excluding South of 1-94
and East of US-131)
2017 Median Household Income $37,024 $45,650 $56,392
2017 Monthly Affordable Housing Cost Limit* $926 $1,141 $1,410
2022 Median Household Income $40,041 $50,766 $63,731
2022 Monthly Affordable Housing Cost Limit* $1,001 $1,269 $1,593

*The affordable housing cost limit is assumed to be 30% of total household income
Source: Esri Demographic and Income Profile, 2017 and Wade Trim Analysis

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 9



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Housing Profile

Housing Occupancy

The area surrounding Oshtemo Village is experiencing considerable growth in occupied housing units. All three geographies in
the demographic summary table experienced occupied housing unit growth between 2010 and 2017, which is expected to con-
tinue through 2022. The total number of occupied housing units in Oshtemo Township is also expected to increase, from 10,248
in 2017 to 10,655 by 2022 (4.0% increase). Between 2017 and 2022, Esri estimates that local annual occupied housing growth
rates will be comparable to the United States, but significantly higher than the State of Michigan.

The relative demand for housing within the local area is also significant. This increased demand (tightening of the market) is
evidenced by a housing unit vacancy rate that has decreased since 2010 and is expected to continue to decrease. Within Oshtemo
Township, for example, the housing vacancy rate was 8.9% in 2010, but declined to 6.8% in 2017 and is expected to continue to
decline to 6.2% by 2022. This local housing vacancy rate is significantly lower than the State of Michigan’s expected vacancy rate
of 15.8% in 2022.

Data Conclusion: Local housing growth trends and demand suggest that additional housing units are needed - there is an
opportunity for this need to be accommodated within Oshtemo Village.

Housing Ownership

The housing ownership table displays the number and distribution of owner-occupied and renter-occupied housing units for
the three geographies between 2010 and 2022. As shown in the table, for all three geographies, the number of both owner-occu-
pied and renter-occupied housing units between 2010 and 2017 has increased and is expected to continue to increase through
2022. However, trends and estimates reveal that renter-occupied housing units are increasing at a higher rate in comparison to
owner-occupied housing units. As an example, the percentage of renter-occupied housing units within a 10-minute drive of the
DDA District was 44.7% in 2010. By 2022, this percentage is expected to increase to 47.0%. Similar renter-occupancy trends are
anticipated for Oshtemo Township as a whole.

Data Conclusion: Although both owner-occupied housing units and renter-occupied housing units are increasing locally,
occupancy trends and estimates suggest that renter-occupied housing units are increasingly in demand. Therefore, it is
reasonable to conclude that there may be a particular opportunity to accommodate additional rental housing units within
Oshtemo Village.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

10



Assessment of Existing Conditions

HouSING OWNERSHIP TABLE

Oshtemo Township DDA District (Centered at 9th/Stadium)
10-Minute Drive Time Area (Excluding South of
3-Mile Radius 10-Minute Drive Time Area
1-94 and East of US-131)
Housing Ownership
Numeric Numeric Numeric
Change in Change in Changein
2010 2017 2022 2010 2017 2022 2010 2017 2022
Percent Percent Percent
Distribution Distribution Distribution

Total Occupied Housing Units 14,816 15,732 16,346 - 31,910 33,718 35,009 - 9,078 9,533 9,870 --
Owner-Occupied Housing Units 6,728 6,763 7,023 -- 17,643 17,938 18,547 -- 6,151 6,279 6,523 --
% Owner-Occupied 45.4% 43.0% 43.0% -2.4% 55.3% 53.2% 53.0% -2.3% 67.8% 65.9% 66.1% -1.7%
Renter-Occupied Housing Units 8,088 8,969 9,323 -- 14,267 15,780 16,462 -- 2,927 3,254 3,347 --
% Renter-Occupied 54.6% 57.0% 57.0% 2.4% 44.7% 46.8% 47.0% 2.3% 32.2% 34.1% 33.9% 1.7%

Source: Esri Demographic and Income Profile, 2017

Housing Preferences

Since the middle of the twentieth century, the single-family detached home has played a dominant role in the housing market.
Owning such a home was widely considered the primary element of the “American Dream.” A strong economy, the development
of the interstate highway system, favorable tax laws, and easy financing led to rapid development of the suburbs with predom-
inantly low-density housing. The homeownership rate soared, reaching nearly 70% by the mid-2000s. However, the “Great Re-
cession” that hit in late 2007 brought a housing market crash whose impacts are still felt today. Recovery from the recession has
occurred, but the characteristics of the housing market appear to have moved in a different direction, steered by various demo-
graphic changes occurring within the United States. These changes include racial and ethnic diversification, a growing immigrant
population, and an increasing percentage of non-traditional households. However, the growth and evolving preferences of the
Baby Boomers and Generation Y has also had a major impact on housing supply and demand.

Once preferring large-lot detached homes, the aging Baby Boomer generation (born 1946 to 1964) is expanding the nation’s
senior population and increasing demand for “downsized” units and housing that caters to the needs of seniors. Despite a pref-
erence for many to age in place, a large number of Baby Boomers will be in search of new housing. According to housing market
researcher Arthur C. Nelson, when those age 65 and older move, 80% will vacate single-family houses, but only 41% will move
back into single-family units; the other 59% will located in multiple-family units.'

1 Paragraph Source: Robert Steuteville, “The Coming Housing Calamity,” New Urban News, June 2011.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

11



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Now entering the housing market, Generation Y (those born between the early 1980s and the early 2000s) will account for 75%
to 80% of the owner-occupied housing absorbed by people under 65 before 2020. Different from their parents living preferenc-
es, this generation prefers housing in mixed-use urban environments and increasingly views renting as an advantageous option.

The following national statistics demonstrate the changing trends and emerging preferences related to housing types:

o Since 2009, the number of owner-occupied housing units has fallen by over 300,000, while the number of renter occu-
pied-housing units has risen by over 3 million®

o Renting is more appealing across all age groups, all parts of the U.S., city, suburb, small town and rural*

o The groups that are growing the fastest are people in their mid-20s and empty-nesters in their 50s. These are the groups
that are most likely to seek an alternative to low-density, single-family housing.®

«  More than 60% of Generation Y would prefer to live in a single-family dwelling. However, while this generation prefers
single-family development, they do not have the financial resources to afford this type of product. They have been hit
hard by the recession as they’ve entered independent adulthood. This has reduced their income and limited their ability to
form households and attain homeownership.®

o The projected need for new housing units between 2005 and 2030 is equally divided between attached units including
apartments, townhouses and condos, and small lots (on less than 1/6 acre), with no net increase projected in the need for
houses on larger lots’

o Americans’ ideal communities have a mix of houses, places to walk, and amenities within an easy walk or close drive.
Only 12% say they would prefer a suburban neighborhood with houses only®

Data Conclusion: Changing housing type trends suggest an opportunity to accommodate a diverse mix of housing types
within Oshtemo Village that are desired by individuals of all lifestyles and ages.

Economic Profile

Overview

Since the adoption of the original Village Theme Development Plan in 2006, economic conditions within and around Oshtemo
Village have changed significantly. Beginning in 2007 and extending for several years, the United States experienced an economic
recession that affected all facets of the economy at the national, regional and local levels, including increased unemployment,
reduced incomes, and depressed property values. The nation has emerged from this recession and the local, regional and national
economies are once-again in a period of growth. Since 2010, Oshtemo Township has experienced growth in population, house-
holds, incomes and this growth is expected to continue through 2022. The Township has also witnessed significant new commer-
cial, office and retail development in its various corridors and districts.

Source: “Demographic Challenges and Opportunities for U.S. Housing Markets,” Bipartisan Policy Center, March 2012.

Source: Ryan Noonan, “Understanding the Trend in Multi-Family Housing Growth During the Recovery”, Economic and Statistics Administration, November 25, 2013.
Source: Jeffery Gundlach, Doubleline Capital CEO, as reported by ThinkAdvisor.com, May 7, 2014.

Source: Urban Land Institute, Higher Density Development: Myth or Fact, 2005

Source: 2011 National Community Preference Survey by the National Association of Realtors; RLCO Consumer Research Data; and, Bipartisan Policy Center, “Demographic
Challenges and Opportunities for U.S. Housing Markets”, March 2012.

7 Source: John Pitkin and Dowell Myers, “U.S. Housing Trends: Generational Changes and the Outlook to 20507, 2008.

8 Source: National Association of Realtors, “The 2011 Community Preference Survey”, March 2011.

AN U W N

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

12



Assessment of Existing Conditions

This new commercial, office and retail development has brought about additional competition for the Oshtemo Village area.
Recent commercial development within Oshtemo Township along the US-131 Corridor and its interchanges at Main Street and
Stadium Drive is a primary competitor. Existing and/or planned development within the US-131 Corridor has included:

o West Main Street at 9th Street, West of the US-131 interchange: Walmart, Menards and Meijer big-box retailers along with
other shops and service establishments

o West Main Street at Maple Hill Drive, East of the US-131 interchange: New big-box retailers, shops and service establish-
ments, and hotels planned and/or under construction as part of the Westgate shopping center

» Stadium Drive at Drake Road, East of the US-131 interchange: New big-box retailers, including Field & Stream and Cost-
co, along with other shops and service establishments, planned and/or under construction as part of the Corner @ Drake
shopping center

Beyond local competition within Oshtemo Township itself, there are numerous other sources of competition from the surround-
ing region. Texas Corners, located 5 miles to the south of Oshtemo Village, is a competitor business district that has a similar
character to Oshtemo Village and contains some of the same uses and qualities that the village strives for in this Plan. Both Ka-
lamazoo and Portage have multiple commercial centers serving both specific neighborhoods and the region. These centers have
diverse characteristics and are scattered throughout the metro region.

One of the drivers of the development of this 2019 Update to the Village Theme Development Plan is the perception that, while
business growth appears to be robust elsewhere in Oshtemo Township and the region, business growth is not occurring within
Oshtemo Village (or at least not at a commensurate rate in comparison to other locations in the Township and region).

Retail Supply and Demand

The table on the next page provides a market summary of the retail trade and food & drink industry. For each of the three local
area geographies, the table lists the total number of existing businesses in the retail trade and food & drink industry, the total
supply and demand, retail gap, leakage/surplus factor, and top 5 industry subsectors by positive/negative leakage. The data in this
table was provided by Esri’s Retail Marketplace Profile and is current as of 2017. The terms used in the table, as defined by Esri,
are as follows:

o Supply (Retail Sales): Estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded.
o Demand (Retail Potential): Estimates the expected amount spent by consumers at retail establishments.

o Leakage/Surplus Factor: Presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This is a measure of the relationship between supply
and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents ‘leakage’ of retail op-
portunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn
in from outside the trade area.

o Retail Gap: Represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

13



Assessment of Existing Conditions

MARKET SUMMARY TABLE

Market Characteristics: Retail
Trade and Food & Drink

Oshtemo Township DDA District (Centered at 9th/Stadium)

10-Minute Drive Time Area (Excluding South of

Industry 3-Mile Radius 10-Minute Drive Time Area 1-94 and East of US-131)
Number of Businesses 257 498 134
Demand (Retail Potential) $452,110,722 $1,151,628,082 $359,075,632
Supply (Retail Sales) $1,131,626,375 $1,757,278,152 $535,419,040
Retail Gap ($679,515,653) ($605,650,070) ($176,343,408)
Leakage/Surplus Factor -42.9 -20.8 -19.7

Top 5 Industry Subsectors Where
Demand Exceeds Supply (Leakage)

Top 5 Industry Subsectors Where
Supply Exceeds Demand (Surplus)

Nonstore Retailers

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Food & Beverage Stores

General Merchandise Stores

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers

Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores

Building Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores

Food Services & Drinking Places

Nonstore Retailers

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores
Gasoline Stations

Health & Personal Care Stores

General Merchandise Stores

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers

Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores

Food Services & Drinking Places

Nonstore Retailers

Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores
Gasoline Stations

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers

Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores
General Merchandise Stores

Food & Beverage Stores

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores

Source: Esri Retail Marketplace Profile, 2017

The market summary table provides evidence of a competitive local market, with the current supply exceeding demand for all
three geographies. Whereas an excess of demand indicates an opportunity to capture “more of the market,” an excess supply, such
as that which exists surrounding Oshtemo Village, may be an indicator that a sufficient number of businesses already exist to

meet local retail needs. However, this does not necessarily mean that new or expanded business cannot be supported by the local

market; rather, it may mean that new or expanded businesses would have to draw from a larger geographic area. Additionally,

even in a situation where the overall retail market has more supply than demand, there may be certain industry subsectors where

there is more demand than supply. For each geography, the market summary table lists the top 5 industry subsectors that have
positive leakage factors (i.e., where demand exceeds supply).

Data Conclusion: The overall retail supply for the area surrounding Oshtemo Village exceeds demand. This is evidence of a
competitive local market, where a sufficient number of businesses already exist to meet local retail needs. To overcome this,
new or expanded businesses may need to draw consumers from a larger geographic area. Although an overall over-supply
exists, there are specific industry subsectors which have more demand than supply, representing opportunities for growth
in those particular subsectors. There is an opportunity to capture businesses from these subsectors within Oshtemo Village.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

14



Assessment of Existing Conditions

Transportation Assessment

Oshtemo Village is centered on the major intersection of Stadium Drive and 9th Street. Both 9th
Street and Stadium Drive are primary roads in the County and carry a significant amount of traffic
through the village area. The level of traffic has increased in recent years because of the level of devel-
opment within the Township as well as surrounding areas. The high traffic volumes on both Stadium
Drive and 9th Street represent an opportunity for business development within Oshtemo Village,

but also present a challenge for fostering a safe, pedestrian-oriented, walkable business district. This

narrative presents an assessment of the current transportation network within Oshtemo Village and
the larger Oshtemo DDA District.

Motorized Network

The motorized network within the Oshtemo DDA consists of the major roads of Stadium Drive and
9th Street, as well as other key streets, including Parkview Avenue, Atlantic Avenue and N Avenue.
The transportation network map shows the complete system of roads within the DDA District. All
public roads within the DDA District are under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission of Kalam-
azoo County (RCKC). Thus, Oshtemo Township has limited control of the street network in terms of
design, funding, traffic control, and facilities/amenities within the right-of-way.

The functional classification of the transportation network is indicated on the transportation network
map, based on the National Functional Classification (NFC) system. The two primary considerations
in classifying highway and street networks functionally are access to property and travel mobility, as
defined by trip travel time or operating speed. For example, local roads provide access to property, but
would be rated low in mobility. The basic classifications for the functional system are:

o Arterials - which generally handle longer trips and operate at higher and more uniform speeds
o Collectors - which collect and disperse traffic between arterials and the local roads

e Local roads - which serve the land access function to the residential areas, businesses, individ-
ual properties, and other local areas

Stadium Drive is an east-west, 5-lane road, including a middle turn lane. It is designated by the RCKC
as a county primary road. Per the NFC, it functions as an arterial road. According to RCKC traffic
counts (taken in 2015 or 2016), east of 9th Street, Stadium Drive has an average annual daily traffic
(AADT) count of more than 20,000 vehicles per day. West of 9th Street, Stadium Drive carries more
than 14,000 vehicles per day. West of 8th Street, Stadium Drive carries approximately 12,500 vehicles
per day.

Oshtemo Township DDA District
Transportation Network

0 250 500 1,000
— — et

- Q
WML Ave estone @ s
estone /" Blvd & ol © 9|2
& ar o 3 E %
g o ® s«
g ® & (61
'Té - &
7 ’
s 1
qouge DDA DISTRICT LIMITS BMeridian )/ oL Dr, |
Baton - = “Ave U@
Ave |8 o —I— JG £ © /8\\) el '_:
2 2 2 7 X2 3
2 F - e, _~ 9 5 I
z ® |___'\ a
3 ! Mil 2 ) /
§ - Creek DY
3 .
Saint Charles o 8\ S Cratt Parkview Ave
Pl — " = dcs -
| _J) 2 e
| > o, 7l
A \ S <
25 % 5
@ CI)
£ i
S« &
g\ec’ g 5
] a
| 3
5
] N =
N w

—
=
(@]
S
&
=]
W Wemble;

[}
- (s o
o | s
PO et =
DDA DISTRICTLIMITS | ; S
[
=
| Q\ — Sidewalks
| )
1 S B Arterial Roads
I | Q mmm Collector Roads
- —| . - Local Roads
Q I I_" [ DpaDistrict Limits
E | |_Technology Ave Property Lines
P\ -
I —! E
5
| i E
'l i
W N Ave : | « W N Ave

Sports Dr

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

15



Assessment of Existing Conditions

9th Street is a north-south, 5-lane road, including a middle turn lane. It is designated by the RCKC as a county primary road. Per
the NFC, it functions as an arterial road. According to RCKC traffic counts (taken in 2015), within the DDA District, 9th Street
has an AADT count of just under 12,000 vehicles per day.

Parkview Avenue is a 2-lane road that extends into the DDA District from the east and ends at Stadium Drive. It is classified as
a county primary road by the RCKC and functions as an arterial by the NFC. Within the DDA District, it carries slightly more
than 4,000 vehicles per day, per 2014 RCKC traffic counts.

Atlantic Avenue is 2-lane road that connects 9th Street and Parkview Avenue. Classified as a county local road, it functions as a
local road per the NFC. As of 2006 RCKC traffic counts, it carried slightly less than 3,000 vehicles per day.

N Avenue runs east-west and serves as the boundary between Oshtemo Township to the north and Texas Township to the south.
It is a 2-lane road with a middle turn lane in some segments. It is classified as a county primary road by the RCKC and functions
as a collector road by the NFC. East of 9th Street, N Avenue carries an AADT count of approximately 6,500 vehicles per day
(2006 count). West of 9th Street, N Avenue carries approximately 3,500 vehicles per day (2016 count).

As a result of the high traffic levels along Stadium Drive and 9th Street, it is very difficult to maneuver in and around the village
at peak times of the day. Left turns into and out of businesses at peak times are challenging. Furthermore, with the number of
vehicles turning left from Stadium Drive onto 9th Street, the stacking lane at this signal backs up over a quarter of a mile tem-
porarily blocking other vehicles from crossing that lane. Maneuvering is especially difficult for trucks and pedestrians. Without
access roads, service roads, or alleys, trucks must also use these primary roads for deliveries, trash pick-up, or other service. For
some businesses and/or dwellings located along 9th Street and Stadium Drive, maneuvering in and out of parking areas requires
use of the right of way, which blocks traffic and creates a dangerous situation.

Crash Statistics

The intersection of 9th Street and Stadium Drive is one of the most dangerous intersections in Kalamazoo County. According to
data from the Michigan State Police Traffic Crash Reporting Unit, this intersection had 46 total crashes in 2015, which ranked it
as the #5 intersection in the County in terms of total crashes. Possibly as a result of recent RCKC intersection improvements, this
intersection had only 26 total crashes in 2017, which dropped it in the rankings to #16 in the County. Although the number of
crashes has declined in the past two years, motorized and pedestrian safety at the intersection remains a concern.

Transit Facilities

Kalamazoo Metro Transit provides fixed-route public transit service to the Kalamazoo urbanized area, consisting of the cities of
Kalamazoo, Portage and Parchment and the townships of Comstock, Kalamazoo, Texas and Oshtemo. Presently, Bus Route #11
extends into the DDA District along Stadium Drive (from the east) and then turns south to run along 9th Street. There are 13 bus
stops along this route within the DDA District.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

16



Assessment of Existing Conditions

In addition, other available transit options include the Metro County Connect shared ride system and Community Service Vans.
The Metro County Connect service is a federally-mandated, curb-to-curb, ADA/paratransit service and is open to all citizens

in the county with priority for people with disabilities and seniors. The Community Service Van program provides vehicles to
approved non-profit agencies serving seniors and individuals with disabilities at no cost.

A review of the Kalamazoo Metro Transit Ten-Year Vision Service Plan, September 2015, did not reveal any major changes
planned for Bus Route #11.

Non-Motorized Network

At present, limited non-motorized facilities are found within Oshtemo Village and the larger DDA District. No multi-use
pathways or trails extend into or through the DDA District. As shown on the transportation network map, only a limited and
fragmented network of sidewalks presently exists. Along Stadium Drive, several stretches of sidewalk exist on the north side of
the street, but are not connected to provide a continuous route. Along 9th Street, south of Stadium Drive, a continuous sidewalk
route does exist along the west side of the street, extending to N Avenue. On the local streets of the DDA District, sidewalks are
sporadically found.

Because of the limited system of sidewalks, and lack of multi-use pathways and bicycle lanes, pedestrian and bicycle maneuver-
ability within Oshtemo Village is limited and can be dangerous. Where sidewalks do not exist, pedestrians are requited to walk
on the road or over the grassy street lawn. At the intersection of 9th Street and Stadium Drive, recent county street improvements
have resulted in the installation of marked crosswalks and “push to walk” buttons. However, the widths of both streets in Oshte-
mo Village, coupled with heavy traffic volumes, can result in an imposing crossing from the perspective of a pedestrian.

A commonly utilized measure of neighborhood walkability is made available by WalkScore®, a website that gives scores to neigh-
borhoods across the United States using a patented system based on factors such as existing walking routes to neighborhood
amenities and pedestrian friendliness. According to WalkScore®, the area surrounding the intersection of Stadium Avenue and
9th Street has a score of 39 on a rating scale between 0 (car dependent) and 100 (not-car dependent). Any score between 25 and
49 is considered “car-dependent’, where most errands require a car.

Summary of Transportation Plans

This section provides a summary of transportation related plans that may have an impact on the future transportation network
within Oshtemo Village. A review of these plans is particularly important given that Oshtemo Township and the Downtown
Development Authority do not have ownership of the road system. The summary of transportation plans map on the next page
illustrates the key recommendations applicable within the DDA District as documented in these transportation plans.

2045 Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study (KATS) Metropolitan Transportation Plan
KATS, the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Kalamazoo Region has prepared and adopted a long-range

transportation plan (adopted in 2016). This study first identified deficient road segments within the region where the existing/
future volume of the road significantly exceeds capacity. Stadium Drive, from 9th Street to Parkview Avenue was identified as one

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

17



Assessment of Existing Conditions

of those segments. Several strategies for improvement of Stadium Drive were proposed in the plan,
including reducing person trips or vehicle miles/hours traveled, shifting automobile trips to other
modes, and improving roadway operations (signal timing, turning lanes, etc.).

Non-motorized projects identified in local and regional non-motorized plans were also included as
part of the KATS Metropolitan Transportation Plan. These projects represent a high-level planning
guide for project implementation and their inclusion in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan does
not guarantee funding. Their purpose is to help the MPO identify regionally significant priority
projects and to enhance the cooperation and coordination between jurisdictions for facility devel-
opment. Proposed non-motorized projects within the Oshtemo DDA include:

o  Stadium Drive, 8th Street to 11th Street - Sidewalk along both sides of street (proposed 2018)

o 9th Street, KL Avenue to N Avenue - Sidewalks along both sides of street (proposed 2021-
2025)

o  Parkview Avenue, Stadium Drive to Drake Road - Sidewalks along both sides of street (pro-
posed 2026-2030)

o Atlantic Avenue, 9th Street to Parkview Avenue - Sidewalks along both sides of street (pro-
posed 2026-2030)

»  Proposed shared-use pathway, extending southwest from 9th Street

The location of these non-motorized projects are highlighted on the summary of transportation
plans map.

GO! Green Oshtemo (2019)

The GO! Green Oshtemo Plan, adopted in early 2019, is the first of its kind for Oshtemo Township
where parks, recreation, non-motorized facilities, and conservation of open space and greenways is
planned in a comprehensive and coordinated way. The Plan is a guide that addresses expressed com-
munity desires related to these important amenities, which play a vital role in the lives of Township
residents.

The GO! Green Oshtemo Plan is all about connections — connecting residents to those amenities
that support and enhance the quality of life in the Township. To this end, a Non-Motorized Action
Plan was prepared as one of three key elements of the GO! Green Oshtemo Plan (the other two be-
ing a Parks Action Plan and a Conservation Action Plan). The Non-motorized Action Plan consists
of a series of goals and action strategies, a “big picture” conceptual framework plan illustrating how
the future non-motorized network may develop over time, and detailed recommendations for vari-
ous types, locations and designs of non-motorized facilities throughout the Township.

Oshtemo Township DDA District
Summary of

Transportation Plans

\
1.

St

ki

DDA DISTRICT LIMITS

L>eek Dr

0 250 500 1,000

Wildemere St

Meridian
= RAve

c
=
N ol
2 E 5
=
srﬂ =
Sz w
~
b Stz
o o E I Su
- ¢¢ 3 Sy
% v N
[} ¢¢ Qo
I ¢¢ ig
H & Proposed Paved Shoulders/Bike
¢¢Tall Oaks Dr ® ® ® lanes(GO! Green)
| ¢¢¢ I Proposed Off-Road Trails (GO! Green, KATS)
y& C)a‘6 Dr V&Y = Proposed Shared Use Paths (GO! Green)
‘0 = l o o> NdUs] ———  proposed Sidewalks (GO! Green, KATS)
= o Bl P e
DDA DISTRICTLIMITS I Corridors Proposed for Streetscaping (DDA)
1 [CZ] ppaDistrict Limits
I ——— Major Roads
) ——— Local Roads
L -I : Property Lines
(] Key:
GO! Green = GO! Green Oshtemo Plan 2019
I KATS = 2045 Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
c Metropolitan Transportation Plan, 2016
‘9/1/6’ 1 DDA = Oshtemo DDA Streetscape Plan, 2015
o)
I | g
1 - o
L, W N Ave r W N Ave
N |

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

18



Assessment of Existing Conditions

The Non-Motorized Action Plan includes several key recommendations pertaining to non-motorized facility development with-
in the Oshtemo Village/DDA District area. These recommendations are summarized below:

o  Stadium Drive Shared Use Path — Expected to be 6-foot one-way paths on both sides of the street throughout the Oshte-
mo Village/DDA District. This is a critical component of both the Township and regional non-motorized network. It will
offer better access to the City of Kalamazoo and the retail and employment centers found within, as well as providing a
link to Oshtemo Village.

o Construct new widened shoulders/bike lanes within the Stadium Drive roadway throughout the Township.
« Stadium Drive Bike Lanes — Construct new widened shoulders/bike lanes within the roadway throughout the Township.

o 9th Street Shared Use Path - Expected to be 6-foot one-way paths on both sides of the street throughout the Oshtemo

Village/DDA District. The project will likely be installed in two phases, the first phase between Erie Street and Quail Run Oshtemo DDA Streetscape Plan:
Drive. ; '
Hve 9th Street Design
»  Construct new widened shoulders/bike lanes within the 9th Street roadway throughout the Township. Source: OCBA Landscape Architects

AP

+ Construction of an off-road trail within the former Fruitbelt Railroad corridor (now owned by AT&T) that runs from
Flesher Field Park southwest through the Township to the Texas Township border.

o Parkview Avenue Shared Use Path — Proposed to be a 10-foot wide shared use path along the north side of Parkview Ave-
nue, from Stadium Drive extending east through the DDA District and beyond to Drake Road.

o  Atlantic Avenue Shared Use Path - Proposed to be a 10-foot wide shared use path along the north side of Atlantic Avenue,
between 9th Street and Parkview Avenue.

The location of these GO! Green Oshtemo non-motorized projects are highlighted on the summary of transportation plans map.

Oshtemo Township DDA Streetscape Plan

The Oshtemo Township DDA developed a streetscape plan in 2015, which outlined roadway and right-of-way improvements
within selected corridors of Oshtemo Village and the larger DDA District. Specifically, the streetscape plan provides improve-
ment recommendations for the following corridor segments:

o Village Core (Stadium Drive at 9th Street)

-
w
w
[4
=4
(2]
X
=
o

e North 9th Street
o South 9th Street

E AND ATLANTIC AVENUE
REALIGNED TO CREATE A

° West Stadlum Drive \FER INTERSECTION WiTH
o Atlantic and Parkview

o Erie and Chime

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 19



Assessment of Existing Conditions

The most intensive streetscape improvements are slated for the Oshtemo Village core surrounding the intersection of 9th Street
and Stadium Drive. Proposed streetscape improvements for the village core include:

o Wide sidewalks with decorative paving

o  Street trees and planter boxes

o Pedestrian scale lighting

o Decorative walls

o Mid-block crossing

Outside of the core 9th Street/Stadium Drive intersection, proposed streetscape improvements generally include concrete side-
walks, street trees, and marked crosswalks. Along both 9th Street and Stadium Drive within the DDA District, several mid-block
crossings with landscaped medians are proposed in strategic locations.

The property at the northwest corner of 9th Street and Stadium Drive received focused attention in the DDA Streetscape Plan. At
that time, the Plan called for the development of a new civic space that would serve as a gateway to Oshtemo Village with ameni-
ties such as a clock tower, seating and a small off-street public parking area. Since the adoption of the plan, the DDA has worked
toward implementation of this gateway civic space. The currently contemplated design calls for a more naturalized gateway
space, with a combination of walkways, ornamental trees and grasses with potential water features (doubling as storm retention).
A masonry wall with “Oshtemo Village” entry sign is proposed at the corner of the site.

As the RCKC has jurisdiction over County and local roads, coordination and “buy-in” from the RCKC is necessary to fully
implement the streetscape plan. In this regard, certain elements of the streetscape plan, such as the reduced turning radii and
mid-block crossings, have not been fully supported by the RCKC.

Proposed Gateway Feature

Northwest Corner of 9th Street and Stadium Drive
Source: OCBA Landscape Architects

Oshtemo Village Corner Plaza

March 14,2013

Sign Wall Elevation @

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

20



Public Input

PuBLIiC INPUT

This chapter summarizes the public input solicited during the 2019 Update planning process. Public engagement in this effort
was critical to confirm the preferred vision for Oshtemo Village and evaluate the effectiveness of the original plan. Public engage-
ment during the planning process was achieved primarily through stakeholder interviews and two open house sessions.

Stakeholder Interviews

In May 2017, stakeholder interviews were conducted to help evaluate the effectiveness of the Village Theme Development Plan
and adopted Village Form Based Code (FBC) Overlay. Selected with the assistance of Township Staft and the DDA, the stake-
holders represented varying interests, including citizens, township/community leaders, property owners, business owners, and
the real estate/development community. In total, letters were sent to 24 prospective interviewees. In the end, facilitated discus-
sions were held with approximately 15 stakeholders.

There was a collective feeling that the DDA’s greatest asset and incentive for economic development is the number of cars that
pass through on Stadium Drive every day. However, with commuters currently finding no reason or incentive to stop, this key
strength and opportunity is not being capitalized. Considerable discussion revolved around the reasons why development/rede-
velopment is not occurring within the DDA District, yet seems to be occurring elsewhere in the Township and region. Several

stakeholders discussed the need to reconcile market rents of the area with the rents that would be required to create an incentive
for redevelopment.

Oshtemo (harterTownshi: -
. . . . . town Development Authort —_—
There is a shared belief, certainly among property owners and investors/developers, that certain aspects of the Form Based Downto! —
Code are holding back the development of the four corners area (intersection of Stadium Drive and 9th Street), in particular, Village Theme g:;e:;f:‘;onu
and the DDA District, in general. The primary concerns with the Form Based Code are the required build-to-lines (too close Re“ef" -ty -
to the street right-of-way) and the prohibition of oft-street parking within the front yard. From the perspective of business Public Open
owners and developers, the visibility of available and easily accessible parking is critical to their success. Stakeholders largely o
. . ip is begin-
agreed that changes to the Form Based Code should be considered by the DDA/Township in order to eliminate these barriers ?‘f:;e;“;’“f:‘;?f;:a:;hm\.pgaze
and/or disincentives to development. In assessing the strengths of the Form Based Code, stakeholders largely agreed that the tpt:eV~¥;gse$:r:s[‘;f‘g‘:‘;“‘s‘;‘:m
> . . . . . . « . » . n. Thi
Code’s emphasis on ensuring high quality architectural styles was appropriate and necessary to ensure that the “village” design fu:urelandusea?§e;ﬂ:%rgigit
i 3
theme is achieved. V&:‘e":r:‘;j]m;;;g cradumbrve
and 9th Street). We need your help
to confirm the preferred vision for
Open House #1 the districtand evaluate the effec-
tiveness of the plan. s willbe 3 great op-
d share your thoughts at2 s d|sthe consultant team,
Pploer:::i:; \::re y:: tolearn about the proje('s,f t;:k \:!Stttzxvé::‘“epa?;z :““e duringthe open house
dshare your thoughts aboutth fuure o he dFC:
Background i
On Wednesday, July 12, 2017, from 3:30pm to 5:00pm and 6:00pm to 7:30pm, a Public Open House was held at the Oshtemo Wher? MY ::;::Enu,s,3:3°,mtoszoopm
Community Center. The workshop sought to gain citizen feedback as part of a planning process to review and update the DDA’ Evening Hours: 600 prm to7:30P e
. i \1
currently adopted Village Theme Development Plan. Specifically, the citizens who attended the workshop were asked to share Where:  Oshtemo Community Center, 6407 Parkviet
their thoughts on:
Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT

21



Public Input

Whether the vision from the Village Theme Development Plan continues to reflect local values, desires and needs

Whether the Form Based Code for Oshtemo Village, which was adopted after the plan, has been successful and results in
quality development

Whether changes to the Village Theme Development Plan are needed

Whether changes to the Form Based Code/zoning requirements are needed

Four stations were established at the open house, including an existing conditions station, Village Theme Development Plan
evaluation station, Form Based Code evaluation station, and comments station. Open house attendees had the opportunity to
explore the various materials at their own pace and interact with Township staff and project team members. Comment sheets
were also available for attendees to fill out.

Summary of Comments Received

The various comments received during the workshop, including both written and verbal comments, are listed below. The com-
ments are generally organized by topic, but are listed in no particular order.

Comments Related to the Vision for Oshtemo Village

Like the idea of a “village theme” but maybe it could be incorporated into a less stringent zoning form.

Possibly make local businesses the theme or focus of development in the area since larger scale businesses are occurring
in other corridors in Oshtemo.

Would like to see a “city center” developed in the 9th Street/Stadium corridor.

In a perfect world, a community needs a “heart”. This intersection is too important to remain in the chaotic, undeveloped
state in which it has existed for too long.

The envisioned model is in place on South Westnedge by Meijer. Would like to know how many accidents occur there. It
is very difficult to go south on Westnedge.

This is not the right area to place the “Village Center”. Should move it west to Village Place. It has the necessary existing
infrastructure.

Let the market forces take over. It’s too late to try to redevelop this area through zoning regulations.... the time to do this
was 30 years ago.

Comments Related to Redevelopment Efforts/Opportunities

The old car wash should either be demolished or required to be repainted.

Would like to see more options for development at Stadium and 9th Street including building setbacks from the road,
drive through as an option, and less space used for 12’ wide sidewalks.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT

22



Public Input

The village plaza concept is not ideal, especially when there are other recreational options in the area.

Looking forward to the development of the corner.

Would like Harding’s to expand and see other shops in the area.

The project is not worth a property tax increase.

Proposed pedestrian plaza will not be used.

Traditional retail and office service with great architecture and landscaping is needed.

People are looking for convenience. This is a busy intersection and ease of use would be helpful.

Strong emphasis should be placed on safety and accessibility (especially pedestrian traffic) over beauty and business.

The proposed village plaza makes no sense. People are not going to drive to the plaza to sit there and congregate. It’s also
too loud due to the traffic.

The best uses in this area are convenience retail, office, service — uses that will be convenient for the traveling public and
support existing park and recreational users in the area, i.e. ice cream shop and pharmacy.

Comments Related to the Transportation System

Stadium and 9th St. is a major corridor.

Traffic in the area is an issue.

Need sidewalks and bike paths.

The location of bike paths in the middle of the road is a bad idea.

Improve traffic flow. Install roundabouts or traffic circles.

Central biking plan on Stadium Dr. is a bad idea.

Eliminate hazardous traffic light on Parkview at Stadium Dr. - replace with a roundabout for better flow.
Wide and safe sidewalks are needed that connect to the park.

In its current state, the Village Core is not pedestrian friendly. Sidewalks end abruptly. While there are nice handicapped
accessible crosswalks, they end at the corner into a grassy hill and are not accessible.

Does not like the intermittent islands planned for the Village Center. Due to heavy traffic conditions in the corridor, driv-
ers sometimes need to use the turn lane to enter traffic.

Parking along Stadium would make the bus stops a mess.

A high priority needs to be creating sidewalks, especially in the areas of Stadium Dr. and 9th St. to Pinehurst Apts., and,
Stadium Dr. and 9th St. to Prairie Ridge Elementary.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT

23



Public Input

Daily, I see people walking in the street to get home or get to the bus stop, especially in the winter. It is only a matter of
time before a tragic accident occurs. This could be prevented by the installation of sidewalks that are kept clear of snow
and in walkable condition.

Would like to see priority on sidewalks on Stadium Dr. to Pinehurst and on 9th St. to Prairie Ridge.

Would like to see a Metro Bus stop at Prairie Ridge Elementary School. Until this happens, there will be even more foot
traffic on 9th St. trying to get to and from the school. And, there are currently no sidewalks on 9th St. to Prairie Ridge,
making it dangerous for kids and parents.

The area is not walkable - install missing sidewalks.
Stadium Dr. is too busy to promote pedestrian development.

Need sidewalk connection to the park on 9th Street and wider sidewalks.

Comments Related to Zoning Requirements/Form Based Code

Given the length of time that the FBC has been in place, it seems it has had a direct impact on new development in this
corridor. The FBC should be reviewed and possibly lessen the restrictions that seem to be stopping new development.

If lessening the form in some way would help development, then so be it. However, not to the extent that large big box
stores would come in.

Flexible zoning with the ability to incorporate drive-through businesses is needed.
Drive-throughs should be allowed.
The requirement to build close to the road needs to change.

Like the landscape concept for the intersection but would like to see space between the proposed landscaping at the cor-
ner/intersection and increased setbacks for buildings.

Overlay zoning with buildings next to the road is not desirable.

May be more beneficial if a substantial amount of parking is located in the front because loading zones and deliveries are
better suited for the rear.

People enjoy the depth view from the road, i.e. seeing the landscaping, parking lot, and building set back from the road.
Having the building set back from the road makes it easier to see and understand where to go.

The FBC in its current form will be a hindrance to future development.

Requiring buildings be up against the road is not fit for this area.

People want to see activity and easy access.

Parking in the rear makes the building look empty. Loading areas will be a challenge.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT

24



Since the adoption of the FBC, no new development has occurred in the area.

Oshtemo Township should sell its properties at the corner of Stadium/9th St. where the proposed village plaza would go.
Remove the FBC regulations from this property to attract retail development with drive through.

Business types allowed under the FBC are not pedestrian oriented businesses — businesses such as insurance sales, real
estate offices, etc. do not draw in pedestrians.

The various comments received during the open house indicate that the majority of citizens continue to desire a small-town “vil-
lage” feel for the Oshtemo Township DDA District. However, considerable input was received related to the challenge of estab-
lishing a safe and appealing pedestrian environment given the high traffic levels along 9th Street and Stadium Drive. Sidewalks,
pathways, crosswalks and other road improvements were commonly suggested to correct these existing deficiencies. Numerous
attendees expressed their concern that there has not been any real development in the area in a long time. Some perceive that this
lack of development is due, in part, to the stringent Form Based Code standards currently in place being a deterrent for business

development. Many attendees felt that the current Form Base Code standards could be relaxed or made more flexible related to
issues such as building setbacks and front yard parking.

Open House #2

Public Input

Oshtemo Charter Township :
Downtown Development Authority

Public Open House

Background

On Thursday, October 5, 2017, from noon to 1:30pm and 4:30 pm to 6pm, a Public Open House was held at the Oshtemo
Community Center. This open house was held as part of the Township’s continued review and update of the currently adopted
Village Theme Development Plan. This second public open house included the viewing of alternative development plans for
selected sites within the DDA, and attendees were asked to evaluate the merits of the development plans. Open house attend-

ees had the opportunity to explore the various materials at their own pace and interact with Township staff and project team
members. Several comment sheets were also available for attendees to fill out.

Evaluation of Current Downtown Development Principles

One of the first open house stations asked attendees to review the original Village Theme Development Plan “Downtown
Development Principles” and indicate whether such principles were “strongly applicable”, “moderately applicable” or “not at all
applicable” today. These principles included: promotion of diversity of use; emphasis on compactness; intensity; accessibility;
maintenance of balance; creation of functional links; and, construction of a positive identity. For each original principle except
one, every attendee responded that such principle was either strongly applicable or moderately applicable. For one original

principle (“Intensity”), some respondents did not feel that it remained applicable, with the remaining respondents being split
between strongly applicable and moderately applicable.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update

When:

October 5,2017

Mid-Day Hours: Noon 0 1:30pm
Evening Hours: 4:30pm to 6:00pm

Oshtemo Charter Township s continuing u;
review and update of the currently adog:lz
Village Theme Development Plan. This ,
plan outlinesa vision for future |§n’d use a;)n :
development within the 1ownst!|ps DQA is )
trict (the area surrounding Stadium Drive an

9th Street).

Where:
Oshtemo Community (Center
6407 Parkview Avenue
initial public open house was heldinJuly
;t\: tl\‘;::a:igzen anz stakeholder feedba(kAon
various concepts outlined in the Plan. This
second publicopen house will mcludelthe o
viewing of alternative development p! ands
selected sites within the DDA, am? attendees
will be asked to evaluate the merits of the
development plans.

Please come and share your tl,oughts att

this PublicOpen House! This will be 2 grgad
opportunity for you to learn about the pro;: ;
talk with Township staff and the consultanf
team, and share your thoughtsl about ’fhe |:‘
ture of the district. Come any time during the
open house hours.

October 3,2019 DRAFT

25



Public Input

Related to the evaluation of the original Downtown Development Principles, the following open-ended comments were noted by
open house attendees:

« Implementation plans need to have sidewalks installed early rather than later. We are tired of walking on Stadium Drive
to get into town.

o Ifthe vision originally planned is not attracting businesses, it is possible to keep plans in place, but market and solicit
differently? I believe it is a great, unique vision for the area. However, the strict variances, codes etc. limit the percent of
business that could come.

o  Creation of functional links - this is still generally applicable except for where resources are spent to promote pedestrian
traffic across most controlled 9th/Stadium Intersection

«  Construction of a positive identity — I don’t believe we have the type of environment where folks would want to “linger” I
agree that quality architecture and materials should still apply.

o Intensity — Less open space and less buffer and setback requirements would promote more development and intensity.

o Accessibility - The market that lives, works, and plays in suburban/rural Oshtemo wants familiar accessibility and traffic
patterns and parking that is found in suburban planning.

o  Diversity of use - Needs to: 1) not mandate multiple uses, 2) reflect that most people will drive to locations and are most
comfortable with suburban parking arrangements and access, 3) needs to add uses and design that passby traffic wants
like convenience retail and drive-through access.

«  Emphasis on compactness/walkability - Within each development this is still relevant. But... it is unrealistic to assume App maCh. to.DeStgn & Layout:
walkability to occur safely across major arterial roads like Stadium and 9th Street. So resources should not be wasted to Building Setbacks
incorporate walkability that is unlikely to occur on a meaningful basis.

Generous Building
Setbacks

Building Design and Site Layout Survey

The open house included a survey which provided visual examples of various approaches to building design and site layout for
selected topics. The survey was designed to gather thoughts about each topic/approach and its appropriateness within Oshtemo
Village. Below is a summary of the survey results for each question, along with open-ended responses.

== B Limited Building Setbacks

L. Which of the approaches to building setbacks are appropriate within the Village Core Area?

Generous Building Setbacks - 3 responses
Limited Building Setbacks - 5 responses
No Building Setbacks — 7.5 responses
Other - 0 responses

No Building Setbacks
(Building Located on Front Lot
Line)

Please explain your answer to the question above, expanding upon why you feel certain approaches are or are not appropriate.

o Prefer parking to be hidden or screened. Enhanced visual and clear destination (store identification w/o extensive sig-
nage).
Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT 26




Public Input

o No building setbacks is more conducive to walking.

o Retailers/restaurants/office uses today want their main entry to be visible from the road, and parking to be adjacent to the
main entry. Also, the ability to accommodate drive-through traffic is critical and must be considered.

o Busy area with congested drives and multiple lights — no building setbacks would only further issue. Generous building
setbacks are nice for accessibility, however, the businesses may not get the drive by traffic they desire.

o Generous or limited - Easier to view property without confusion. Accessibility and views are important. Is it easy to get in
an out?

«  Zoning should be flexible to allow generous or no building setbacks. Neither should be mandated. Flexibility should be
allowed as all sites and how they are developed need individual consideration.

o Limited - We don't want to see huge parking lots on the street.
o I prefer the buildings set close to the street, but understand that this is not always feasible.
«  No building setbacks makes a walkable community.

o No building setbacks. You have 5 lanes at 45 mph - you cannot get center green area improvement to existing buildings
now will not allow for any change for 20-40 years.

o To promote development, the setback that's most suitable (any of the 3 options) to the property owner, may make the
most sense. Provided it designed in a way that promotes a beautify professional appearance.

o Limited building setbacks — The area defined as village core is fragmented at best. Theme overlay is very challenging with
the diversity of existing development. Approach to Design & Layout:
Building Heights

o No building setbacks — Don’t want suburban look. Need “small town” feel.

2. Which of the approaches to building height are appropriate within the Village Core Area?

1-Story Building - 5 responses

1-Story Building with Appearance of 2-Story - 5 responses ; “
2-Story Building - 6 responses :stery Blking st e
3-Story Building - 2.5 responses

Other - 1 responses

Please explain your answer to the question above, expanding upon why you feel certain approaches are or are not appropriate.

o I prefer a mixture of views.

2-Story Building 3-Story Building

o If planned and designed properly, all options shown on the previous page could fit well within the Village Core Area.

o 3-story buildings may obstruct views of smaller businesses and Oshtemo is a quaint area — smaller buildings will help
keep up the “small town feel”

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT 27



Public Input

The zoning should be flexible to accommodate single or multiple story... the market will decide what is needed with rea-
sonable design preferences — but not mandates.

Village feel and area. Large buildings will take over the village feel.
Any of the above could be appropriate, in my opinion.

Larger buildings will slow traffic down.

Ditto building setbacks (any of the 4 options).

A variety is suitable and appropriate.

Which of the approaches to location of parking are appropriate within the Village Core Area?

Parking in Front Yard Not Allowed - 6 responses
Parking in Front Yard Allowed - 7 responses
Other - 0.5 responses

Please explain your answer to the question above, expanding upon why you feel certain approaches are or are not appropriate.

4.

Prefer to view, able to directly identify stores and enhanced landscaping and not a car lot.

In order to attract various users, parking near the front entry will be critical.

Parking behind buildings makes the businesses have better curb appeal and unrestricted advertising from roadway.
Parking in front yard allowed - Easier line of sight with some setback and the ability to see ways of access better.
Flexibility to allow both but not mandate it. Generally, the market wants parking in front.

Careful not to get too much parking in front - it deters from building and businesses. Emphasis should be on landscape
and sidewalks to emphasize pedestrian/bicycle traffic.

Limited parking in front yard is probably most feasible.
More pleasant view with no front yard parking.

People are lazy want to drive up to front door.

Again, a variety based on current development makes sense.

Parking in front yard not allowed - need small town look.

Which of the approaches to the location of drive-through facilities are appropriate within the Village Core Area?

Rear Yard Only Drive-Through (No Front or Side Yard) - 5.5 responses
Rear or Side Yard Only Drive-Through (No Front Yard) - 6 responses

Approach to Design & Layout:
Location of Parking

Parking In Front Yard Allowed

Approach to Design & Layout:
Location of Drive-Through Facilities

-~ Rear Yard Only Drive-Through
o (NoFront or Side Yard)

Rear or Side Yard Only Drive-
Through
(No Front Yard)

(M Drive-Through Allowed in Any
N Yard

%
%3,4’ \ franrlve-Through
2 ™,

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT

28



Public Input

Drive Through Allowed in Any Yard - 2.5 responses
Other - 1.5 responses

Please explain your answer to the question above, expanding upon why you feel certain approaches are or are not appropriate.

+  Prefer rear yard only, or side yard but no front exit.

o No preference. Most important aspect is that a drive-through would be permitted.

o Green space visible from roadway increases curb appeal.

o Accessibility is a concern but so is view. Side or rear is better for sitting vehicles and not blocking the front.

« There needs to be flexibility in location and quantity. The intersection of 9th/Stadium is a major artery and zoning should
allow convenience type retail, access, parking, and drive-through.

o Prefer no drive-through businesses in village. But, if there are some rear only to keep appearance of village and landscap-
ing.

o People need to see how busy the place is.
o Rear or side yard is best visual regardless of theme development.

o No drive-through should be allowed. Want walkable area. Drive throughs are everywhere else.

Generally, the results from the Building Design and Site Layout Survey are a mixed-bag, with varied responses and no clear
preferences. Related to building setbacks, most respondents preferred no building setbacks (7.5 responses), but limited building
setbacks received 5 responses. Related to building height, 2-story buildings were the most preferred (6 responses), but 1-story
buildings were deemed appropriate by many respondents as well. Related to the location of parking, the most respondents (7)
preferred parking behind the buildings, but allowing parking in front of buildings was close behind (6 responses). Related to
the location of drive-through facilities, most people either preferred rear drive-throughs (5.5 responses) or rear or side drive-
throughs (6 responses). Front yard drive-throughs (2.5 responses) were not preferred.

Alternative Concepts Evaluation

Alternative conceptual development plans were prepared for two existing sites within the study area (Site A and Site B) as an
evaluation tool for use during the Public Open House. Site A is located on the west side of 9th Street, north of Stadium Drive,
and Site B is located on the north side of Stadium Drive, east of 9th Street. Both sites encompass existing commercial shopping
centers within Oshtemo Village. Two concepts (Alternative A and Alternative B) were prepared for each site. Using a rating score
range of -3 to +3 (positive scores advance standard, negative scores do not advance standard), attendees were asked to review the
alternative conceptual development plans and rate the plans based on specific evaluation standards.

Generally, for both sites, Alternative A most closely follows the current form-based code requirements, while Alternative B
reflects an approach that deviates from the form-based code requirements. Both Alternative A concepts show buildings located
on the front lot lines with no setbacks, parking behind buildings, and drive-through lanes behind buildings. Both Alternative B

Site A: Existing Conditions |

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT



Public Input

concepts show buildings with limited setbacks, limited parking areas in front
of the buildings, and side or front drive-through lanes. All concepts feature
design treatments such as screening walls, street trees, parking lot landscaping,

Site A: Concept Alternative A

. | Site Statistics:
Plan View / 26,400 5q, ft. of total new/reconfigured building space, consisting of:

+ 5,600 5q. ft. multi-tennant building

+ 17,200 sq. ft. multi-tennant building + 3,600 5. ft. reconfigured building

options.

ed 15

sidewalks and internal pedestrian circulation. These alternative concepts are -

included on the following pages.

For Site A, the summary table below lists the total scores for each alternative for

each evaluation standard.

Site A - Total Scores for Each

Evaluation Standard Slternatve
Alternative A Alternative B

Compatibility with Adjacent Land|

12 21.5
Uses
Project Feasibility -8 16.5
Economic Vitality 15 22
Safe & Efficient Pedestrian & 18 20
Vehicular Circulation
Positive Aesthetic/Visual

18 21
Character
Public Open Spaces 10 9
TOTALS 65 110

560050 . ootprint

Xisting Bi g Kept but
with New Facade

Oshte ownship DDA: Village Theme Development Plan Review

Local Street (refer to Plan View)

Site A: Concept Alternative B

Site Statistics:
26,400 5q. ft. of total new/existing building space, consisting of:
‘ + 22,500 5. ft. existing multi-tennant building

+ 3,900 sq. ft. new multi-tennant building

Plan View \ion

Existing Building
with New Facade

Oshtemo Township DDA: Village Theme Development Plan Review

Birds Eye liew

K WapeTriv

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update

October 3, 2019 DRAFT

30



Public Input

For Site B, the summary table below lists the total scores for each alternative for

each evaluation standard.

Site B - Total Scores for Each

Evaluation Standard Alteinative
Alternative A Alternative B
C tibility with Adj t
ompatibility wi jacen > .

Land Uses
Project Feasibility 2 15.5
Economic Vitality 20 26
Safe & Efficient Pedestrian &

13.5 20.5
Vehicular Circulation
Positive Aesthetic/Visual

16.5 22.5
Character
Public Open Spaces 5 20
TOTALS 69 131.5

The results of the evaluation surveys show a clear preference for Alternative B

for both Site A and Site B.

Site B: Concept Alternative A

Site Statistics:
65,000 54 ft. of total new/expanded building space, consisting of:
- 29,0005, ft. grocery store - 8,000 5q. ft. multi-tennant building
+ 2,0005q, ft. coffee shop + 26,000 5q, ft. mixed-use buildings (2 total)

Plan View

eserved for
FutureDevelopment

ExstingBuidings
‘o Remain

Propused 1:Story
CoffeShop
00054,

" roposed 5tory and
NoltiTemmant Buldng — ExpandedroceyStore
800054, . fooprnt B as0sa.f1)

Site Statistics:

65,000 sq. ft. of total new/expanded building space, consisting of:
+ 29,000 5. ft. grocery store + 8,000 5q. ft. multi-tennant building
+ 2,000 5q. ft. coffee shop + 26,000 5. ft. mixed-use building

options.

Oshtemo Township DDA: ge Theme Development Plan Review

istingBuldings
toRemain

Proposed 1:Story
Coffeshop
200054, t)

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update

October 3, 2019 DRAFT

31



Planning Areas

PLANNING AREAS Oshtemo Township DDA District

Planning areas are distinct areas of development within the village study area. They consist of a mix Planning Areas
of land uses with unique characteristics. They are distinct because of the uses, the character of the
buildings, or the fabric of the community.

0 250 500 1,000

Planning Areas Designated

The planning areas map illustrates the three character areas, as listed and described below. The
planning areas are provided as a means of organizing the design principles and guidelines outlined
in this plan.

1
oo L ( |
. 7 ok 1
Village Core “ ) /;@&w x
The purpose of the Village Core is to provide a mixture of commercial, retail, and residential uses L= J
integrated horizontally or vertically at a greater intensity than the surrounding area. It is the intent 7

to provide an integrated mix of uses in close proximity to provide an innovative and stimulating
environment and encourage walking, biking, and transit use while also accommodating the auto-
mobile and boosting the market for commercial goods and services. This is the heart of the village
and should be the focus of most redevelopment/development efforts in the beginning. Every effort
should be made to attract quality businesses to vacant and underutilized sites in the Core areas.

Parkview Ave

Village Fringe

—\— |y

S 9th St

The Village Fringe district is an extension of the Village Core district. The district provides for safe
and convenient vehicular and pedestrian circulation through a network of streets and pedestri-

an routes. Off the major roads, the Fringe area is a place for residential neighborhoods and other
predominately residential uses. There are many areas within the Village Fringe that are or could be
available for development or redevelopment. While the Core is the heart of the village, the Fringe is
where significant transformation may occur. Every effort should be made to ensure that this devel-
opment is of the highest quality possible.

DDA DISTRICTLIMITS

S |
9,

—\

( >_/ i ! 7 N
DDADISTRICT L
L L e

Village Core
Village Fringe

Gateway Corridor

Gateway Corridor [ 0oA Distictimis

Major Roads

r——

Local Roads

The purpose and intent of the Gateway Corridor district is to provide an area that allows for a
diversified base of commercial and light industrial businesses. Some expansion of the road network
is suggested with pedestrian connections in order to ease traffic burdens and make additional land
accessible for development. It is less likely that uses will redevelop in this area, so standards should
be created to maintain or improve existing and future development.

'
1
I
1

Property Lines

Oshtemo Township
Michigan Geographic Framework, v14.

S |

1

W N Ave

4luN Ave

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 32



Planning Areas

These planning areas are used to designate different standards or guidelines within the entire study area. Each area has its own
character and quality and, therefore, each guideline should not apply equally to each area. Although each area is unique, there
should be consistent characteristics that run through each of them, such as architectural styles. These consistent elements help
to tie the three pieces together, while the differences in the standards are in respect of the different uses and character present

in each area. Along boundaries, transitions should be made smoothly by respecting the form and character of the surrounding
development when designing projects in this area.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 33



Circulation Plan

CIRCULATION PLAN

The following narrative presents a future circulation plan for arterials, collectors and local streets
within Oshtemo Village, as well as road network design standards, pedestrian circulation strategies,
and related recommendations.

A future circulation plan for the DDA has been prepared and is shown on the map on this page.
This Plan identifies existing roads by their designation (arterials, collectors, local roads), and also
includes provisions for new collectors and local roads to establish an interconnected road network.
Future roads may be constructed with private, public, and/or TIF funds. Others may be installed by
the private sector through the course of development on individual parcels. The future circulation
plan map also displays pedestrian network recommendations, including a future shared-use path
and proposed sidewalks that would eliminate critical gaps in the sidewalk system.

Arterials

Arterial streets serve regional mobility by connecting the village area to different parts of the Town-
ship and the greater Kalamazoo area. Stadium Drive and 9th

Street are considered arterials within the study area. Parkview is considered an arterial by the
RCKC, although it functions more like a collector in this area.

Arterials should be continuous throughout the planning areas with signalized interruptions pro-
vided at intersections with other arterials or with collectors with at least one half mile separation
between interruptions, where feasible. Driveways and curb cuts are not encouraged from abutting
residential properties. For commercial uses, driveways and curb cuts should not be allowed, except
as necessary due to preexisting street and parcel relationships. Such uses are encouraged to provide
shared driveways and rear access, if available.

A significant issue along arterials currently being experienced in the Township is high speeds. With
few stops and 45-55 mile per hour speed limits outside the study area, vehicles come into the study
area at high speeds. Recommended methods to reduce speeds along the two arterial routes within
the study area, Stadium Drive and 9th Street, are outlined later in this section.

Due to high traffic volumes, safety considerations, and existing development constraints, the RCKC
is not supportive of on-street parking along arterial roads within Oshtemo Village. Given this
RCKC policy, on-street parking along arterial streets is not a recommendation of this plan. As an
alternative, the DDA may consider options for the development of public off-street parking spaces
within Oshtemo Village.

Oshtemo Township DDA District

Future Circulation Plan

8th Street

DDADISTRICT LIMITS

0 250 500 1,000
— S— ot

Road Network:
I Arterial Roads (Existing)
mmmmm Collector Roads (Existing)
s Collector Roads (Proposed)
= == Local Roads (Existing)
= == = Local Roads (Proposed)
-
=
Pedestrian Network:
Existing Sidewalks
g
= - eeee Proposed Sidewalks (Critical Gaps)
= v
=1 r) .
S [ = Future Shared Use Path
5] =
5 0
s .§ Planning Areas:
|
s L Village Core
- |_ Village Fringe
-
i [ Gateway Corridor
|
| ---EI--- |__:| DDA District
| | Property Lines
| '
| - !
| WNAvenue N H

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

34



Circulation Plan

Arterial streets provide routes for the Kalamazoo Metro regional transit system. Appropriate bus stop spaces should be provided
along arterial roads. Future planning for park and ride lots should be considered.

Considering the size of the road and the amount of traffic along arterials, providing space for pedestrians and non-motorized
vehicles is critical. Continuous sidewalks with a minimum width of 6 feet (12 feet in the Village Core planning area) are encour-
aged on both sides of arterial roads. This will provide adequate width for pedestrians to walk along these roads and access uses
along arterials. In addition, providing an extra three to five foot bike lane along the roadway for bicycles will provide a safe place
for these to travel. Unfortunately, there may not be adequate room for this to occur in the right-of-way that is available in the
Village Core and have room left to provide adequate pedestrian space.

Collectors

Collector streets provide circulation within regions, connecting neighborhoods with each other and to adjacent commercial
areas. Parkview and Atlantic serve as collectors within the study area, although Parkview is considered an arterial by the RCKC.
Curb cuts and driveway access may be permitted onto collectors in commercial districts; however, shared-access drives in com-
mercial districts are encouraged. Driveways and curb cuts for individual parcels, however, should not be permitted onto collec-
tors in residential areas except where necessary due to preexisting street and parcel relationships. On-street parking is encour-
aged on collector streets, with coordination and approval from the RCKC.

Collectors should be provided within and around the village area to begin to form large blocks. These blocks will then be further
broken down by local streets. Pedestrian routes and sidewalks should be provided. Bike lanes should also be encouraged along
collectors. Because of the fewer vehicles and reduced speeds, collectors are safer roads for bicyclists.

Local Streets

Local streets provide access to and provide for limited, low speed circulation within neighborhoods and districts. Local streets
should generally not be more than a quarter-mile in continuous length and should be parallel to each other at approximately 400
foot intervals. Local streets generally do not require signalized intersections with larger roads. When intersecting with other local
streets, stop sign intersections are sufficient.

Local streets should provide on-street parallel parking on both sides of the road. Transit routes are not generally considered
appropriate for local streets unless the buses are using the local streets to access bus stops or major traffic generators. Continuous
pedestrian walkways should be provided on both sides of each local street.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

35



Circulation Plan

Road Network Standards

The table below displays the recommended standards for the various types of roads in each of the three planning areas in the Os-
htemo Village area (also refer to the future circulation plan map earlier in this section). Implementation of these standards may

require modification of engineering, subdivision and zoning ordinance standards as well as RCKC policies.

PROPOSED ROAD NETWORK REQUIREMENTS

On-Street
Private F
Road Type = Rightof Way Lanes (11' Width) Parking (8' Public Frontage rivate Frontage Parking Location
) Setbacks
Width)
VILLAGE CORE
4 + Turn + .
. . L Raised planters, Zero Lot Line Rear yard preferred, side or
Arterial 100 Potential Bike No . o
; Sidewalks (6' - 12") | Setback Allowed front yard (one row) only
Lanes (4')
Conti t
. 2 + Turn + Bike . on 1nuou‘s ree .| Rear yard preferred, side or
Collector 66 , Yes (2 sides) lawn (5'), No closer than 10
Lanes (4") . ; front yard (one row) only
Sidewalks (5")
Continuous tree R d preferred. sid
r T T rred, Sl T
Local Road 66' 2 + Bike Lanes (4") Yes (2 sides) lawn (5"), No closer than 10' caryard preferred, side o
. ; front yard (one row) only
Sidewalks (5')
VILLAGE FRINGE
4+ Turn + Continuous tree .
. : . ; .| Rear or side yard preferred,
Arterial 100 Potential Bike No lawn (13"), No closer than 15
; . , front yard (one row) only
Lanes (4') Sidewalks (6")
Conti t
. 2 + Turn + Bike . on 1nu0u's ree .| Rear or side yard preferred,
Collector 66 , Yes (2 sides) lawn (5'), No closer than 15
Lanes (4') . ; front yard (one row) only
Sidewalks (5")
Continuous tree
Re ids d preferred,
Local Road 66' 2 + Bike Lanes (4") Yes (2 sides) lawn (5'), No closer than 15' car of sice yard preferre
. ; front yard (one row) only
Sidewalks (5')
GATEWAY CORRIDOR
4+ Turn + Conti t
. : .urn . on 1nuous' ree .| Rear or side yard preferred,
Arterial 100 Potential Bike No lawn (13"), No closer than 80
; . , front yard allowed
Lanes (4') Sidewalks (6)
Conti t
. 2 + Turn + Bike . on 1nuou's ree .| Rear or side yard preferred,
Collector 66 ; Yes (2 sides) lawn (5), No closer than 20
Lanes (4') . ; front yard allowed
Sidewalks (5')
Conti t
. . ; . on 1nu0u's ree .| Rear or side yard preferred,
Local Road 66 2 + Bike Lanes (4") Yes (2 sides) lawn (5'), No closer Than 20
. ; front yard allowed
Sidewalks (5")
Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 36



Circulation Plan

Transit

Kalamazoo Metro transit currently provides service to the Oshtemo Village area. This is important service as it allows residents
of the area access to regional employers, it carries students to regional educational facilities, and it brings employees to the
village for work. Local transit stops at popular or central destinations should be provided and provisions should be made so that
buses stopping do not disrupt traffic.

Gateways

Gateways should be located at the entrances into the village area along Stadium Drive and 9th Street. Gateways set the tone for
the district area and are opportunities to highlight the Oshtemo Village experience. They are the “welcome mat” for the village
and provide the first impression for visitors and residents alike. That first impression should be a positive one in order to main-
tain a high quality of life for residents of the area and to enhance the image, reputation, and value of the commercial services and
properties located in the village.

To do this, gateway areas should include prominent features, landscaping, or signage that send a clear message that vehicles have
made a transition into the Oshtemo Village area. The gateway features do not all have to be the same, but they should be similar
in order to avoid confusion. They should be designed along a consistent village style theme. They should not create safety hazards
for passing motorists, but they should be noteworthy and should evoke pride in the community.

Traffic Calming

The major arterials extending through the DDA, Stadium Drive and 9th Street, carry high volumes of traffic at significant speeds.
Throughout the course of the planning process, traffic safety, reducing speeds, and creating a safer environment for pedestrians
and bicyclists was heard as a primary concern. Typical traffic calming measures such as speed bumps, chicanes, and traffic circles
are not practical along Stadium Drive and 9th Street because of the significant traffic volumes that utilize these roads and the
designated function of these roads to carry traffic (these measures, however, may be appropriate along collector or local streets).
Also, a roundabout is not practical because of the limited right of way available at the intersection. Coordinating with the RCKC,
this Plan recommends that the following traffic calming strategies be considered along arterial routes:

o  Traffic signal coordination (to a target speed of at least the posted speed limit)

o Speed monitoring/warning signage

o Increased enforcement

o Reducing lane widths

o Working to establish a more grid-oriented street network over time

o Working to increase the overall density of development within the study area

Traffic signal coordination involves the intentional timing of signals within a corridor to keep speeds to a targeted level. As
growth within the village occurs over time requiring new traffic signals to be added, this method could become particularly

effective at reducing traffic speeds along Stadium Drive and 9th Street. e =
Speed monitoring signs and increased enforcement

are effective traffic calming methods

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT



Circulation Plan

The use of speed monitoring signs, permanent or temporary, along with enhanced speed enforcement, should also be considered
as viable measures to reduce speeds along Stadium Drive and 9th Street. Coordination would need to occur with the RCKC and
the Kalamazoo County Sheriff’s Office.

Although this approach may not presently be preferred by the RCKC, the DDA can continue to express their desire to consider
reduced lane widths as a traffic calming solution along Stadium Drive and 9th Street within the study area. A number of tech-
niques can be used to narrow the lanes, including simply painting the lines closer together. Bike lanes can also be used to occupy
pavement and cause the reduction of lane width. Another alternative is to reduce the number of lanes; however, this is not a
feasible option given the traffic volumes on Stadium Drive and 9th Street.

The incorporation of bike lanes within a street can

Over time, the DDA should work to establish or encourage a more interconnected, grid-oriented street network. Such a network  [EISCSREACERERISI RN EE TR EACERITEE
would offer alternative routes that could draw traffic away from Stadium Drive and 9th Street. A conceptual future road network
is presented in the future circulation plan map.

Allowing and encouraging increased development, density and activity within the study area over time has the potential to result
in traffic calming benefits. As the business district expands and becomes an enhanced destination, traffic will slow as it approach-
es and experiences the destination.

Pedestrian Circulation

The lack of pedestrian facilities and amenities within the study area was a critical issue identified through the public input pro-
cess. Without sidewalks and designated crosswalks, the pedestrian is lost along Stadium Drive and 9th Street and left vulnerable
to the quickly passing vehicles. The same can be said for the bicyclists with no bike lanes and little shoulder available for relief.

Providing the means for pedestrians to access and walk around the village area has been identified as an objective of the com-
munity in the Township Master Plan and the DDA Development Plan. This includes improvements such as pathways, sidewalks,
speed reduction, and other amenities. All contribute to a more pedestrian friendly environment.

The other challenge is slowing the traffic enough that the people feel comfortable walking. If possible, roadway improvements,
such as bumpouts at the intersection, help to slow traffic and close the distance required for someone to cross. Also, mid-block
islands or medians, if allowed by the RCKC, can be provided as a resting place at a mid-block crosswalk while also serving to
slow traffic speeds. Although the construction of mid-block island or medians is not presently supported by the RCKC, the DDA
can continue to express their desire to utilize them as a pedestrian safety and traffic calming tool.

Sidewalks are recommended on both sides of all streets in the district. Sidewalks in the Village Core should be made wider to
accommodate additional foot traffic, streetscape amenities, and displays. At each intersection, designated crosswalks (some with
contrasting materials) and push button signals are also recommended to protect pedestrians. Although sidewalks are recom- B —
mended along all existing and future streets, the future circulation plan map highlights the critical gaps in the existing sidewalk Pedestrian refuge island (top) and designated

network where sidewalks are urgently needed crosswalks with contrasting materials (bottom) are
' recommended pedestrian safety improvements

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 38



Circulation Plan

The combination of alleviating traffic, providing sidewalks, and creating a streetscape to reduce the scale of the corridors will
help to create a more pedestrian friendly environment. With these improvements, the core of the village will become a much
more desirable place for pedestrians. Additionally, pedestrian improvements and enhanced connections will more effectively
bring people into the village area, particularly those from the surrounding neighborhoods, who will shop, eat and spend money
at local businesses.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 39



Design Recommendations

DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS

The purpose of the Village Theme Development Plan is to establish a detailed link between the policies established by the
Township Master Land Use Plan, as well as the DDA Development Plan, and the actual designs for project proposals. The Village
Theme Development Plan is intended as an implementation mechanism to assist the Township in bringing these plans and ideas
into reality. The Plan provides recommendations to be used as a guide for the redevelopment of private property. Additionally,
selected recommendations for public improvements are also included in the Plan. The Plan can then be used to establish design
guidelines, enhance zoning regulations, and provide incentives for development that will result in a high quality, well-designed,
sustainable village area.

The development of this Plan was based on the results of the analysis of the existing conditions within the village area, conver-
sations with Township officials and administration, review of existing documents and plans, and public input. This information
was compiled together to develop the recommendations and strategies contained within this Plan.

Open Space

The purpose of the open space guidelines is to provide public and semi-public spaces that enhance the quality of life for Oshtemo
Village and Township residents. Open space may be public or privately owned and maintained and may come in many shapes
and sizes. Open space may include areas for active recreation and youth activities, or it may be areas set aside for the preservation
of natural resources or the passive enjoyment of the natural environment.

Within the village area, the only current area of dedicated open space is the Township park, Flesher Field, located on the south
side of the Village Core along 9th Street. This well-used facility includes soccer and baseball fields, a picnic area, playground,
gazebo, parking, restrooms, and a significant undeveloped, forested area with some lightly maintained trails through them. The
Park is a tremendous resource for the Township and the village area. However, access to the park is a concern, particularly for
nearby residents who may like to allow their children to walk or bike to the park unsupervised. Expanding the use of the park
and providing for additional activities is desired.

Future development within Oshtemo Village should be done thoughtfully to allow for the incorporation of landscape elements
and green space, which would provide a softer, greener development. One of the functions of open space is to provide a gathering
space for residents. Examples would include a plaza or village square. These are areas of hardscape or softscape, which allow for
public gatherings. They have lighting, signage, seating, and public art, as well as provisions for public entertainment. Plazas are
more paved than squares and integrated into building developments. Courtyards should also be considered within commercial
developments. These are semi-public open spaces with seating areas, which are available during open hours. These elements are
envisioned in the Village Core area.

Examples of a town square (top), plaza (middle)
and landscaped area with public art (bottom) as
recommended open space within the village for
visitors, employees and residents

It is also envisioned that small pocket parks will be integrated into new neighborhoods that are built along the Village Fringe.
These parks will be built to serve the immediately surrounding residents and may only include a small playground or a picnic
area.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 40



Design Recommendations

A system of sidewalks and trails should be planned integrating all of the major open space areas
in the Township with each other, as well as with other major open space areas in the metropolitan
region, the nearby Kal-Haven Trail, and the trail systems of the adjacent communities.

Oshtemo DDA Streetscape Plan:

Erie and Chime Street Plan
Source: OCBA Landscape Architects

Streetscape e
In order to help enhance the street design, soften the traffic and road conditions, and enhance the
pedestrian environment, the Township DDA prepared a detailed streetscape plan for the major
corridors of Oshtemo Village. The DDA is working toward securing funding assistance to aide in
the first phases of implementation of the streetscape plan, to include intersection improvements and
public plaza space at the northwest corner of Stadium Drive and 9th Street.

VILLAGE CORE

TREES SPACED 50' O.C.
LIGHTS SPACED 100" O.C.

As noted earlier in this Plan, recommended streetscape design treatments within Oshtemo Village
include:

o  Plaza at the northwest corner of Stadium Drive and 9th Street

«  Wide sidewalks with decorative paving

o  Street trees and planter boxes

o Pedestrian scale lighting 5 SoEwaLK aND

o Decorative walls

o Marked Crosswalks

CHIME STREET
9TH STREET

Coordinating with the RCKC, this Plan recommends that the DDA continue to implement its re-
cently prepared Oshtemo DDA Streetscape Plan.

ERIE AND ATLANTIC AVENUE
REALIGNED TO CREATE A
SAFER INTERSECTION WITH
S.9TH STREET.

e 90 ¢ ‘

3 \@\’@mv@"@r T

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 41



Design Recommendations

Site Planning

The following narrative outlines site planning requirements for private property within the Oshtemo Village area. Unique for
each part of the village area, recommended guidelines have been provided for such elements as site layout, circulation, parking,
building orientation, landscaping, utilities, and similar concepts. Site planning decisions have a tremendous impact on the ap-
pearance of a site and the character of an area. The following site planning standards and guidelines assist in creating a cohesive
village atmosphere.

Site and Building Layout

Buildings should be located and oriented to the street, creating a strong, coordinated streetscape and presentation to the public
frontage. Where internal streets are provided, buildings may be oriented towards those as well. Buildings are strongly encouraged
to be located on corners of blocks so as to define intersections and create terminal vistas. Entries should be located along the
street frontage with secondary entries from parking areas.

Building Orientation

Buildings and site development should contribute to a cohesive village pattern, define and frame the public streets and plazas,
and reinforce the goals of providing mixed uses and creating a walkable area. Non-residential buildings should be oriented 1
towards the street with direct access to the public sidewalk or defined pedestrian connections to the public sidewalk. Within the [
Village Core planning area, buildings are recommended with zero lot line or minimal setbacks. However, flexible zoning regu- -
lations should allow for building setbacks which are consistent with the established setbacks of surrounding development, or to F W,
allow for limited front yard vehicle access or parking. Where buildings are not located at the front lot line, a decorative screenwall | |
should be provided. Residential buildings should be oriented towards the street with a minimal front porch setback and raised
entries. In the fringe and gateway areas, buildings should be located relatively close to the street to create a consistent and attrac-
tive streetscape. Front setback areas should be attractively landscaped with some walkways and seating areas permitted

st»mﬁurkscofFEE

s il

Street Frontage

Buildings should extend a minimum of 75% of all primary street frontages along the developed setback line. For buildings locat-
ed on corner lots, a smaller percentage may be permitted along side or access roads.

Parking

Parking areas should be located to the rear and sides of the building to encourage a pedestrian-friendly street edge with low
screen walls and landscaping. One row of parking in the front yard, consisting of a single access drive with adjacent parking

stall(s), may be permitted; however, any front yard vehicular access or parking area must be designed to allow direct and defined [ UESEIEEEUREIEENN TSN LN,

pedestrian access from the building entrance to the public sidewalk. Surface parking lots are encouraged to have a landscape
perimeter and one tree for each seven spaces located along the perimeter or within the parking field. A modest reduction in

minimal setbacks (top images) within the Village
Core planning area. However, flexibility is provided
to allow alternative configurations. Where buildings

parking is permitted for uses that share facilities. are not located at the front lot line, a decorative scre-

enwall should be provided (bottom images).

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

42



Design Recommendations

Parking Structures

Parking structures are encouraged to be located behind retail buildings, but may be allowed to extend above retail space to the
building frontage. The location of parking structures should minimize their street frontage, and all ground level frontages should
be lined with retail or service commercial uses. Parking structures should conform to building design regulations and their fa-
cades should be designed with similar materials and opening proportions to commercial buildings.

Utilities, Service and Trash

Areas designated for utilities, service, and trash are encouraged to be located away from residential uses and pedestrian paths
and screened from view by enclosures, which are consistent with the architectural design of the building. Where feasible, service
and trash screens/enclosures are encouraged to be integrated into the structure itself (see image at right). All overhead utilities
should be buried underground.

Unique Features

Unique elements, whether they are a part of the site design or the building design, are encouraged provided that the elements

do not detract from the overall design theme and form of the surrounding community. These features should be unique to the
Township and the village area and be reflective of the history and theme that has and will define this area. Example elements
could include public art, a clock tower, fence rows, a gazebo for public sitting, or other traditionally styled architectural elements.

Building Types

When regulating an area based on its design, the type or form of a building becomes more important than the use intended for
it. In that sense, it does not matter as much whether a building is intended to be used as a bakery, a butcher, or a bookstore. It
does not matter as much if there are law offices up stairs or loft apartments. The point is more what form the building takes and
whether or not that form is compatible with the form of adjacent structures.

The existing village area already contains a broad variety of uses, ranging from single-family residential to commercial to light
industrial. The proposed building types include all of these.

Mixed Use Retail/Office and Residential

Retail mixed use buildings are comprised of ground floor retail space with commercial or residential uses above. Retail mixed
use buildings are encouraged in the core area. This type of building adds intensity to the development site and vitality to the
street level with active uses. These buildings are typically two to three stories in height. Retail uses should occupy over 90% of the
ground floor building frontage and these storefronts should be over 50% transparent. Retail storefronts may be semi-recessed
and should have entry canopies, awnings, or arcades.

This trash enclosure is located at the rear of the
building and generally screened from public view.

[l ;
MM i 5 e
Unique site features, such as public art, are encour-
aged to be incorporated into new development
within the village

Example of a mixed-use building with ground floor
retail and upper story residential

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

43



Design Recommendations

Commercial

Commercial structures vary based on size and specific use. Smaller scale stores are desired for the area due to the reduced
impacts on the village scheme and circulation when compared to larger scale uses found in nearby competing markets. Smaller
scale uses may be either local or national chains, and they should contribute to a cohesive urban pattern while defining and fram-
ing the public streets and plazas, reinforcing the mixed use street, and helping to create a walkable district. Where large lot retail
development is provided, it should be set back and screened by smaller-scale uses or surrounded by frontage stores so it appears
to be a smaller-scale use itself. In all cases, special storefront details and ornamentation should be used to create a unified devel-
opment that is not franchised but is coordinated with the rest of the development in the village area. Buildings should be one to
two stories in height and oriented to the street.

Public/Semi-public

Public buildings are important landmarks in both neighborhoods and urbanized areas. Public buildings, from the scale of a
neighborhood library to a County courthouse, should be designed with special care and dignity. Public buildings should occupy
important intersections or front on public spaces. They should be of a monumental scale to distinguish them from surrounding
structures.

Attached Residential

Attached, multi-family residential buildings provide either rental or homeownership opportunities in the village area. These in-
clude apartments, condominiums, townhouses, duplexes, and senior housing communities. They provide individuals the oppor-
tunity to live near shopping, entertainment, and employment, as well as good transportation. Common open space areas should
be provided or private areas, if available, for each unit. Buildings should orient themselves to the street with ground floor units
having individual entries to the outside.

Detached Residential

In the Village Fringe areas, small lots are provided for single family homes in the existing neighborhoods surrounding the Village
Core. In these areas, the visual impact of parking should be minimized via garages removed from the front facades. Housed
should have small front yard setback areas. Entryways should be emphasized, and porches should be large enough for seating.

Light Industrial

Along the 9th Street Gateway Corridor, there are several light industrial uses that have developed in this area. These uses have
taken advantage of the high traffic volumes, proximity to I-94 and available land in this area. New light industrial buildings
should maintain the large front setback from the arterial, and landscaping along 9th Street should be enhanced in order to fur-
ther screen these uses. Parking should be located to the side and rear of the building. Truck parking and outdoor storage areas
should be well screened and positioned to the rear of the building out of sight of any residential areas.

Commercial structure (note the defined sidewalk
connection from street to building, through the
parking area)

Attached residential

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

44



Design Recommendations

Special Purpose Building

There are some buildings that are unique based on the use contained within them, such as a hotel. These are almost like special
land uses in the village area. They would need to be treated with special conditions in each area.

Historic Structures

At present, there are only a few existing structures within the study area that may be considered as possessing historic signifi-
cance. Any conversions, expansions or renovations of these structures should be carefully evaluated to ensure that their historic
significance is not harmed.

Building Design

Recommended building design principles are provided herein as general principles of the village design theme.

Development Massing

Buildings should be massed to reflect adjacent uses in order to maintain the streetscape, while making allowances for residential
uses and other specific building types, as appropriate. Building massing is particularly important at major intersections, particu-
larly 9th Street and Stadium Drive. Corner buildings should incorporate special features and materials that reinforce important
intersections with buildings of unique architectural merit. Rear entrances with access to parking should be treated with similar
detail and quality as primary entrances.

Ground Level Treatment

Special attention should be given to craftsmanship and detailing within human range of touch and view. The use of special store-
front detailing, facade ornamentation, quality materials, signage that enhances the architecture, and awnings or canopies, can
reinforce the aesthetic character of the street. At least 50% of the commercial storefront should be transparent.

Building Materials

Building materials should be used to articulate building clements, such as the base, body, parapets, bays, arcades, or other struc-
tural elements. Building materials should convey a sense of integrity, permanence and durability rather than poor workmanship
or inexpensive materials.

Facade Treatment

To enhance the pedestrian environment, building facades should avoid large expanses of blank walls, vertical or horizontal.
Facades should be articulated through architectural treatment (either a change in the facade design and material or an offset of 2
feet or more) in a relatively small rhythm of approximately 25 to 30 feet and be generally vertical in proportion. Building facades
should animate the street, providing interest to passers-by.

Special attention should be paid to the pedestrian
level

Building materials should convey a sense of integri-
ty, permanence and durability

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

45



Design Recommendations

Base/Cap

Building facades should be articulated with a building base, body, and capital or parapet edge. The base should include at least
the first floor and be separated from the upper floors by a continuous lintel. The upper floors should have a consistent style and
compose the body of the building. An ornamental cornice should form the cap of the building.

Windows

Building walls should be punctuated by well-proportioned (generally vertical) openings that provide relief, detail, and variation
on the facade. Tinted or reflective glass is strongly discouraged.

Signs
Signs must call attention to the individual buildings and identify the businesses within, but they should also work together as Building facades should avoid large expanses of
a whole in order to contribute to the overall image of the village area. Signs should be coordinated in appearance and be sym- blank walls, vertical or horizontal

pathetic to the architecture of the building and the design of the area. Signs should not be internally illuminated or exceed the
height of the building. Wall and awning signs are appropriate for the study area, particularly the Village Core. Perpendicular wall
signs that protrude from the building wall are also acceptable, provided they are done in a consistent manner. Ground signs are
also permitted, provided they are incorporated into the landscaping design and are consistent with the design of the building.

Building Height

In order to provide the density necessary to sustain a viable mixed-use district, buildings in the Village Core area are encour-
aged to be at least two stories in height. Variation up to three stories is also encouraged, especially at major intersections. Build-
ings in the Village Core that are one story in height should be constructed with pitched roofs or taller facades with appropriate
articulation to give an impression of height and maintain the character and form of the district. Beyond the Village Core, one
story buildings are more acceptable, whether these are residences, offices or light industries. These buildings however should be
required to have a pitched roof, which provides additional height and is consistent with the character of the existing structures.

Roof Treatment

Roof treatment should be consistent with architectural form and massing. The roof should provide a strong edge, through de-
tailing, to the building form, whether a parapet or sloped roof. Screening of roof top equipment is encouraged. Roof forms and

Buildings are encouraged to be at least two stories

in height. Screening of roof top equipment is also
pitches of new residential structures should be similar to forms and pitches commonly found in nearby neighborhoods. encouraged.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3,2019 DRAFT 46



Summary of Recommendations

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

The previous sections outlined a variety of planning, circulation and design recommendations for the overall study area. Howev-
er, the application of the recommendations may be different, depending on whether such recommendations are applied to public
spaces or private spaces, or whether the recommendations are applied to lands within each of the three planning areas. This
section presents a summary of the various recommendations included in this Plan, and also illustrates the different application of
the recommendations based on site context.

The table below presents a summary of the circulation, open space and streetscape recommendations for public spaces (i.e.,
rights-of-way, public properties), as applied within each of the three planning areas (i.e., Village Core, Village Fringe and Gate-
way Corridor). The implementation of these public space recommendations would be achieved, in part, upon the initiative of
Oshtemo Township and its governmental partners through public investments within the study area; however, partnerships with
private entities, local businesses and property owners are equally important to implementing these public space recommenda-
tions over time.

PuBLIC SPACE DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS BY PLANNING AREA

Village Core Village Fringe Gateway Corridor

Sidewalks Required Required Required

Bike Lanes/Pathways Permitted Permitted Permitted

Transit Stops Required Permitted Permitted

Alleys Permitted Permitted Permitted
Character/Location of Open Space Plazas/Public Squares Public Parks/Pocket Parks Corridor Gateways/Landscaping
Pedestrian Street Lighting 50'o.c. 50'o.c. 75'0.c.

Street Trees 25'o.c. 25'o.c. 25'o.c.

Crosswalks Decorative Standard Standard

Sidewalks 6'- 12" wide 5'- 6' wide 5'- 6 wide

Streetscape Amenities (i.e., Benches, Trash

Required Permitted Permitted
cans, Planters)

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

47



Summary of Recommendations

The table below presents a summary of the circulation, open space, site planning and building type recommendations for private
spaces (i.e., privately owned properties), as applied within each of the three planning areas (i.e., Village Core, Village Fringe

and Gateway Corridor). The implementation of these private space recommendations would primarily be achieved through the
establishment of carefully crafted zoning standards, design guidelines and/or other regulations, which regulate private develop-
ment within the study area.

PRIVATE SPACE DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS BY PLANNING AREA

Village Core Village Fringe Gateway Corridor
CIRCULATION

Internal Pedestrian Circulation and Reauired Required Required
equire equire equire

Connection to Public Sidewalk d q d

Pedestrian/Bike Amenities Required Recommended Recommended

OPEN SPACE

) . On-Site Courtyards/Landscaped | On-Site Landscaping and Green
Character/Location of Open Space On-Site Plazas/Courtyards

Areas Space
SITE PLANNING

Oriented to Street, Zero Lot Line |Oriented to Street, Recommended Oriented to Street, Recommended
Allowed and Recommended 15' Setback 80" Setback

Orientation

Recommended 75% of Developed | Recommended 75% of Developed | Recommended 50% of Developed
Street Frontage

Setback Line Setback Line Setback Line
Rear Yard Preferred, Side or Rear or Side Yard Preferred, .
Parking Front Yard (one row only) Front Yard (one row only) Rear or Side Yard Preferred,
Allowed Allowed Front Yard Allowed

Mixed Use Permitted Permitted Permitted
Commercial Permitted Permitted Permitted
Public/Semi-Public Permitted Permitted Permitted
Attached Residential Permitted Permitted Special
Detached Residential Permitted Permitted Special

Light Industrial Not Permitted Not Permitted Permitted
Special Purpose Buildings Special Special Special

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

48



Implementation

IMPLEMENTATION

Implementation of the recommendations and principles contained in the Village Theme Development Plan will occur over time.
There is no one tool available to implement these recommendations. Rather many different individuals and groups will need to
be involved over a long period of time to result in the development of this theme.

Infill Redevelopment

Realization of the Development Plan will occur through a combination of public investment, new development and infill rede-
velopment. Infill redevelopment is the process by which structures or parcels that are not being fully utilized are redeveloped

in order to get greater return from the site. This is most likely to occur in the Village Core and the Village Fringe. Outdated
buildings, buildings that do not match the standards recommended in this Plan, or uses that are underutilizing the site are likely
targets. Through redevelopment, the Township comes closer to achieving its mission and the intent of the Plan.

That being the case, the Township and the DDA will want to encourage this redevelopment This can be done in a number of
different ways. First, a reward can be provided, such as a density bonus for two story structures or allowance for mixed uses.
This reward may offset some of the cost of the redevelopment. Another way is to create public parking in the Village Core. Then,
parking requirements can be reduced or waived in the district because they are satisfied within public areas. This saves costs and
allows for maximum use of private land.

Regardless of incentives or encouragement, some properties will be slow to redevelop. This may be a result of when they were
constructed, property owner reluctance, or market difficulties. It is a gradual process and will not occur ovemight.

Zoning Amendments

In order to implement the recommendations of the Village Theme Development Plan, amendments to the Township’s Zoning
Ordinance will be needed. Specifically, a review of the Village Commercial District and the Village Form-Based Code Overlay
Zone is warranted. Possible regulatory changes will offer some flexibility for land development with the Village that could foster
economic development.

It is not recommended to eliminate or significantly alter the Village Form-Based Code Overlay Zone. The purpose of the Ordi-
nance to establish a compact, walkable, and mixed-use environment is an important aspiration of both the Township and the
DDA. Much of the regulatory framework within the Village Commercial District and Form-Based Code Overlay will assist in
meeting this goal.

The current design of both Stadium Drive and 9th Street in the Village area provides some obstacles to the current design re-
quirements of the Village Form-Based Code Overlay Zone. Unfortunately, the local road network is not under Township control
and therefore its impacts on the character of the desired built environment cannot be managed.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

49



Implementation

In addition to the impediment of the road infrastructure, the parcel sizes and widths within the Village are typically small and
narrow. As indicated earlier in this Plan, the concentration of small, individually owned parcels poses a challenge to development
and redevelopment. In order to implement even mid-sized redevelopment projects, the purchase and assembly of several contig-
uous parcels of land is typically required.

In an effort to promote development activity that encourages the desired character of the Village but allows for more site flexibili-
ty, the following amendments to the Village Form-Based Code Overlay are recommended:

Build-To-Line Table: Allow some flexibility on required build-to-lines that permit consistency with established setbacks
of neighboring developments and allow for limited vehicular access/parking. Prescribe public benefits, liked enhanced
landscaping, to be provided and design standards to be followed if vehicular access/parking is provided in front.

Street Types and Standards: Primarily due to the lack of local jurisdiction of streets, these provisions should largely be
deleted from the Form-Based Code. Instead, the proposed street circulation network and recommended design standards
should be kept to the Village Theme Development Plan, and the Township/DDA should coordinate future improvements
with the RCKC.

Other Street Design Standards & Access Management: Generally, the street design standards should be deleted (i.e.,
bump-outs, turn lanes, curb radius) as they fall under the jurisdiction of the RCKC. Standards related to the interface
between the private realm and public street should be kept (i.e., clear vision, sidewalk crossings/pass-throughs, required
streetscape improvements, and access management standards).

Parking Setbacks: Amended to provide more flexibility to allow limited vehicular access and parking within the front and
side yards (one stall only) and to prescribe public benefits to be provided and design standards to be followed if vehicular
access/parking is within in the front yard.

Drive Throughs: Eliminate special use approval for drive-throughs, unless allowed only as a special use in the underlying
zoning district. Amend to provide more flexibility to allow drive-throughs in the side yards only and prescribe design
standards to be followed if drive-throughs are within in the side yard.

Density: The maximum density allowed within the Village is eight dwelling units per acre. To create a vibrant walkable
Village, an increase in density to 12 to 15 dwelling units per acre should be considered, which would support more com-
pact residential products. The missing middle housing movement states the following:

The Missing Middle Housing types provide diverse housing options, such as duplexes, fourplexes, bungalow courts,
townhomes, and multiplexes, that fit seamlessly into low-rise walkable neighborhoods and support walkability, locally
serving retail, and public transportation options. They provide solutions along a spectrum of affordability to address
the shortage in available housing stock and tour communities shifting demographics.

Oshtemo Village is an ideal location within the Township to provide this mix of housing types.

Modifiable Standards: Consider increasing the modifiable standards the Planning Commission would have authority to
approve. This could provide some additional flexibility within the code and should be based on enhanced design out-
comes.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

50



Implementation

In addition to the Form-Based Code Overlay, the Development Standards of the Village Commercial District should be eliminat-
ed, as these two ordinances are in conflict with each other. The Form-Based Code is intended to regulate site development while
the Village Commercial District regulates allowable uses. Having development standards within the Village Commercial District
is confusing to the development process.

After a complete review of the two ordinances that regulate the Village area, additional amendments may be needed. However,
any changes should be couched in the recommendations of this Plan.

Master Land Use Plan

The Township’s Master Land Use Plan will not need to be updated as a result of this Plan. The recommendations provided above
fit in with the goals and objectives of the Village Core future land use designation.

Economic Trends - “Placemaking” as an Economic Development Tool

According to the Michigan Economic Development Corporation, “placemaking” or “place-based economic development” aims
to create quality places where people want to live, work, play and learn. It is driven by the economic imperative that businesses
must attract and retain talent in order to succeed.

The idea of using sense of place as an economic development tool has been growing in momentum and now is firmly entrenched
throughout the State. In fact, the State of Michigan is building its economic development model on the idea of placemaking. Sim-
plified, the idea of placemaking is to celebrate those elements that define a community -- the spaces, the culture and the quality
of life -- to attract a range of new businesses and investments.

The age of providing tax breaks to lure industrial development and even the age of industrial or manufacturing growth as the
primary pieces of economic development are over. While this may have hurt Michigan’s economy over the last decade, the shifts
in the economy have the potential to benefit the long term growth of a sustainable economy throughout the State, and locally in
Kalamazoo and Oshtemo Township. A new economic development strategy for Oshtemo Township and the larger region will
be the marketing of, and investments toward, its high quality of life, business districts, neighborhoods, educational and cultural
institutions, public school system, natural amenities, and access to recreational and outdoor amenities.

The following eight “assets of place” should be considered by the Oshtemo Township DDA as focus areas for the implementation
of place-based economic development, through planning and zoning policies as well as investment decisions.
+  Physical Design & Walkability (the recommendations contained in this Village Theme Development Plan primarily relate
to this asset)

1 Source: The Economics of Place: The Value of Building Communities Around People. Edited by
Colleen Layton, Tawny Pruitt & Kim Cekola. Michigan Municipal League. 2011.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

51



Implementation

o Green Initiatives (the way we use natural resources)
o Arts & Culture

o Entrepreneurship

o Multiculturalism & the Global Workforce

o Messaging & Technology

o More Transportation Choices

o Education & Institutions as an Anchor

Branding

In order to become more marketable and be more identifiable to residents in the larger community, the Township should start

a branding campaign for the village area. One problem for the village area is that it has no identification. It technically is not

a village in the governmental sense, but it once functioned as a village. It was the heart of the Township in the beginning and
remains the area with the highest concentration of historical structures in the Township. Therefore, it is recommended that
branding scheme be established to include a name, color scheme, font and logo for the area consistent with the design and theme
described above and use it on entry signs and community signs in the area.

Market Study

This 2019 Update to the Village Theme Development Plan includes a preliminary evaluation of market conditions. However, a
more detailed study should be considered. A detailed market study would provide clear information regarding the amount of
square footage that can be supported in the current and future markets for various types of uses. Then, using that information
with the information in this Development Plan, a firm plan for recruitment can be developed. This can be provided to developers
and realtors as they market land to potential investors and business owners. It can also be provided directly to the retailers and
business owners who may be considering locating in the village area.

Streetscape Improvements

As noted in this Plan, the DDA should continue its efforts to implement the recently prepared Oshtemo DDA Streetscape Plan.

Public Parking

Currently, the parking for each of the uses in the village area is provided for on each individual lot. As a result, most business-
es have their own driveway, the area is not conducive to parking at one shop and walking to another, and there is no reduction
in pavement as a result of shared parking. Developing commercial centers are always concerned about parking. If there is not
adequate parking, then customers will go where it is more convenient for them to shop. One way the DDA can ease this fear is
to purchase property and provide public parking within the village area. The parking must be accessible from the arterial roads.
However, it should not be visible from the road frontage; the frontage should be reserved for buildings, storefronts or public
space. The parking should be free in order to compete with similar markets and commercial centers in the area.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

52



Implementation

Design Assistance/Facade Improvements

Implementing these recommendations and principles may challenge some property owners. Certain projects that would not
have required the assistance of an architect or professional designer previously might now require such assistance in order to be
certain that the required guidelines are being followed. One way to ease this transition and provide some assistance is to provide
technical assistance to qualifying applicants from a local architect or designer. The DDA would contract with the local profes-
sional to provide 2-3 hours of advisory service to each individual sent before them by the DDA or Township, to be reimbursed
by the DDA. This reduces the possible interpretations of the guidelines and helps property owners who may not have needed a
professional prior to these standards afford one at this time.

The DDA maintains and contributes funds toward a facade improvement program, where grants may be provided to property
owners for eligible improvements to building facades. It is recommended that the DDA continue to provide this benefit to local
property owners.

Funding

Many of the recommendations contained within this Plan are big ideas, some of which will require significant investments to
implement. Some of the recommendations involve public infrastructure and improvements within the public right-of-way. Other
recommendations involve private improvements and private property.

Public improvement projects may be funded through a number of different mechanisms. The primary source of funds will be
DDA funds generated through tax increment financing within the district. These funds can be spent directly or additional funds
can be borrowed in anticipation of future allocation. Other fund sources may include Township general funds, special assess-
ments, bonds, grants, and private donations. Typical grant sources include highway enhancement grants and DNR recreation
grants.

Private improvements should be installed and constructed as a part of development and at the time of development. As an incen-
tive to encourage certain developments, the DDA may consider assisting in the funding of some of these improvements, particu-
larly those located in the public right of way.

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT

53



Appendix

APPENDIX

Demographic and Income Profiles

Retail Marketplace Profiles

Village Theme Development Plan 2019 Update October 3, 2019 DRAFT 54



®
@ esrl Demographic and Income Profile

3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009 Prepared by Esri
Ring Band: 0 - 3 mile radius

Summary Census 2010 2017 2022
Population 33,265 35,445 36,928
Households 14,816 15,731 16,346
Families 6,943 7,174 7,369
Average Household Size 2.20 2.21 2.22
Owner Occupied Housing Units 6,728 6,763 7,023
Renter Occupied Housing Units 8,088 8,969 9,323
Median Age 27.5 28.4 29.1

Trends: 2017 - 2022 Annual Rate Area State National
Population 0.82% 0.21% 0.83%
Households 0.77% 0.23% 0.79%
Families 0.54% 0.11% 0.71%
Owner HHs 0.76% 0.22% 0.72%
Median Household Income 1.58% 1.58% 2.12%

2017 2022

Households by Income Number Percent Number Percent
<$15,000 2,955 18.8% 2,997 18.3%
$15,000 - $24,999 2,348 14.9% 2,275 13.9%
$25,000 - $34,999 2,183 13.9% 2,079 12.7%
$35,000 - $49,999 2,136 13.6% 2,019 12.4%
$50,000 - $74,999 2,171 13.8% 2,178 13.3%
$75,000 - $99,999 1,381 8.8% 1,577 9.6%
$100,000 - $149,999 1,438 9.1% 1,804 11.0%
$150,000 - $199,999 544 3.5% 686 4.2%
$200,000+ 577 3.7% 732 4.5%
Median Household Income $37,024 $40,041
Average Household Income $59,338 $68,036
Per Capita Income $26,150 $29,835

Census 2010 2017 2022

Population by Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
0-4 2,010 6.0% 1,979 5.6% 2,086 5.6%
5-9 1,820 5.5% 1,790 5.0% 1,832 5.0%
10 - 14 1,640 4.9% 1,716 4.8% 1,771 4.8%
15-19 2,420 7.3% 2,540 7.2% 2,677 7.2%
20 - 24 7,276 21.9% 7,509 21.2% 7,476 20.2%
25 - 34 4,956 14.9% 5,555 15.7% 5,640 15.3%
35-44 3,153 9.5% 3,343 9.4% 3,751 10.2%
45 - 54 3,205 9.6% 3,083 8.7% 3,044 8.2%
55 - 64 2,922 8.8% 3,180 9.0% 3,093 8.4%
65 - 74 1,771 5.3% 2,468 7.0% 2,863 7.8%
75 - 84 1,313 3.9% 1,393 3.9% 1,777 4.8%

85+ 780 2.3% 890 2.5% 920 2.5%
Census 2010 2017 2022

Race and Ethnicity Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
White Alone 26,115 78.5% 26,837 75.7% 27,198 73.6%
Black Alone 4,113 12.4% 4,686 13.2% 5,100 13.8%
American Indian Alone 115 0.3% 125 0.4% 134 0.4%
Asian Alone 1,174 3.5% 1,571 4.4% 1,870 5.1%
Pacific Islander Alone 10 0.0% 16 0.0% 20 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 496 1.5% 672 1.9% 802 2.2%
Two or More Races 1,241 3.7% 1,539 4.3% 1,805 4.9%
Hispanic Origin (Any Race) 1,399 4.2% 1,954 5.5% 2,437 6.6%

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2017 and 2022.

November 10, 2017



o
@GSI’F

3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009
Ring Band: 0 - 3 mile radius

Prepared by Esri

Trends 2017-2022

2 -
1.8
1.6
1.4
1.2

1
0.8+
0.6~
0.4-

0'2_ N | - |

Annual Rate (in percent)

B Area
B sState
USA

Population Households Families Owner HHs Median HH Income

Population by Age

20-
18-
16
14
€
S 124
S 10+
[a 8-
6_
4. W 2017
2022
y R
O_
0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+
2017 Household Income 2017 Population by Race
$15K - $24K
14.9% 70+

$25K - $34K <$15K 60
13.9% 18.8%

50

=

)
Y 40+

_

o)
$200K+ A 304

3.7%
$35K - $49K $150KD- $199K
0,

13.6% 3.5% 20 -

$100K - $149K

N I
9.1%
50K - $74K
’ 13.8f/o $73K - $99K 0- |

8.8% White Black Am.Ind. Asian Pacific

2017 Percent Hispanic Origin: 5.5%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2017 and 2022.

Other Two+

November 10, 2017



®
@ esrl Demographic and Income Profile

Oshtemo Twp DDA District Center Prepared by Esri
3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009
Drive Time: 10 minute radius

Summary Census 2010 2017 2022
Population 80,212 85,087 88,391
Households 31,910 33,718 35,009
Families 16,990 17,524 17,996
Average Household Size 2.34 2.36 2.37
Owner Occupied Housing Units 17,643 17,938 18,547
Renter Occupied Housing Units 14,267 15,780 16,462
Median Age 28.3 29.3 30.3

Trends: 2017 - 2022 Annual Rate Area State National
Population 0.76% 0.21% 0.83%
Households 0.75% 0.23% 0.79%
Families 0.53% 0.11% 0.71%
Owner HHs 0.67% 0.22% 0.72%
Median Household Income 2.15% 1.58% 2.12%

2017 2022

Households by Income Number Percent Number Percent
<$15,000 5,511 16.3% 5,612 16.0%
$15,000 - $24,999 4,194 12.4% 4,040 11.5%
$25,000 - $34,999 3,921 11.6% 3,689 10.5%
$35,000 - $49,999 4,216 12.5% 3,952 11.3%
$50,000 - $74,999 4,955 14.7% 4,854 13.9%
$75,000 - $99,999 3,385 10.0% 3,764 10.8%
$100,000 - $149,999 3,845 11.4% 4,628 13.2%
$150,000 - $199,999 1,729 5.1% 2,083 5.9%
$200,000+ 1,961 5.8% 2,387 6.8%
Median Household Income $45,650 $50,766
Average Household Income $71,865 $81,640
Per Capita Income $29,566 $33,398

Census 2010 2017 2022

Population by Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
0-4 4,388 5.5% 4,292 5.0% 4,465 5.1%
5-9 4,447 5.5% 4,167 4.9% 4,190 4.7%
10 - 14 4,382 5.5% 4,321 5.1% 4,307 4.9%
15-19 7,819 9.7% 8,018 9.4% 8,202 9.3%
20 - 24 15,172 18.9% 16,273 19.1% 16,164 18.3%
25 - 34 10,108 12.6% 11,153 13.1% 11,626 13.2%
35-44 8,160 10.2% 8,057 9.5% 8,689 9.8%
45 - 54 8,861 11.0% 8,336 9.8% 8,086 9.1%
55 - 64 7,820 9.7% 8,775 10.3% 8,586 9.7%
65 - 74 4,393 5.5% 6,426 7.6% 7,768 8.8%
75 - 84 2,951 3.7% 3,272 3.8% 4,254 4.8%

85+ 1,711 2.1% 1,999 2.3% 2,054 2.3%
Census 2010 2017 2022

Race and Ethnicity Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
White Alone 66,099 82.4% 67,997 79.9% 68,989 78.0%
Black Alone 7,422 9.3% 8,426 9.9% 9,175 10.4%
American Indian Alone 262 0.3% 283 0.3% 302 0.3%
Asian Alone 2,899 3.6% 3,906 4.6% 4,657 5.3%
Pacific Islander Alone 33 0.0% 49 0.1% 64 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 956 1.2% 1,288 1.5% 1,537 1.7%
Two or More Races 2,541 3.2% 3,139 3.7% 3,668 4.1%
Hispanic Origin (Any Race) 2,925 3.6% 4,086 4.8% 5,085 5.8%

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2017 and 2022.

November 10, 2017



®
@ esrl Demographic and Income Profile

Oshtemo Twp DDA District Center Prepared by Esri
3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009
Drive Time: 10 minute radius

Trends 2017-2022

2 -
1.8
1.6
1.4
1.2+

1
0.8

0.6 B Area
0.4+ B sState

0.5— . . - . USA

Population Households Families Owner HHs Median HH Income

Annual Rate (in percent)

Population by Age

18
16
14+
o 124
fo
§ 10
g 8
6_
4- B 2017
2022
] I N
O_
0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+
2017 Household Income 2017 Population by Race
$15K - $24K
$25K - §34K 12.4% 20 -
11.6%
<$15K 60
16.3%
$35K - $49K 50 +
12.5% =
S 40-
]
o
$200K+ 30~
5.8%
$150K - $199K 20+
$50K - $74K 5.1%
14.7% 10+
$100K - $149K
$75K - $99K 11.4% 0- l || [ |
10.0% White Black Am.Ind. Asian Pacific Other Two+

2017 Percent Hispanic Origin: 4.8%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2017 and 2022.

November 10, 2017



®
@ esrl Demographic and Income Profile

Oshtemo DDA 10 Minue Drive Cut Off at I-94 and US-131 Prepared by Esri
Area: 39.21 square miles

Summary Census 2010 2017 2022
Population 22,363 23,588 24,461
Households 9,078 9,533 9,870
Families 5,553 5,721 5,868
Average Household Size 2.45 2.46 2.47
Owner Occupied Housing Units 6,151 6,279 6,523
Renter Occupied Housing Units 2,927 3,254 3,347
Median Age 35.5 37.0 38.6

Trends: 2017 - 2022 Annual Rate Area State National
Population 0.73% 0.21% 0.83%
Households 0.70% 0.23% 0.79%
Families 0.51% 0.11% 0.71%
Owner HHs 0.77% 0.22% 0.72%
Median Household Income 2.48% 1.58% 2.12%

2017 2022

Households by Income Number Percent Number Percent
<$15,000 1,182 12.4% 1,164 11.8%
$15,000 - $24,999 979 10.3% 907 9.2%
$25,000 - $34,999 886 9.3% 799 8.1%
$35,000 - $49,999 1,172 12.3% 1,070 10.8%
$50,000 - $74,999 1,629 17.1% 1,568 15.9%
$75,000 - $99,999 1,109 11.6% 1,214 12.3%
$100,000 - $149,999 1,431 15.0% 1,733 17.6%
$150,000 - $199,999 599 6.3% 745 7.5%
$200,000+ 545 5.7% 671 6.8%
Median Household Income $56,392 $63,731
Average Household Income $79,481 $91,108
Per Capita Income $32,446 $37,113

Census 2010 2017 2022

Population by Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
0-4 1,362 6.1% 1,315 5.6% 1,337 5.5%
5-9 1,459 6.5% 1,370 5.8% 1,367 5.6%
10 - 14 1,423 6.4% 1,436 6.1% 1,439 5.9%
15-19 1,578 7.1% 1,666 7.1% 1,731 7.1%
20 - 24 2,563 11.5% 2,535 10.7% 2,487 10.2%
25 - 34 2,667 11.9% 2,906 12.3% 2,773 11.3%
35-44 2,692 12.0% 2,685 11.4% 2,971 12.1%
45 - 54 2,908 13.0% 2,770 11.7% 2,711 11.1%
55 - 64 2,765 12.4% 3,014 12.8% 2,860 11.7%
65 - 74 1,525 6.8% 2,298 9.7% 2,754 11.3%
75 - 84 896 4.0% 1,020 4.3% 1,419 5.8%

85+ 524 2.3% 572 2.4% 611 2.5%
Census 2010 2017 2022

Race and Ethnicity Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
White Alone 19,060 85.2% 19,585 83.0% 19,911 81.4%
Black Alone 1,776 7.9% 2,037 8.6% 2,245 9.2%
American Indian Alone 77 0.3% 84 0.4% 89 0.4%
Asian Alone 561 2.5% 753 3.2% 894 3.7%
Pacific Islander Alone 8 0.0% 10 0.0% 13 0.1%
Some Other Race Alone 252 1.1% 337 1.4% 398 1.6%
Two or More Races 630 2.8% 781 3.3% 910 3.7%
Hispanic Origin (Any Race) 799 3.6% 1,109 4.7% 1,365 5.6%

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2017 and 2022.

November 10, 2017



o
@GSI’I”

Oshtemo DDA 10 Minue Drive Cut Off at I-94 and US-131
Area: 39.21 square miles

Prepared by Esri

Trends 2017-2022

2.4+
2.2

2 -
1.8
1.6
1.4
1.2+

1

0.8

0.6

0.4 I

o.g— || B - ||

Annual Rate (in percent)

B Area
B sState
[ usa

Population Households Families Owner HHs Median HH Income

Population by Age

12
10
= 8-
fo
(]
o
4_
M 2017
2 II W 2022
O_
- 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+
2017 Household Income 2017 Population by Race
$25K - $34K 80
9.3% $15K - $24K
$35K - $49K 10.3% 204
12.3%
<$15K 60
12.4%
+ 504
c
(]
g 40
o
$50K - $74K $200K+ 30+
17.1% 5.7%
$150K - $199K 20~
6.3%
104
$75K - $99K .
; $100K - $149K
11.6% 15.0% 0- B | |

White Black Am. Ind. Asian Pacific

2017 Percent Hispanic Origin: 4.7%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2017 and 2022.

Other Two+

November 10, 2017



o
@GSI‘P

3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009
Ring Band: 0 - 3 mile radius

Prepared by Esri

Summary Demographics
2017 Population
2017 Households
2017 Median Disposable Income
2017 Per Capita Income

Industry Summary
Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink
Total Retail Trade
Total Food & Drink

Industry Group
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers
Automobile Dealers
Other Motor Vehicle Dealers
Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores
Furniture Stores
Home Furnishings Stores
Electronics & Appliance Stores
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores
Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers
Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores
Food & Beverage Stores
Grocery Stores
Specialty Food Stores
Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores
Health & Personal Care Stores
Gasoline Stations
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores
Clothing Stores
Shoe Stores
Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores
Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores
Book, Periodical & Music Stores
General Merchandise Stores
Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts.
Other General Merchandise Stores
Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Florists
Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores
Used Merchandise Stores
Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Nonstore Retailers
Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses
Vending Machine Operators
Direct Selling Establishments
Food Services & Drinking Places
Special Food Services
Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages
Restaurants/Other Eating Places

NAICS

44-45,722
44-45

722
NAICS

441
4411
4412
4413

442
4421
4422

443

444
4441
4442

445
4451
4452
4453

446,4461

447,4471

448
4481
4482
4483

451
4511
4512

452
4521
4529

453
4531
4532
4533
4539

454
4541
4542
4543

722
7223
7224
7225

Demand
(Retail Potential)

$452,110,722
$407,795,482
$44,315,240

Demand

(Retail Potential)

$85,662,980
$69,554,432
$7,214,500
$8,894,048
$13,539,978
$8,568,722
$4,971,256
$13,492,747
$25,616,431
$23,458,818
$2,157,612
$73,691,293
$64,622,518
$3,633,820
$5,434,955
$28,691,604
$47,375,512
$21,924,878
$14,633,779
$3,147,060
$4,144,039
$11,321,873
$9,332,012
$1,989,861
$64,332,571
$44,253,610
$20,078,960
$14,777,361
$633,647
$3,071,361
$2,687,225
$8,385,128
$7,368,255
$6,045,937
$443,298
$879,021
$44,315,240
$1,228,360
$2,496,971
$40,589,909

Supply

(Retail Sales)
$1,131,626,375
$1,053,934,451
$77,691,924

Supply

(Retail Sales)
$417,081,591
$385,269,408
$3,556,333
$28,255,850
$42,678,388
$20,123,240
$22,555,149
$3,632,440
$47,244,404
$44,924,197
$2,320,207
$72,523,669
$65,293,431
$0
$7,198,025
$22,392,040
$61,091,994
$6,333,446
$1,731,748
$3,105,599
$1,496,099
$19,084,379
$18,179,741
$904,637
$340,566,371
$177,601,444
$162,964,927
$20,578,568
$4,212,406
$8,382,706
$878,220
$7,105,235
$727,162
$0
$0
$727,162
$77,691,924
$658,173
$408,583
$76,625,168

Retail Gap

-$679,515,653

-$646,138,969
-$33,376,684
Retail Gap

-$331,418,611
-$315,714,976
$3,658,167
-$19,361,802
-$29,138,410
-$11,554,518
-$17,583,893
$9,860,307
-$21,627,973
-$21,465,379
-$162,595
$1,167,624
-$670,913
$3,633,820
-$1,763,070
$6,299,564
-$13,716,482
$15,591,432
$12,902,031
$41,461
$2,647,940
-$7,762,506
-$8,847,729
$1,085,224
-$276,233,800
-$133,347,834
-$142,885,967
-$5,801,207
-$3,578,759
-$5,311,345
$1,809,005
$1,279,893
$6,641,093
$6,045,937
$443,298
$151,859
-$33,376,684
$570,187
$2,088,388
-$36,035,259

35,445
15,731
$31,045
$26,150
Leakage/Surplus Number of
Factor Businesses
-42.9 257
-44.2 167
-27.4 90
Leakage/Surplus Number of
Factor Businesses
-65.9 42
-69.4 26
34.0 1
-52.1 15
-51.8 12
-40.3 9
-63.9 3
57.6 6
-29.7 15
-31.4 12
-3.6 2
0.8 17
-0.5 12
100.0 0
-14.0 5
12.3 13
-12.6 11
55.2 8
78.8 3
0.7 3
46.9 2
-25.5 12
-32.2 10
37.5 2
-68.2 9
-60.1 4
-78.1 5
-16.4 20
-73.8 3
-46.4 5
50.7 2
8.3 10
82.0 1
100.0
100.0
9.5 1
-27.4 90
30.2
71.9 1
-30.7 86

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars. The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This
is @ measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf

Source: Esri and Infogroup. Retail MarketPlace 2017. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

November 10, 2017



o
@GSI’F

3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009 Prepared by Esri
Ring Band: 0 - 3 mile radius

Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers

Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores
Food & Beverage Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores [—

Gasoline Stations

Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores

General Merchandise Stores
Miscellaneous Store Retailers

Nonstore Retailers

Food Services & Drinking Places

-60 -40 -20

o

20 40 60 80
Leakage/Surplus Factor

Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group

Automobile Dealers

Other Motor Vehicle Dealers

Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores
Furniture Stores

Home Furnishings Stores

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Building Material and Supplies Dealers

Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores
Grocery Stores

Specialty Food Stores

Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Gasoline Stations

Clothing Stores

Shoe Stores

Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores
Book, Periodical, and Music Stores
Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)
Other General Merchandise Stores

Florists

Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores
Used Merchandise Stores

Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses
Vending Machine Operators

Direct Selling Establishments

Special Food Services

Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)
Restaurants/Other Eating Places

-60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100
Leakage/Surplus Factor

Source: Esri and Infogroup. Retail MarketPlace 2017. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

November 10, 2017



& esri

Retail MarketPlace Profile

Oshtemo Twp DDA District Center
3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009
Drive Time: 10 minute radius

Prepared by Esri

Summary Demographics
2017 Population
2017 Households
2017 Median Disposable Income
2017 Per Capita Income

Industry Summary
Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink
Total Retail Trade
Total Food & Drink

Industry Group
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers
Automobile Dealers
Other Motor Vehicle Dealers
Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores
Furniture Stores
Home Furnishings Stores
Electronics & Appliance Stores
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores
Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers
Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores
Food & Beverage Stores
Grocery Stores
Specialty Food Stores
Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores
Health & Personal Care Stores
Gasoline Stations
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores
Clothing Stores
Shoe Stores
Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores
Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores
Book, Periodical & Music Stores
General Merchandise Stores
Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts.
Other General Merchandise Stores
Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Florists
Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores
Used Merchandise Stores
Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Nonstore Retailers
Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses
Vending Machine Operators
Direct Selling Establishments
Food Services & Drinking Places
Special Food Services
Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages
Restaurants/Other Eating Places

NAICS

44-45,722
44-45

722
NAICS

441
4411
4412
4413

442
4421
4422

443

444
4441
4442

445
4451
4452
4453

446,4461

447,4471

448
4481
4482
4483

451
4511
4512

452
4521
4529

453
4531
4532
4533
4539

454
4541
4542
4543

722
7223
7224
7225

Demand
(Retail Potential)

$1,151,628,082
$1,038,820,906
$112,807,176

Demand

(Retail Potential)

$218,064,925
$176,569,414
$18,764,023
$22,731,488
$34,930,855
$21,743,185
$13,187,670
$34,363,834
$69,178,891
$63,262,685
$5,916,206
$185,594,568
$162,676,739
$9,121,941
$13,795,888
$73,154,782
$118,502,680
$56,177,178
$37,327,786
$8,029,449
$10,819,943
$28,884,455
$23,970,649
$4,913,805
$163,409,853
$112,773,895
$50,635,958
$37,603,705
$1,765,623
$7,876,218
$6,783,425
$21,178,439
$18,955,179
$15,398,949
$1,114,288
$2,441,942
$112,807,176
$3,191,448
$6,576,814
$103,038,914

Supply

(Retail Sales)
$1,757,278,152
$1,606,422,674
$150,855,478

Supply

(Retail Sales)
$458,534,730
$413,403,321
$11,635,821
$33,495,588
$69,790,912
$35,815,813
$33,975,099
$14,356,459
$73,878,228
$70,104,332
$3,773,896
$196,731,360
$183,458,685
$2,985,073
$10,287,603
$59,782,562
$90,504,407
$35,833,925
$23,057,917
$8,152,002
$4,624,005
$51,804,411
$41,623,473
$10,180,938
$517,013,060
$245,928,218
$271,084,843
$35,029,792
$5,590,668
$12,577,142
$4,403,059
$12,458,923
$3,162,827
$0
$0
$979,684
$150,855,478
$8,441,633
$2,152,535
$140,261,310

Retail Gap

-$605,650,070

-$567,601,768
-$38,048,302
Retail Gap

-$240,469,805
-$236,833,907
$7,128,202
-$10,764,100
-$34,860,057
-$14,072,628
-$20,787,429
$20,007,375
-$4,699,337
-$6,841,647
$2,142,310
-$11,136,792
-$20,781,946
$6,136,868
$3,508,285
$13,372,220
$27,998,273
$20,343,253
$14,269,869
-$122,553
$6,195,938
-$22,919,956
-$17,652,824
-$5,267,133
-$353,603,207
-$133,154,323
-$220,448,885
$2,573,913
-$3,825,045
-$4,700,924
$2,380,366
$8,719,516
$15,792,352
$15,398,949
$1,114,288
$1,462,258
-$38,048,302
-$5,250,185
$4,424,279
-$37,222,396

Leakage/Surplus
Factor
-20.8
-21.5
-14.4

Leakage/Surplus
Factor
-35.5
-40.1

23.4
-19.1
-33.3
-24.4
-44.1

41.1

-3.3
5l
22.1
-2.9
-6.0

50.7

14.6

10.1

13.4

22.1

23.6

-0.8

40.1
-28.4
-26.9
-34.9
-52.0
=3)7/5l
-68.5

3.5
-52.0
-23.0

21.3

25.9

71.4
100.0
100.0

42.7
-14.4
-45.1

50.7
-15.3

85,087
33,718
$37,950
$29,566
Number of
Businesses
498

329

169
Number of
Businesses
54

33

2

20

22

15

7

13

27

21

7

36

22

7

7

33

17

35

19

7

9

29

23

6

16

6

10

42

4

9

9

20

4

0

0

3

169

6

4

159

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars. The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This
is @ measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf

Source: Esri and Infogroup. Retail MarketPlace 2017. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

November 10, 2017



®
@ esrl Retail MarketPlace Profile

Oshtemo Twp DDA District Center Prepared by Esri
3311 S 9th St, Oshtemo Twp, Michigan, 49009
Drive Time: 10 minute radius

Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers

Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores

Electronics & Appliance Stores
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores

Food & Beverage Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Gasoline Stations

Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores

General Merchandise Stores

Miscellaneous Store Retailers

Nonstore Retailers

Food Services & Drinking Places —
-50 -40 -30 -20 -10 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70
Leakage/Surplus Factor

Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group

Automobile Dealers

Other Motor Vehicle Dealers

Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores
Furniture Stores

Home Furnishings Stores

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Building Material and Supplies Dealers

Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores
Grocery Stores

Specialty Food Stores

Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Gasoline Stations

Clothing Stores

Shoe Stores

Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores
Book, Periodical, and Music Stores
Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)
Other General Merchandise Stores

Florists

Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores
Used Merchandise Stores

Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses
Vending Machine Operators

Direct Selling Establishments

Special Food Services

Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)
Restaurants/Other Eating Places

-60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100
Leakage/Surplus Factor

Source: Esri and Infogroup. Retail MarketPlace 2017. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

November 10, 2017



o
@GSI‘P

Oshtemo DDA 10 Minue Drive Cut Off at I-94 and US-131
Area: 39.21 square miles

Prepared by Esri

Summary Demographics
2017 Population
2017 Households
2017 Median Disposable Income
2017 Per Capita Income

Industry Summary
Total Retail Trade and Food & Drink
Total Retail Trade
Total Food & Drink

Industry Group
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers
Automobile Dealers
Other Motor Vehicle Dealers
Auto Parts, Accessories & Tire Stores
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores
Furniture Stores
Home Furnishings Stores
Electronics & Appliance Stores
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores
Bldg Material & Supplies Dealers
Lawn & Garden Equip & Supply Stores
Food & Beverage Stores
Grocery Stores
Specialty Food Stores
Beer, Wine & Liquor Stores
Health & Personal Care Stores
Gasoline Stations
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores
Clothing Stores
Shoe Stores
Jewelry, Luggage & Leather Goods Stores
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores
Sporting Goods/Hobby/Musical Instr Stores
Book, Periodical & Music Stores
General Merchandise Stores
Department Stores Excluding Leased Depts.
Other General Merchandise Stores
Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Florists
Office Supplies, Stationery & Gift Stores
Used Merchandise Stores
Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Nonstore Retailers
Electronic Shopping & Mail-Order Houses
Vending Machine Operators
Direct Selling Establishments
Food Services & Drinking Places
Special Food Services
Drinking Places - Alcoholic Beverages
Restaurants/Other Eating Places

NAICS

44-45,722
44-45

722
NAICS

441
4411
4412
4413

442
4421
4422

443

444
4441
4442

445
4451
4452
4453

446,4461

447,4471

448
4481
4482
4483

451
4511
4512

452
4521
4529

453
4531
4532
4533
4539

454
4541
4542
4543

722
7223
7224
7225

Demand
(Retail Potential)

$359,075,632
$324,318,586
$34,757,046

Demand

(Retail Potential)

$67,891,845
$54,848,486
$5,924,546
$7,118,813
$10,877,041
$6,669,079
$4,207,961
$10,609,569
$22,486,459
$20,570,459
$1,916,000
$57,779,366
$50,667,866
$2,834,375
$4,277,125
$23,337,346
$36,773,384
$17,278,630
$11,477,893
$2,465,548
$3,335,189
$8,897,383
$7,449,972
$1,447,411
$50,686,383
$34,933,051
$15,753,332
$11,778,338
$567,373
$2,469,109
$2,073,763
$6,668,094
$5,922,841
$4,787,422
$345,283
$790,136
$34,757,046
$974,836
$2,043,592
$31,738,619

Supply
(Retail Sales)
$535,419,040
$510,896,315

$24,522,726

Supply
(Retail Sales)
$194,977,771
$161,888,723

$11,611,223
$21,477,824
$27,700,398
$4,872,928
$22,827,469
$4,074,815
$29,250,831
$26,493,973
$2,756,858
$96,242,555
$90,643,223
$676,543
$4,922,788
$10,474,664
$13,052,270
$1,412,848
$0

$0
$1,375,574
$14,718,518
$14,056,831
$661,687
$108,576,295
$106,114,000
$2,462,295
$8,459,482
$1,777,071
$4,975,398
$0
$1,647,785
$0

$0

$0

$0
$24,522,726
$567,836
$408,583
$23,546,307

Retail Gap

-$176,343,408

-$186,577,729

$10,234,320
Retail Gap

-$127,085,926
-$107,040,237
-$5,686,677
-$14,359,011
-$16,823,357
$1,796,151
-$18,619,508
$6,534,754
-$6,764,372
-$5,923,514
-$840,858
-$38,463,189
-$39,975,357
$2,157,832
-$645,663
$12,862,682
$23,721,114
$15,865,782
$11,477,893
$2,465,548
$1,959,615
-$5,821,135
-$6,606,859
$785,724
-$57,889,912
-$71,180,949
$13,291,037
$3,318,856
-$1,209,698
-$2,506,289
$2,073,763
$5,020,309
$5,922,841
$4,787,422
$345,283
$790,136
$10,234,320
$407,000
$1,635,009
$8,192,312

Leakage/Surplus
Factor
-19.7
-22.3

17.3

Leakage/Surplus
Factor
-48.3
-49.4
-32.4
-50.2
-43.6

15.6
-68.9
44.5
-13.1
-12.6
-18.0
-25.0
-28.3
61.5
-7.0
38.0
47.6
84.9
100.0
100.0
41.6
-24.6
-30.7
37.3
-36.3
-50.5
73.0
16.4
-51.6
-33.7
100.0
60.4
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
17.3
26.4
66.7
14.8

23,588
9,533
$46,233
$32,446
Number of
Businesses
134

98

36

Number of
Businesses
24

13

2

9

10

6

4

6

17

13

5

-
OO0 O0OO0OO0OONFOUWRMNRHLONNOOWDRMPWREOO

w w
N = N O

Data Note: Supply (retail sales) estimates sales to consumers by establishments. Sales to businesses are excluded. Demand (retail potential) estimates the expected amount
spent by consumers at retail establishments. Supply and demand estimates are in current dollars. The Leakage/Surplus Factor presents a snapshot of retail opportunity. This
is @ measure of the relationship between supply and demand that ranges from +100 (total leakage) to -100 (total surplus). A positive value represents 'leakage' of retail
opportunity outside the trade area. A negative value represents a surplus of retail sales, a market where customers are drawn in from outside the trade area. The Retail Gap
represents the difference between Retail Potential and Retail Sales. Esri uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) to classify businesses by their
primary type of economic activity. Retail establishments are classified into 27 industry groups in the Retail Trade sector, as well as four industry groups within the Food
Services & Drinking Establishments subsector. For more information on the Retail MarketPlace data, please click the link below to view the Methodology Statement.
http://www.esri.com/library/whitepapers/pdfs/esri-data-retail-marketplace.pdf

Source: Esri and Infogroup. Retail MarketPlace 2017. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

November 10, 2017



o
@GSI’F

Oshtemo DDA 10 Minue Drive Cut Off at I-94 and US-131 Prepared by Esri
Area: 39.21 square miles

Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Subsector

Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers

Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores

Electronics & Appliance Stores
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Gasoline Stations

—
Food & Beverage Stores ——
Clothing and Clothing Accessories Stores

——

Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, and Music Stores

General Merchandise Stores
Miscellaneous Store Retailers

[—
Nonstore Retailers
Food Services & Drinking Places [—
0

20 40 60 80 100
Leakage/Surplus Factor

Leakage/Surplus Factor by Industry Group

Automobile Dealers

Other Motor Vehicle Dealers

Auto Parts, Accessories, and Tire Stores
Furniture Stores

Home Furnishings Stores

Electronics & Appliance Stores

Building Material and Supplies Dealers

Lawn and Garden Equipment and Supplies Stores
Grocery Stores

Specialty Food Stores

Beer, Wine, and Liquor Stores

Health & Personal Care Stores

Gasoline Stations

Clothing Stores

Shoe Stores

Jewelry, Luggage, and Leather Goods Stores
Book, Periodical, and Music Stores
Department Stores (Excluding Leased Depts.)
Other General Merchandise Stores

Florists

Office Supplies, Stationery, and Gift Stores
Used Merchandise Stores

Other Miscellaneous Store Retailers
Electronic Shopping and Mail-Order Houses
Vending Machine Operators

Direct Selling Establishments

Special Food Services

Drinking Places (Alcoholic Beverages)
Restaurants/Other Eating Places

-60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100
Leakage/Surplus Factor

Source: Esri and Infogroup. Retail MarketPlace 2017. Copyright 2017 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved.

November 10, 2017



N

[ ]umznir{ tororship

osbtemo

October 17, 2019 ™ @st. 1839

/ﬂ \\'\\

Mtg Date: October 24, 2019

To: Planning Commission

From: Julie Johnston, AICP

Subject: Maple Hill South Overlay — Draft Ordinance Continued Discussion

At the September 24" meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the difference between net and gross
acreage and its impact on the density and open space requirements of the draft Ordinance. As arefresher,
the information provided at that meeting can be found here:

https://www.oshtemo.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/PC-Agenda-Packet-09-26-2019.pdf

No final decisions were made at the September meeting, so staff would recommend beginning our
discussion on residential maximum densities and density bonuses.

In addition, some new language was added to the draft ordinance related to private streets. The original
draft of the Maple Hill South Overlay Zone indicated that all streets had to comply with the standards of
the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County. There were concerns that the required 66-foot easement
and requisite pavement widths may be too wide for the mixed-use development type desired at Maple
Hill South. Staff conduction research into complete street policies and reviewed other communities that
allow different street design requirements that achieve a more compact mixed-use development.
Discussion will be needed to determine if the right-of-way allowances presented make sense for the
Overlay Zone.

Thank you.

Attachments: Draft Maple Hill South Overlay Zone
NACTO — Lane Widths
PlannersWeb — Street Width Debate
Complete Street Practices — Sacramento Collaborative - excerpts
Colorado Springs Mixed Use Design Manual - excerpts


https://www.oshtemo.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/PC-Agenda-Packet-09-26-2019.pdf

Oshtemo Township
Maple Hill South Mixed-Use Overlay District

SECTION XX.000 MAPLE HILL SOUTH MIXED-USE OVERLAY DISTRICT
October 24 Draft

XX.10

A

INTENT AND APPLICABILITY

Intent. The Maple Hill South Mixed-Use Overlay District (MHS-Overlay District) is intended to
provide, through comprehensive planning, zoning and project review, for the development of a
compact, pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use district, consisting of a planned mixture of
commercial, office and technology, residential, and public use, which features high quality and
uniform building and site design standards, and which complements and is compatible with
adjacent uses. The district is designed to provide residents and visitors with a unique
opportunity to meet their needs for housing, employment services, entertainment, and
recreation.

Optional Overlay. The MHS-Overlay District is established as an optional overlay district, the
limits of which are designated on the official Zoning Map of Oshtemo Township. This means that
it is overlaid on other, existing zoning districts. Within this optional overlay district, property
owners have the option to continue to use their property in the manner permitted in the
underlying districts. The overlay district provides additional opportunities and flexibility should
property owners choose to avail themselves of those choices. These opportunities within the
overlay district, however, do not apply unless the property owner elects to become subject to
the overlay district and the standards and procedures contained herein.

Eligibility Criteria. In order to qualify as an eligible development under the MHP-Overlay District
standards and procedures contained herein, the Planning Commission, shall find that the
development demonstrates compliance with the following principles:

1. Size. In order to ensure that the intent of this Overlay District is accomplished, projects
must be of a sufficient size. A minimum development size of 80 acres of contiguous land
shall be required, which may be developed in phases.

2. Walkability. Physical infrastructure shall be provided to support pedestrian access and a
mix of amenities and destinations within a reasonable walking distance. Blecks-shal-be
shertand-walkable. Streets should shall be walkable, designed for cars, bicycles, and
pedestrians, and comply with the Township’s Complete Streets policy.

3. Circulation. Site access and on-site circulation shall be provided through an
interconnected network of streets, sidewalks and other routes-Agrid-like-An-integrated
network-ofstreetsshall-be-established-te that enable an efficient dispersion of traffic.
Accommodations for transit facilities sheuld-beprovided shall be requested.

4, Pedestrian-Orientation. Sites shall be designed such that vehicles are not the dominant
feature. Large expanses of pavement shall be replaced or reduced via on-street parking,

Page 1



parking structures, shared parking, underground parking, and other parking
management strategies.

Mixed-Use. There shall be a variety of compatible uses, services and building types that
serve the needs of residents, workers, and visitors alike. A range of types, sizes,
amenities, and uses will enhance a series of inviting functional spaces, including streets
and pedestrian-friendly streetscapes, open spaces, courtyards, trails, residential, office,
and retail in mixed-use buildings. Varied styles of residential development shall be

provided te-attractresidents-of diverse-ages-incomes;-andlifestyles for example, lofts,

townhomes, duplexes, cottages, single-family homes, etc .

District Identity and Physical Design. A coordinated distinct identity shall be developed
for the District to promote a sense of place. Building design shall be elevated with varied
building heights, architectural character, and high-quality building materials that provide
visual interest at a pedestrian scale. A streetscape aesthetic shall be designed that
includes public elements and integrated gateways and signage within the District.

Community Spaces. Open spaces and community gathering spaces shall be provided
within the District to be used as locations to stimulate social interaction, civic events,
and recreational activity. Passive open spaces shall be designed to be reflective of the
existing landscape and natural features (tree rows, ponds, etc.) of the site. Active plazas
and civic spaces shall also be integrated into the overall development.

Compatibility with Adjacent Residential Uses. The physical height and bulk of buildings
shall reduce in size from north to south, providing compatibility in size to the adjacent
residential neighborhoods. A transitional land use scheme shall be employed, with the
least intensive and lowest density land uses to be located along the southern edge of
the District (adjacent to established residential areas).

XX.20 CONTEXT ZONES

The Maple Hill South Mixed Use Overlay District is divided into three four Context Zones. These Context
Zones are illustrated on the map herein and are as follows: Gateway (G); Mixed-Use Transition (MT);
Town Center (TC); and Neighborhood Transition (NT). The regulations of this Article related to uses
allowed, building heights, building design, site orientation, parking and other development standards
may vary for each of the Context Zones. The Planning Commission is given the authority to permit
flexibility in the delineation of the context zones to encourage innovation in land use and variety of
design, layout, type and use of structures.

[Insert Context Zones Map]

XX.30 USES PERMITTED BY CONTEXT ZONE

A.

Permitted Uses. The following Context Zone character descriptions shall determine the types of
uses which may be allowed. The Planning Commission, may approve any use determined to be
compatible with the Context Zone character descriptions, with the exception of prohibited uses
listed in Subsection B.

Page 2



1. Gateway (G) — Lands along the edge of the MHS-Overlay District with frontage along or
near U.S. 131 and/or\West Main-Street are designated in this Context Zone. Land uses
within this area will primarily be of a retail, restaurant, entertainment, lodging, office
and technology character. Other uses may also be accommodated, including compatible
medical, educational, institutional and higher-density residential use.

2. Mixed-Use Transition - Lands along the edge of the MHS-Overlay District with frontage
along or near West Main Street are designated in this Context Zone. Land uses within
this area will primarily be of a retail, restaurant, entertainment, and office character,
with higher-density residential uses. Other uses may also be accommodated, including
compatible medical, educational, institutional and technology uses.

3. Town Center (TC) — This Context Zone is envisioned as a central focal point of the MHS-
Overlay District, with compact mixed-uses that will provide a nucleus to attract future
growth. Development will allow for a mix of uses both vertically within buildings and
horizontally within blocks. Mixed-use buildings could contain first-floor commercial,
retail, and/or office uses, with upper floor office and/or residential uses. Mixed-use
blocks allow for single-use buildings in a range of land uses within one block.
Commercial uses, professional offices, entertainment facilities and cultural centers are
encouraged.

4. Neighborhood Transition (NT) — This Context Zone is anticipated to accommodate a
wide variety of residential styles. This could include higher density residential land uses
adjacent to the Town Center, Gateway and/or existing commercial development on
West Main Street. Traditional single-family detached and/or attached residential uses
will be accommodated to serve as a buffer between mixed-uses within the District and
the adjacent neighborhoods to the south of the District.

4.
anel—eﬂj-ey—nat-u%e- (Plannmg Commission d|d not th|nk th|s was needed here as
community and open space uses are requirements in the development standards. It
was determined that this section of the Overlay should just deal with the Context
Zones.)

B. Prohibited Uses. The following uses are specifically prohibited within the MHS-Overlay District:

1. New and/or used car sales lots; recreational vehicle sales lots; mobile home sales lots
outside of mobile home parks; farm machinery and other equipment sales lots; boat
sales lots; and other businesses involving substantial outdoor sales. eractivities

2. Filling stations, carwashes, public-garages or service stations, automobile repair, auto

body, auto glass repair and auto paint shops.

Page 3



. : il ir_servi Y bileal (e facilitios.

4, Drive-in theatres.

5. Earth removal, quarrying, gravel processing, mining, related mineral extraction
businesses, and landfill gas recovery processing facilities.

6. Manufacturing, compounding, assembling or treatment of merchandise.
7. Wholesaling, storage buildings and/or warehousing efcemmedities; mini-
storage/warehouses.

g S buildi nini I .
9. Outdoor equipment and/or vehicle storage yards.
10. Commercial kennels for the breeding, raising and/or boarding of dogs or cats.

11. Adult regulated uses.

Page 4



XX.40 DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS

A. Net Acreage. For the purposes of this Article, net acreage shall be defined as the gross acreage
of the proposed development, minus public/private rights-of-way and stormwater detention
areas. However, stormwater detention areas may be included within the net acreage if they are
designed as functional open spaces, are accessible to pedestrians, and do not require safety
fencing.

B. Site Development Requirements. The following regulations shall apply to all development
within the MHS-Overlay District.

Height Placement Minimum
P Floor Area | Minimum
Minimum . _— —
C;ntext Blui:di:g Maximum | Frontand | Minimum | Minimum per Required
one TV . .
Height Building Street Side Rear Dwelling | Open Space
(1) Height Sides Setback Setback Unit
3 stories/
6-steries
ith i
Us-134
frontage
45 feet 15% of net
Gateway (G) 1s fe’ ejt east of 15(;e)et 10(£e)et Zo(ge)zet (4) acreage
utility (5)
easement
90 feet
west of
utility
easement
[s)
Mixed-Use | istery/18 | 3-steries 15 feet 10 feet 20 feet (4) 12?;2; n:t
Transition 15 feet 45 feet (2) (2) (2) (S)g
0 feet o
Town - - required 0 feet 0 feet (4) 125(;:: neet
Center (TC) 30 feet 75 feet building line &
(3) (5)
Neighbor- 25% of
hood 1story 2-stories 15 feet 10 feet 15 feet 4) acorga neet
Transition 15 feet 30 feet 2) 2) 2) (S)g
(NT)

Footnotes to the Development Requirements Table:

(1)

(2)

A minimum interior ground floor height of 12 feet shall be required for all development
within the MHS-Overlay District, except in the Neighborhood Transition Context Zone.

The Planning Commission, may approve reduced setbacks to allow for buildings to be
placed in a manner that encourages a consistent street wall and provides for a usable

sidewalk area and a more attractive pedestrian environment.

Page 5




(3) Buildings shall be placed on lots in relation to their frontages in a manner that
encourages a consistent street wall and provides for a usable sidewalk area and a more
attractive pedestrian environment. 75% of the building facade must meet the required
building line, while up to 25% of the fagade can be setback to allow for architectural
considerations such as outdoor cafés, plazas, squares or other public spaces. The
required build to line and frontage coverages may be modified by the Planning
Commission, provided that the location of any proposed building is in keeping with or
improves the context of the existing area.

(4) The minimum floor area per dwelling unit shall be 400 square feet. as-follows:

(5) Required open space may include plazas, parks, pedestrian pathways, lakes or similar
types of park-like features.

Residential Maximum Density and Density Bonus.

1.

2. Maximum Density. The maximum residential density shall not exceed six (6) dwelling
units per net acreage of the development.

3. Density Bonus. The inclusion of certain amenities or design options may result in an

allowed increase in residential density, referred to as a density bonus. However, the
total density bonus shall not result in a residential density of more than eight (8)
dwelling units per net acreage of development.

The Planning Commission may determine the density bonus upon a finding that the
proposed development would accomplish at least four (4) of the below amenities or
design options. One (1) of the four (4) options must be a public amenity as outlined in
subsections (a) through (c).

Page 6



If the development is proposed in phases, the Planning Commission may, at its
discretion, approve density bonuses for one or more phases, commensurate with the
amenities or design options proposed for each phase.

a. Constructionand Dedication of land for a public park, plaza, community
buildings, or open space use, if acceptable to the Township.

b. Development of significant recreational or site amenities such as gelf-courses,

baseball diamonds, tennis courts, basketball courts and-cemmunity-buildings, or

similar amenities.

C. In addition to sidewalks required along public streets, the development of
pedestrian, bicycle, or other recreational trails for public use that are separated
from vehicular traffic, within the development and connecting to adjacent
development.

d. Provision of open space in an amount which is at least 50 percent greater than
the minimum open space percentage required by Section XX.40.A.

e. Significant use of sustainable building design features such as, optimized energy
performance, on-site renewable energy, passive solar heating, use of
reused/recycled/renewable materials, indoor air quality mechanisms, green
roofs, or other elements identified as sustainable by established groups such as
the US Green Building Council (LEED) or ANSI National Green Building Standards.

f. Significant use of sustainable site design features such as stormwater filtration
landscaping, low impact stormwater management, permeable surfaces,
bioretention facilities, or other elements identified as sustainable by established
groups such as the US Green Building Council (LEED).

g. Provision of other exceptional public benefits within the development that are
determined by the Planning Commission as sufficient to qualify as one of the

four required amenities or design options justifying a density bonus.

D. Road Design.

1. The development shall be serviced by an interior street system, which may be public,
private, or a combination of both. The Planning Commission may require certain streets,
which are needed to complete the public road network, to be developed as public rights-of-
way.

2. Streets shall be interconnected with each other and with streets on abutting properties in a
grid or modified grid pattern.

Page 7



Cul-de-sacs shall be minimized and in no case shall a permanent cul-de-sac exceed a length
of three hundred and fifty (350) feet.

Public Rights-of-Way. All public rights-of-way, including road development, shall be designed
to meet the standards and requirements of the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County, as
well as Article 51: Access Management Guidelines of the Township Zoning Ordinance.

Private Road Guidelines

a. Private roads may consist of the following classifications and designed to the following

standards:
i. Alleyways
Purpose To provide access to rear or side of properties.
Right-Of-way 20 feet
Street Width 20 feet
Number of Travel Lanes | 2
ii. Local Residential Street
Purpose To serve the local residential access needs within
the development.
Right-Of-Way* 56 feet
Street Width (curb to curb) | 32 feet
On-Street Parking Parallel (7 feet)
Number of Travel Lanes 2
Block Length 600 feet maximum
Alleys Optional
Landscape Strip 6 feet
Sidewalk 5 feet + one foot beyond sidewalk
Bike Lane None

*Right-of-way width may be reduced to 42 feet if on-street parking is prohibited.

iii. Local Mixed-Use Street

Purpose To serve the areas of low-volume mixed-use access
needs within the development.

Right-Of-Way* 62 feet

Street Width (curb to curb) | 36 feet

On-Street Parking Parallel (8 feet)

Number of Travel Lanes 2

Block Length 600 feet maximum

Alleys Optional

Landscape Strip 6 feet

Sidewalk 6 feet + one foot beyond sidewalk

Bike Lane None

Page 8



iv. Collector Street

Purpose To serve as a distributor road within the
development and to move traffic from local streets
to arterial roads.

Right-Of-Way* 76 feet Parallel Parking, 98 feet Diagonal Parking

Street Width (curb to curb) | 46 feet Parallel Parking, 68 feet Diagonal Parking

On-Street Parking Parallel or Diagonal (8 feet or 19 feet)

Number of Travel Lanes 2

Block Length 1000 feet maximum

Alleys Optional

Landscape Strip 8 feet

Sidewalk 6 feet + one foot beyond sidewalk

Bike Lane 5 feet

Right-of-way may be reduced to 60 feet if on-street parking is prohibited.

v. Parkway

Purpose For swifter and unimpeded travel through the
development, carrying higher volumes of traffic.

Right-Of-Way 128 feet

Street Width (curb to curb) | 29 feet one way — total pavement width 58 feet

Median Type Raised

Median Width 16 feet

On-Street Parking No

Number of Travel Lanes 4

Block Length n/a

Alleys Optional

Landscape Strip 8 feet

Sidewalk 6 feet + one foot beyond sidewalk

Bike Lane 6 feet

b. Private roads shall comply with all other standards and requirements of the Road
Commission of Kalamazoo County.

6. Pedestrian Design Standards
a. Sidewalks
i. Sidewalks are required along all road frontages.
ii. Sidewalks shall connect the road frontage sidewalks to all front building entrances,
parking areas, central open space, and any other destination that generates

pedestrian traffic.

iii. Sidewalks shall connect to existing sidewalks on abutting properties and other
nearby pedestrian destination points and transit stops.

b. Pedestrian Trails

Page 9



E. Open Space.

1. Designated open space shall be set aside as common land and either retained in an
essentially undeveloped or unimproved state or improved as a "public gathering places'
to serve the following purposes:

a. Conservation of land and its resources

b. Ecological protection

d. Protect historic and/or scenic features

e. Shaping and guiding the development

f. Enhancement of values and safety

g. Provide opportunities for social interaction

h. Provide parkland and active recreational opportunities on a neighborhood scale.
2. Designated open space shall be under common ownership or control, such that there is

a single entity having proprietary responsibility. Sufficient documentation of ownership
or control in the form of agreements, contracts, covenants, and/or deed restrictions
shall be provided.

3. Designated open space shall be set aside through an irrevocable conveyance approved
by the Planning Commission, such as:

a. Recorded deed restrictions

b. Covenants that run perpetually with the land

C. A conservation easement

d. Land trusts.

e. Such conveyance shall assure that the open space is protected from

development, except as approved by the Planning Commission. Such
conveyance shall also:

1) Indicate the proposed allowable use(s) of the designated open space;

2) Require that the designated open space be maintained by parties who
have an ownership interest in the open space;

3) Provide standards for scheduled maintenance of the open space;

Page 10



4) Provide for maintenance to be undertaken by the Township in the event
that the dedicated open space is inadequately maintained or is
determined by the Township to be a public nuisance, with the
assessment of costs upon the open space ownership.

Buffer from Adjacent Residential Uses.

Access.

Where the height and bulk of any proposed residential construction is not equivalent
and more intensive than existing adjacent residential development, a greenspace
buffer/vegetative screen shall be provided which is acceptable to the Planning
Commission in terms of width, height and composition of plant materials.

Item to be discussed. Refer to the “Vehicular Circulation and Connections” narrative from the
Maple Hill Drive South Sub-Area Plan.

XX.50 AUTHORITY TO WAIVER DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS.

Regulations relating to the use of land, including permitted land uses, height requirements, yard
setbacks, and site improvements shall, in the first instance, be based upon the standards and
requirements outlined in this Article. However, the Planning Commission is given the authority to permit
flexibility in such standards and encourage innovation in land use and variety of design, layout, type and
use of structures, provided any variation granted would also result in the overall design being consistent
with the Intent and Eligibility Criteria of this Article, compatible with the adjacent uses of land, the
natural environment, and the capacities of public services and facilities affected by the land uses.

XX.60 APPLICATION AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES

A.

Optional pre-application review(s). Informal pre-application review(s) is encouraged and may be
scheduled with the Planning Department and/or Planning Commission, at which the project
concept may be reviewed by the applicant, Township staff, and Township consultants.

General Development Plan.

1.

An application proposing the development of land within the MHS-Overlay District shall
first be made through the submittal of a general development plan (GDP). An
application for review and approval of a GDP may be made by the owners of record or
by any persons acting on behalf of the owners of record of the subject parcel. The
applicant shall have a substantial interest in the subject property prior to filing; such
filing shall be in the name of and signed by all owners. The applicant shall provide
evidence of full ownership all land in the proposed project area, such as legal title or
execution of a binding sales agreement, prior to approval of the GDP by the Township.

Information required. The general development plan shall consist of a plan of the entire

area carried out in sufficient detail as to show topography, land uses proposed, the
densities and scale of development, the system of pedestrian and vehicular circulation,

Page 11



including off-street parking areas, and the relationship to adjacent properties and uses.
Further, the GDP shall contain all the following information:

a. A property survey of the exact acreage proposed to be developed, prepared by
a registered land surveyor or civil engineer (Scale: 1" = 50');

b. The intent of nonresidential development, type and gross and net square feet
for each area of the site;

C. The number and type of residential units and residential density for each area of
the site;

d. Location, size, and uses of common open space and recreation areas;

e. General landscape concept showing woodlands, wetlands and vegetation to be

preserved or added, topography, and similar features;

f. Delineation of areas to be subdivided, if applicable;

g. General description of proposed water, sanitary sewer, and storm drainage
system;

h. A unified plan for wayfinding and signage within the development;

i A plan delineating the location and area of the proposed phases of the
development;

j. A written statement containing the following supporting documentation:

1) A full description as to how the proposed development satisfies the
eligibility requirements and design principles of Section XX.10.C;

2) If applicable, evidence of how the proposed development meets the
criteria for qualifying for a density bonus outlined in Section XX.40.B;

3) A description of the expected schedule of development including
progressive time schedule for each phase of the development;

4) General description of the organization to be established, to own and
maintain common open space;

5) General description of covenants, grants, easements, or other
restrictions to be imposed upon land or buildings, including easements
for public utilities, bylaws, and articles of incorporation for any
homeowners' association or cooperative association;

6) Description of applicant's intentions regarding selling or leasing of all or
portions of land in the development and of dwelling units;

Page 12



7) Description of all proposed nonresidential uses, including types of stores
and offices;

8) The number and type of residential units and calculations of the
resultant population;

9) Average initial sales prices of dwelling units for sale and/or average
initial rents of rental dwelling units;

10) A draft Development Agreement which establishes the formal rights and
obligations of the property owner and Oshtemo Township regarding the
future development of the site. The Development Agreement shall, at a
minimum, specify: the parties to the agreement; the obligations of the
property owner; a term or duration within which the action and
obligations of the agreement must be fulfilled by the property owner;
vested rights; procedures for determining compliance with the
conditions included in the agreement; default remedies; provisions
guiding the transfer of rights and obligations to subsequent property
owners; and enforcement procedures;

Public Hearing. The Planning Commission shall, upon receipt of a general development plan in
proper form, schedule and hold a hearing upon the request and shall notify the applicant and all
owners of all contiguous parcels of such hearing.

Standards for Review of the GDP. The general development plan and supporting information
shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall base its
determination as to whether the plan meets the following standards:

1. The general development plan shall generally conform to the Intent of this Article as
outlined in Section XX.10.A.

2. The general development plan shall generally conform to the Eligibility Criteria and
Design Principles of Section XX.10.C.

3. The general development plan shall generally conform to the review criteria for special
land uses as outlined in Section 65.30.

Decision of the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission shall deny, approve, or approve
with conditions the general development plan and supporting documentation. The Planning
Commission shall record its conclusions, its decisions, the basis for its decision, and any
recommended conditions to be imposed in conjunction with an affirmative decision.

Effect of Approval of the General Development Plan. Approval of the GDP shall indicate the

Planning Commission’s acceptance of uses, building location, layout of streets, dwelling unit
count and type, floor areas, densities, and all other elements of the plan. The approval shall
authorize the applicant to then submit, within ninety (90) days, a final draft Development

Page 13



Agreement for review and approval by the Township, with assistance from the Township
Attorney.

Development Agreement. For any project involving a financial obligation on the part of Oshtemo
Township, approval of the GDP by the Township Board shall be required. The Development
Agreement shall attest that the approved GDP and any conditions attached to the approvals,
shall be binding on the property owner and upon their heirs, successors, and assigns. Upon
approval by the Township, the executed Development Agreement shall be recorded with the
Kalamazoo County Register of Deeds Office by the property owner within thirty (30) days of its
signing. The property owner shall immediately thereafter provide a certified copy of the
recorded Development Agreement with the Township Clerk for record keeping purposes.

Site Plan. Execution of the Development Agreement shall authorize the applicant to file
applications for site plan approval for all or phases of the development consistent with the
approved GDP phasing schedule and Development Agreement. All site plans shall conform to
the approved GDP and shall include the information required by Section 64.60.C. The Planning
Department shall have the authority to deny, approve, or approve with conditions all site plans
submitted for review under this section. The Planning Department shall record its conclusions,
its decisions, the basis for its decision, and any recommended conditions to be imposed in
conjunction with an affirmative decision.

Amendments. A property owner may request an amendment to an approved GDP.
1. Minor modifications to an approved GDP may be administratively approved by the

Planning Department. Modifications to be considered minor shall include, among other
similar modifications, the following:

a. A change in residential floor area;
b. A change in nonresidential floor area of ten percent or less;
C. Minor variations in layout which do not constitute major changes; and/or
d. A change in lot coverage of the entire GDP of five percent or less.
2. Major modifications to an approved GDP shall follow the procedures and conditions

required for the original submittal and review in full. Modifications to be considered
major changes shall include one or more of the following:

a. Change in concept of the development;

b. Change in use or character of the development;

C. Change in type of dwelling units as identified on the general development plan;
d. Change in the number of dwelling units;

e. Change in nonresidential floor area of over ten percent;

Page 14



f. Change in lot coverage of the entire GDP of more than five percent;
g. Rearrangement of lots, blocks, and building tracts;
h. Change in the character or function of any street;

i Reduction in land area set aside for common open space or the relocation of
such area; or,

j. Increase in building height.

3. The Planning Department shall have the authority to determine whether a requested
change is major or minor, in accordance with this section. The burden shall be on the
property owner to show the reasons for any requested change owing to changed
physical or economic factors, or consumer demand.

Expiration, Extension and Revocation. The Development Agreement approved by the Township

shall designate the timeframes and terms for the expiration, extension and revocation of plan
approvals under this Article.

Page 15



10/17/2019 Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

(https://nacto.org/)

National Association of City Transportation Officials (https://nacto.org/)

Urban
Street
Design Urban Street Design Guide GUIDE NAVIGATION
Guide

(https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-
design-guide/)

PURCHASE GUIDE (HTTP://ISLANDPRESS.ORG/URBAN-STREET-DESIGN-GUIDE)

L
L
A

‘:“ Lane Width

k¢

|

" 3
/

R\

The width allocated to lanes for motorists, buses, trucks, bikes, and parked cars is a
sensitive and crucial aspect of street design. Lane widths should be considered within the
assemblage of a given street delineating space to serve all needs, including travel lanes,
safety islands, bike lanes, and sidewalks.

Each lane width discussion should be informed by an understanding of the goals for traffic
calming as well as making adequate space for larger vehicles, such as trucks and buses.

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/

1711



10/17/2019 Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

(https://nacto.org/wp-content/themes/sink_nacto/views/design-guides/retrofit/urban-
street-design-guide/images/lane-width/lane-width-existing.png)

Existing

¥

Existing

iate . "._“_ i
) \ i

Redesign
Lane widths of 10 feet are appropriate in urban areas and have a positive impact on a
street’s safety without impacting traffic operations.

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/ 2/1



10/17/2019 Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

R - ] P

(https://nacto.org/wp-content/themes/sink_nacto/views/design-guides/retrofit/urban-
street-design-guide/images/lane-width/carousel//driver_over_ctr_line.jpg)

Discussion

Travel lanes are striped to define the intended path of travel for vehicles along a corridor.
Historically, wider travel lanes (11-13 feet) have been favored to create a more forgiving
buffer to drivers, especially in high-speed environments where narrow lanes may feel
uncomfortable or increase potential for side-swipe collisions.

Lane widths less than 12 feet have also historically been assumed to decrease traffic flow
and capacity, a claim new research refutes.?

+ More Info

The measured saturation flow rates are similar for lane widths between 10 feet and 12 feet...Thus, so
long as all other geometric and traffic signalization conditions remain constant, there is no
measurable decrease in urban street capacity when through lane widths are narrowed from 12 feet
to 10 feet.

Appendix A-P, p. A152, Florida Department of Transportation (2007). Appendix A-P and
Appendix Q (/docs/usdg/conserve_by_bicycle_fl_dot.pdf). Conserve By Bicycle Program

Study Final Report. Tallahassee, FL: FDOT.

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/ 311



10/17/2019

Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

The relationships between lane widths and vehicle speed is complicated by many factors,
including time of day, the amount of traffic present, and even the age of the driver.
Narrower streets help promote slower driving speeds which, in turn, reduce the severity of
crashes. Narrower streets have other benefits as well, including reduced crossing distances,
shorter signal cycles (../signal-cycle-lengths), less stormwater, and less construction
material to build.

Wider travel lanes are correlated with higher vehicle speeds.

Average Lane Width (feet converted from meters)

910" 108" ne" 12'4" 132" JERIH
= O N RO U TETUUUY ASU OO U TSP [P UUU USSR UUUSURTURRTY IS
59.0
@
S50 e e e
® ®
< 528 .
i«
5 A0T o L] . ................... . ....... ‘ .................. . .............................
3 ® : ®
5 466 s e
5 09 i ®
S s3s 9@ ®
T B A ' ..............................................................................................................
= -
£
& O ®
I = SRR USRS OSSPSR UUSPNSRSRRUAT ISSSOUROSORPRREP PO SOUTSOOSUNVRSTRNUNSUSORTNS. . SO ROSTPRASNTY S
: T °
]
o 30
“As the width of the lane increased, Regression Line
the speed on the roadway increased...
When lane widths are 1 m (3.3 ft) greater, [ ] B5th Percentile
Speed of Traffic

speeds are predicted to be 15 km/h

(9.4 mph) faster.”

Chart source: Fitzpatrick, Kay, Paul Carlson, Marcus
Brawer, and Mark Wooldridge, 2000. "Design Factors
That Affect Driver Speed on Suburban Streets”
Transportation Research Record 17510 18-25.

(https://nacto.org/wp-content/themes/sink_nacto/views/design-guides/retrofit/urban-

street-design-guide/images/lane-width/wider-travel-lanes-graph.png)Wider travel lanes are

correlated with higher vehicle speeds.

For multi-lane roadways where transit or freight vehicles are present and require a wider
travel lane, the wider lane should be the outside lane (curbside or next to parking). Inside
lanes should continue to be designed at the minimum possible width. Major truck or
transit routes through urban areas may require the use of wider lane widths.

Lane widths of 10 feet are appropriate in urban areas and have a positive impact on a
street's safety without impacting traffic operations. For designated truck or transit routes,
one travel lane of 11 feet may be used in each direction. In select cases, narrower travel
lanes (9-9.5 feet) can be effective as through lanes in conjunction with a turn lane.?

Optional

2 Parking lane widths of 7-9 feet are generally recommended. Cities are encouraged to
demarcate the parking lane to indicate to drivers how close they are to parked cars. In
certain cases, especially where loading and double parking are present, wide parking lanes
(up to 15 feet) may be used. Wide parking lanes can serve multiple functions, including as
industrial loading zones or as an interim space for bicyclists.

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/

4/11



10/17/2019

Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

3 For multi-lane roadways where transit or freight vehicles are present and require a wider
travel lane, the wider lane should be the outside lane (curbside or next to parking). Inside
lanes should continue to be designed at the minimum possible width. Major truck or
transit routes through urban areas may require the use of wider lane widths.

2-way streets with low or medium volumes of traffic may benefit from the use of a dashed
center line with narrow lane widths or no center line at all. In such instances, a city may be
able to allocate additional right-of-way to bicyclists or pedestrians, while permitting
motorists to cross the center of the roadway when passing.

+ More Info

(https://nacto.org/wp-content/themes/sink_nacto/views/design-guides/retrofit/urban-
street-design-guide/images/lane-width/carousel/driver_over_ctr_line.jpg)Location: Elmore,
OH

Recommended

Lanes greater than 11 feet should not be used as they may cause unintended speeding and
assume valuable right of way at the expense of other modes.

+ More Info

This includes the use of wide outside lanes for bicyclist accommodation. Wide outside
lanes are not an effective means of accommodating bicyclists in urban areas.

Restrictive policies that favor the use of wider travel lanes have no place in constrained
urban settings, where every foot counts. Research has shown that narrower lane widths
can effectively manage speeds without decreasing safety, and that wider lanes do not

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/

51



10/17/2019 Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials
correlate to safer streets.3 Moreover, wider travel lanes also increase exposure and crossing
distance for pedestrians at intersections and midblock crossings.*
See Crosswalks (../crosswalks-and-crossings/)

+ More Info

Many transit agencies require that jurisdictions stripe lanes of 12-14 feet for safe
operation. These policies are counter to the municipality's larger safety goals and may
result in speeding by when these lanes are not in use by transit vehicles.

Use striping to channelize traffic and demarcate the road for vulnerable users.
+ More Info

. I

= |

(https://nacto.org/wp-content/themes/sink_nacto/views/design-guides/retrofit/urban-
street-design-guide/images/lane-width/carousel/SFCTA.jpg)Location: San Francisco, CA:
Striping should be used to delineate parking and curbside uses from the travel lane.

1 Lane width should be considered within the overall assemblage of the street. Travel lane
widths of 10 feet generally provide adequate safety in urban settings while discouraging
speeding. Cities may choose to use 11-foot lanes on designated truck and bus routes (one
11-foot lane per direction) or adjacent to lanes in the opposing direction.

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/ 6/11



10/17/2019

Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

Additional lane width may also be necessary for receiving lanes at turning locations with
tight curves, as vehicles take up more horizontal space at a curve than a straightaway.

See Corner Radii (../corner-radii)

Wide lanes and offsets to medians are not required, but may be beneficial and necessary
from a safety point of view.
Footnotes

+ More Info
1. Theo Petrisch, “The Truth about Lane Widths,” The Pedestrian and Bicycle

Information Center, accessed April 12, 2013,
http://www.bicyclinginfo.org/library/details.cfm?id=4348
(http://www.bicyclinginfo.org/library/details.cfm?id=4348).

. Research suggests that lane widths less than 12 feet on urban and suburban

arterials do not increase crash frequencies.

Ingrid Potts, Douglas W. Harwood, and Karen R. Richard, “Relationship of Lane
Width to Safety on Urban and Suburban Arterials
(/docs/usdg/lane_width_potts.pdf),” (paper presented at the TRB 86th Annual
Meeting, Washington, D.C., January 21-25, 2007).

Relationship Between Lane Width and Speed, (Washington, D.C.: Parsons
Transportation Group, 2003), 1-6.

. Eric Dumbaugh and Wenhao Li, “Designing for the Safety of Pedestrians,

Cyclists, and Motorists in Urban Environments
(/docs/usdg/designing_safety_of_ped_cyclists_and_motorists_dumbaugh.pdf).”
Journal of the American Planning Association 77 (2011): 70.

Previous research has shown various estimates of relationship between lane
width and travel speed. One account estimated that each additional foot of
lane width related to a 2.9 mph increase in driver speed.

Kay Fitzpatrick, Paul Carlson, Marcus Brewer, and Mark Wooldridge, “Design
Factors That Affect Driver Speed on Suburban Arterials
(/docs/usdg/design_factors_that_affect_driver_speed_fitzpatrick.pdf)":
Transportation Research Record 1751 (2000):18-25.

Other references include:
Potts, Ingrid B., John F. Ringert, Douglas W. Harwood and Karin M. Bauer.

Operational and Safety Effects of Right-Turn Deceleration Lanes on Urban and
Suburban Arterials. Transportation Research Record: No 2023, 2007.

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/ 7M1



10/17/2019 Lane Width | National Association of City Transportation Officials

Macdonald, Elizabeth, Rebecca Sanders and Paul Supawanich. The Effects of
Transportation Corridors’ Roadside Design Features on User Behavior and
Safety, and Their Contributions to Health, Environmental Quality, and
Community Economic Vitality: a Literature Review
(/docs/usdg/effects_transportation_corridors_macdonald.pdf). UCTC Research
Paper No. 878. 2008.

4. Longer crossing distances not only pose as a pedestrian barrier but also
require longer traffic signal cycle times which may have an impact on general
traffic circulation.

(https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-

Street Design Elements design-guide/street-design-elements/)

Sidewalks
(https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-
design-guide/street-design-
elements/sidewalks/)
Adapted from the Urban Street Design Guide, published by Island Press.
References
Urban Street Design Guide e Lane Width . Keyword

Select city, or le

SEARCH REFERENCES

About NACTO

https://nacto.org/publication/urban-street-design-guide/street-design-elements/lane-width/ 8/11



10/17/2019 How Wide Should a Neighborhood Street Be? — Part 1

How Wide Should a Neighborhood Street Be? — Part 1

by Steve McCutchan

September 24th, 2013

The Street Width Debate

Is suburban America ready to reduce local street widths, drive slower, and reduce neighborhood
accessibility?

New urbanism and traditional neighborhood design has started a
neighborhood street width debate. For decades, suburban development with
its long, curvilinear streets and cul-de-sacs led to wider neighborhood streets
that flowed cars like rivers through single family home communities.

Negative consequences evolved from wider suburban streets, the worst being
ever increasing vehicle speeds -- triggering attempts like speed bumps to
slow cars down.

Determined to resurrect safer, pedestrian friendly narrow streets of
traditional neighborhoods, new urbanists have pressed cities and towns to
narrow street widths to both reduce vehicle speeds and create “friendlier”
streets.

Many communities are now debating decreasing neighborhood street width.
Planning commissioners need to understand the positive and negative
aspects of each side of the debate. How narrow is too narrow -- and how wide
is too wide?

Today and tomorrow, we’ll look at some of the issues in neighborhood street widths, including information from
recent research that has addressed the subject of safety.

The discussion of street width often centers around two issues — accessibility and safety.
Accessibility is a measure of how efficiently you can drive through a neighborhood.
Safety is whether traffic and vehicle speed poses a risk to pedestrians.

In discussions of neighborhood street width, each of these issues is typically addressed. Surprisingly, accessibility
is often given more consideration than safety.

Is there a minimum neighborhood street width? An online search of standard minimum street widths provides
information that illustrates a wide range of municipal ordinances regulating street width and design. There is

plannersweb.com/2013/09/wide-neighborhood-street-part-1/?print=true 1/3



10/17/2019

How Wide Should a Neighborhood Street Be? — Part 1

little consensus on a minimum street width.

Some standards do stand out as reasonable minimums. For emergency access, 20 feet is commonly accepted as a

minimum width for two way traffic. In addition, eight feet is necessary for on street parking. Therefore, 28 feet is
a widely accepted minimum curb face to curb face neighborhood street width.

If 28 feet is a minimum, what is a workable minimum street width that balances accessibility and safety? The
illustration below shows three commonly used neighborhood street standards, 29, 35, and 39 feet curb face to
curb face. Generally right-of-way widths (which would include sidewalks and the green space between the

sidewalk and the curb) for these would be 50, 55, and 60 feet, respectively.

The illustration also shows the distance between vehicles for the three typical street widths. The average width of

a vehicle is six feet.

29 Foot Width

ER ey

23{

r2. 125 i 12.5 *2.07
’
| 35 Foot Width
87
28
2.0 1556 155 2.0 l
35.0
L 39 Foot Width
> 07
3.8+—
20 17.5 176
38.0

plannersweb.com/2013/09/wide-neighborhood-street-part-1/?print=true

2/3



10/17/2019 How Wide Should a Neighborhood Street Be? — Part 1

The spacing for a car on the 29 foot street is 7.3 feet, or a distance of about 1.3 feet, or 15.5 inches between
vehicles, not a comfortable driving distance between vehicles.

The 35 foot street proportional spacing is 8.7 feet, a distance of 2.8 feet or 33.6 inches between vehicles.
The 39 foot street width spacing is 9.7 feet leaving 3.8 feet or 45.6 inches between vehicles.

While the 29 foot street vehicle spacing requires opposing drivers to slow down and give the right-of-way, the 35
and 39 foot street vehicle spacing do not -- even when passing parked vehicles on both sides of the street.
Unfortunately, wider streets designed for driver convenience usually encourage speeds that are not safe in
residential neighborhoods.

In the street debate, significant importance is given to the daily trip in and out of neighborhoods. Many drivers
see the accessibility of driving unconstrained through their neighborhood as being very important. This (along
with concerns about access of fire fighting equipment) has driven the movement in the past toward wider
neighborhood streets. In contrast, within a narrow street neighborhood, drivers must slow or stop to allow
opposing traffic to pass because of vehicles parked on the street.

Tomorrow in Part Two - Street Width & Safety. We will examine studies that measure the
relationship between street width, increased speeds, and the impact of speed on the severity of pedestrian injuries

from traffic accidents.

- Steve McCutchan works as a land planning and urban design consultant for Blu Line
Designs, a Salt Lake City, Utah land planning, urban design, and landscape architecture
firm and specializes in preparing master planned communities, planned developments,
site plans, and subdivisions for the Mountain West's land development and home
building industries.

In addition to his more than 37 years of professional experience, Steve has worked to
broaden his career by lecturing, teaching and writing on land planning, urban design
and land development. He has lectured and taught at universities in California and Utah
and contributed to professional journals throughout the United States. Steve is the
recipient of an American Planning Association's National Award for Outstanding
Planning for comprehensive planning and several chapter awards for urban design.

In upcoming columns, Steve will be taking a closer look at a range of land use and
development issues, such as creating sustainable neighborhoods centered around schools; the future of suburban shopping
malls; and the extent to which residential development pays for itself.

Tags:Public Health & Safety, Streets & Roads

Printed From: http://plannersweb.com/2013/09/wide-neighborhood-street-part-1/

plannersweb.com/2013/09/wide-neighborhood-street-part-1/?print=true 3/3



Figure 6: Low-Volume Local Residential Street

1

?i Et at ?.
Parking  Travel Travel  Parking
Lane Lane
__._{}.5' 05 __
4.5 8' Curb Curb g 4.5
Side Landscape Londscope  Side
Walk Strip | -] Strip Walk

30" Curb to Curb

52" Right—of—Way

Complete Streets Best Practices 13
October 2005 %"8{&‘5?&;%?3



Figure 7: Local Industrial Street

is

 S—
—

7 " 1" 7
Parking Traval Lane Travel Lana Parking
18" Trvl/Phg 18" Trvl/Pkg
05 05 |
Minimuml  5' Curb Curb 5  IMinimum
5 Side Side 5'
Londscaped Walk Walk Londscaped
Areq Area
36' Curb to Curb
57" Right—of—Way

Complete Streets Best Practices 14
October 2005 %”8{&‘5’5‘&;&%‘3



Figure 8: Front-Loading Residential Collector

ME—— P o [E——

_— -

7
Parking
0.5
Y £y ~ Curb
Side Londsocpa
Walk Strip

4 10 10 4"
Bike Trovel Lane Trovel Lone Bike
Lana Lana

-?-i
Parking

0.5

Curb

42" Curb to Curb

B B
Londscope  Side
Strip Walk

71" Right—of-Way

Complete Streets Best Practices
October 2005

15

Sacramentn Tansgoration & & Quality

COLLABORATIVE



 A—

TN
K

Figure 9: Main Street

g' 5' 1 1’ 5 C)
Parking  Bike Travel Lonae Trovel Lana Eika Parkd
Lorme Lerin "
05 0.5
15" Curbr Curt 15
Sidewalk Sidewalk
w,/Tree w/Tree
Grotes Grates
48" Curb to Curb
79" Right—of—Way
Complete Streets Best Practices 16

October 2005

Sacramentn Tansgoration & & Quality

COLLABORATIVE



Figure 10: Minor Commercial Arterial

lii,

&' 12 13 " I 12’ 13" &
Bk Traresl Trsval Lane Landseapad Trereel Lana Trivsl Lana (=]
Misdian or [F. ]
THCTL
_ 0.5" 4.5,
3 # Curls Curb 3 ;-.
Sids Lerdmcaps Ladscups
Wl Strig g Wl
T Curh ta Curd
L 1
J 104" Right —orl=Wary !
Complete Streets Best Practices 17

October 2005

Sacramentn Tansgoration & & Quality

COLLABORATIVE



94

Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development Alley

Purpose

Right-of-Way

Street Width

Number of Travel Lanes
Median Type

Median Width

Parking

Maximum Daily Traffic Volumes
Tree Lawn Width

Sidewalk

Bike Lane

Mixed use development dlleys are designed to provide access
1o the rear or side of properties.

20
20
2
N/A
N/A
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

= oH H

¢

20'-0"

&' utilitg/accsss edsement —

pvmnt. mat/ROW.
32 I :@H

—— &' utility/access easement

unobstructed

95

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development Local Street

Purpose | Mixed use development local streets are designed 1o serve the
local access needs of residential, live/work, and commercial
activities within . a mixed use center.

Right-of-Way | 60'
Street Width | 32' flow line to flow line
Number of Travel Lanes | 2
Median Type | None

Medion Width [ N/A
Parking | Yes

Maximum Daily Traffic Volumes | 750
Minimum Horizontal Radius | 700"
Block Length | 600" max.
Alley | optional
Tree Lawn Width | 8
Sidewalk | &'
Bike Lane | None

Functional Classification | Minor Collector
Miscellaneous | Transit stops shall be accommodated where appropriate (at
800" - 1200

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

=2 22-2 14'-@
curb to curb
e -0
ROW
o'
= 14
e 2 32' s o
- +
‘ I TREE LAWN
| < &' SIDEWALK
“—
N ~— Mf/
/)/ ~_|
‘ 22'-Q" |
flow\ine - flew/line
} +
‘ I
\1 |
STREET TREES AT L MF/
AT 2@ oc = I
‘ I
| I
+ +
| I
\1 |
o~ ﬁ\-<f/
// ~_|
‘ I
| I
- +

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development Collector Street

Purpose | Collector streets provide access from adjacent arterial streets
into the mixed use activity center and serve as non-arterial
perimeter streets.

Right-of-Way | 66' Parallel Parking, 88" Diagonal Parking
Street Width | 34’ Parallel Parking, 56' Diagonal Parking flow line to flow line
Number of Travel Lanes | 2
Median Type | None
Median Width | N/A
Parking | Yes — Parallel or Diagonal
Maximum Daily Traffic Volumes | 5,000
Minimum Horizontal Radius | 700
Block Length | 600" max.
Alley | optional
Tree Lawn Width | 8
Sidewalk | 8'
Bike Lane | Permitted but noft striped

Functional Classification | Cormmercial/industrial Collector

Miscellaneous | Transit stops shall be accommodated where appropriate (at
800" - 12007

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

H

E

&'-0" 34'-@" l&'-o"

curb to curb
66 -0"

RoOw
Collector Street with Parallel Parking

&6’

g' &' 24" 8'

34'-©
flow line - flow line

Y
e

Yoy
AN N

j

4

=

TREELAWN AND/OR
TREE PLANTER (12' x &9

&' SIDEWALK

CENTER STREET LIGHTS
BETWEEN TREES

== |

o . .
le'-o" 56'-0" le'-©
curb to curb
88’

RoOw

Collector Street with Diagonal Parking

99

Street Standards



100

Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development Entry Spine Street

Purpose

Right-of-Way

Street Width

Number of Travel Lanes
Median Type

Median Width

Parking

Maximum Daily Traffic Volumes
Minimum Horizontal Radius
Block Length

Alley

Tree Lawn Width

Sidewalk

Bike Lane

Functional Classification
Miscellaneous

Entry/Spine Streets provide the main access from arterial
streefts, including right-infright-out and serve as a focus of ac-
fivity for large mixed use centers.

100

68' flow line to flow line
20r4
Raised
Minimum 20'
Yes/Optional
7.500

700

600" max.
optional

g

g

6' Optional

Major Collector

Transit stops shall be accommodated where appropriate (af
800" - 1200

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

H HEE &
(B OBEE B
B BRER BE

- AW
DB %%;
G @@%é

‘b.\. \ \b.\. \
ul &' ] ] &' ul
g' 8 24-Q 20" 24'-@ g &'

22'-@" (variable)
Row

Entry Spine Street with Bicycle Lane and Parking

22" (variable)

&8

&' &' 24" 20' 24" &' g

TREELAWN AND/OR
> TREE PLANTER (12' x 8"

CENTER STREET LIGHTS
BETWEEN TREES

Ia

B HBEH HF
AF
AR BER AF

W E W
O

2o'-0" (variable)
Row

Entry Spine Street with No Parking

101

Street Standards



102

Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development Parkway — 4 Lane

Purpose

Right-of-Way

Street Width

Number of Travel Lanes
Median Type

Median Width

Parking

Maximum Daily Traffic Volumes
Tree Lawn Width

Minimmum Horizontal Radius
Block Length

Alley

Sidewalk

Multi-use Trail

Bike Lane

Functional Classification
Miscellaneous

Parkways provide rapid and relatively unimpeded traffic
movement throughout the City and carry high volumes of
fraffic to mixed use centers.

125

77' Standard or 71" with Optional Trail flow line to flow line
4

Raised
Minimum 19"
None
25,000

12

700

n/a

optional

6

12' Optional
6' Standard

Minor Arterial

Transit stops shall be accommodated where appropriate (at
800" - 1200

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

&' SIDEWALK

110"

curb to curb
125'-@"
RoOw

Parkway with On-street Bike Lane

125"

a1

24

29" 13" min. 29"

SN AN

N

11"

curb to curb
R25'-@"

Row

Parkway with 12" Trail

103

Street Standards



104

Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development Parkway — 6 Lane

Purpose

Right-of-Way

Street Width

Number of Travel Lanes
Median Type

Median Width

Parking

Maximum Daily Traffic Volumes
Tree Lawn Width

Minimnum Horizontal Radius
Block Length

Alley

Sidewalk

Multi-use Trail

Bike Lane

Functional Classification
Miscellaneous

Parkways provide rapid and relatively unimpeded traffic
movement throughout the City and carry high volumes of
fraffic to mixed use centers.

160

108" Standard or 102" with Optional Trail flow line to flow line
6

Raised
Minimum 28"
None

36,000

12

1100

n/a

optional

6

12" Optional
6’ Standard

Principle Arterial
Transit stops shall be accommodated where appropriate (at
800" - 1200

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

2g'-0"
curb to curb
le@'-0"
BN

Parkway with On-street Bike Lane

&' SIDEWALK

22'-2"
curb to curb
o2 -0"
Row

Parkway with 12 Trail

105

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

Mixed Use Development- One Way Couplet

Purpose

Right-of-Way

Street Width

Number of Travel Lanes
Median Type

Median Width

Parking

Maximmum Daily Traffic Volumes
Tree Lawn Width

Sidewalk

Bike Lane

Multi-use Trail

Miscellaneous

One-way couplets carry high volumes of traffic from a 6-Lane
Parkway through mixed use centers by splitting the Parkway as
it approaches the center into couplets of one-way streets and
then rejoining them on the other side. The intersection of two
set of intersecting couplets forms the framework of a street
grid for the center, minimizes pedestrian crossing distances af
intfersections and decreases average travel times through the
center.

88'each

55’ from flow line to flow line each
3 each

None

N/A

Yes— parallel on both sides of street
18,000 each

8'-6"

g

6’ Standard

Optional — Off-street multi-use trail separates from right-of-way
where couplet spilits.

Transit stops shall be accommodated where appropriate (af
800" - 12001

Parkway

Mg

One-way Couplets

Parkway

< l H } ] > | Parkway
/ﬁ\— )
/ f ﬂ 400’ m|nW \\ \
< ﬁ N One-wal/ Couplets >
K—‘) 1

Parkwa
Block Structure— One way Couplet

106

B
AW

N

Street Standards



Colorado Springs Mixed Use Development Design Manual

al
al
al
a)
al

v
AN

75

+
—~ T e S

AN

/

T T

AVanVanVanVa
TN

107

Street Standards



N

[ ]umznir{ tororship

October 16, 2019 OSbtemo

/ﬂ ™ ™ est. 1839
Mtg Date: October 24, 2019
To: Planning Commission
From: Julie Johnston, AICP
Subject: Draft Nonhazardous Materials Ordinance

Taplin, Inc. an environmental services firm within Oshtemo Township, wishes to add a structure to process
nonhazardous waste within their facility located at the corner of Drake Road and Michigan Avenue, just
west of Bud and Doug Walter Auto Sales. The owners of the firm met with Township staff in early August
to discuss the possibility of constructing this facility.

Staff informed the Mr. Taplin that the use requested was not permitted within the Township Zoning
Ordinance. After discussion of the requested project, staff decided to investigate the use and determine
if ordinance language could be written to allow this development.

Staff conducted internet searches on the requirements of nonhazardous material management through
the Environmental Protection Agency and the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes and
Energy. In addition, other treatment companies were reviewed to determine if special requirements must
be met. Finally, a search of ordinance language related to nonhazardous treatment facilities was
conducted.

The results of these searches determined that the treatment should occur within an enclosed building
and a secondary containment system must be provided. This system is designed to ensure the results of
any process within the facility does not impact ground water. This would be particularly true in Kalamazoo
County, as all our water is ground water. So, in addition to the containment system, permission from the
City of Kalamazoo to discharge the resultant water from the treatment process would need to be
obtained.

The attached ordinance recommends placing this type of facility within the 1-2: Industrial District as a
special use. This would allow Planning Commission an opportunity to ensure all ordinance requirements
are being met and any compatibility concerns addressed.

Staff recommends reviewing the draft language to determine if its location in the I-2 District is
appropriate, that all concerns have been addressed through the regulatory requirements, and that special

use approval should be required.

Thank you.



Nonhazardous Materials Treatment Facility
Draft Amendments

Article 28: 1-2: Industrial District

28.40 Special Uses
F. Nonhazardous materials treatment and disposal facility.

Article 49: Requirements for Special Uses

49.160 Nonhazardous materials treatment and disposal facility.
A. Allowed uses. Establishments primarily engaged in operating nonhazardous material treatment
and disposal facilities or the combined activity of collecting and/or hauling of nonhazardous

materials.

B. Prohibited uses. Landfills, compost, combustors, incinerators and sewer systems, or sewage
treatment facilities.

C. Development requirements.

1. The nonhazardous material must be stored within a completely enclosed building.

2. The treatment of said material must also be conducted within a completely enclosed building.

3. A secondary containment system that meets the standards of the Environmental Protection
Agency to prevent any migration of wastes to soils, ground water, or surface water must be
constructed for any building that stores or treats nonhazardous material.

4. Proof in the form of a certificate, approval letter, manufacturers guarantee, etc. that the
secondary containment system meets the Environmental Protection Agency standards must
be provided as part of the Special Use application.

5. Any loading/unloading facilities:

a. Must be included within the secondary containment system of the building.

b. May not be adjacent to residential zoned or used property.

c. Must be screened from any street right-of-way with a 6-foot opaque fence or
landscape materials.



6. Approvals from the City of Kalamazoo for wastewater discharge into the public system must
be obtained.

7. The transportation of nonhazardous materials must meet all requirements of the
Environmental Protection Agency and be certified for the types of materials being

transported.

Re-number remaining uses in Article 49.



	1 - pc agenda 10-24-2019
	2 - 2019  Back of Agenda Final
	3 - Minutes of October 10 2019
	4 - VTDP Memo
	5 - Village Theme Development Plan Update Draft 10-03-19
	6 - MHSO Memo
	7 - Mixed-Use District Draft 10-17-2019
	8 - Lane Width _ National Association of City Transportation Officials
	9 - Neighborhood Streets
	10 - Bicycle & Pedestrian Design Guidelines
	11 - mixeduse - colorado springs
	12 - Nonhazardous Materials  Memo
	13 - Proposed Amendments 10-16-2019



